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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of XinXiang Era
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 7% 47 2

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mAEXEE

Year ended 31 December

BHE12A3MBILEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Revenue YA 278,542 217,005
Loss before taxation BrAEATET IR (9,453) (22,409)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FRBEREZERZ RS
for the year (6,745) (23,000)
Loss and total comprehensive expense RARHEAEGFEBER
for the year attributable to owners of >HEMAZBE
the Company (1,923) (19,744)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEKRAR

As at 31 December

m12 4318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Assets AE
Non-current assets IEREEE 57,663 69,937
Current assets mEEE 29,995 28,620
Total assets EEHE 87,658 98,557
Equity and liabilities #wmkaE
Non-current liabilities FEMBEE 26,844 22,060
Current liabilities nBaE 71,641 79,361
Total liabilities BEHEE 98,485 101,421
Total deficit B4l e TR (10,827) (2,864)
Net current liabilities REBAEFEHE (41,646) (50,741)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Director (the “Board”) of XinXiang Era
Group Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Our lives have been completely changed in the digital economy and
the current business environment. Less time is reserved for face-to-
face communication with our family and friends, and less happiness is
felt for life. In the spirit of making life better, XinXiang Era Group,
since its establishment, has been committed to creating spaces around
the world where people can build connections at the dinner table and
in hotels, bringing more fun to life, creating a sense of “home”, and
enhancing happiness. XinXiang Era Group will continue to forge
ahead and deeply engage in the food and beverage industry with the
assistance of its diversified, international senior and experienced team,
and will endeavor to create authentic food flavor and provide a
creative, free and cozy third space for people’s life and work with
advanced restaurant concepts, in a bid to establish a super
international fine dining brand matrix.

The purpose, values and strategies of XinXiang Era Group:

(1) Purpose of the Company:

(1) To build authentic, compelling, and consistent restaurants
to cater to a diverse customer base worldwide;

(2)  Besides the continuous operation of existing dining brands
featured favors of different regions of the world, the
Company will set a high-end Hunan cuisine brand and
open branches in multiple areas in the Mainland;

(3) To promote Michelin-starred restaurants in Hong Kong to
the Mainland and open branches in several provincial
capital cities.
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT
ERMES

(2)

(3)

Values of the Company:

With the principle of making life better, the Company continues
to perform service of excellence, honesty and integrity,
consistency, adaptability, aiming to bring more happiness to
customers.

Strategies of the Company:

(1) To adapt to food tastes and preferences in different
markets and locations;

(2) To pay attention to small details in food, beverage, and
experiences to deliver consistent services and experiences;

(3) To upkeep ongoing market research and be acute about
development of market demand for innovative ideas.
(4)  To develop a diverse team with a wealth of knowledge to

serve a mass market.

(5) To explore distinctive cuisine from around the world to
create a high-end culinary culture.

Starting from 2024, it marks the first year of embarking

transformation, ascension and growth for XinXiang Era Group. Under

a new image, we will strengthen internal management, enhance our

capabilities, and improve our market development and construction

abilities to better serve customers and to promote the reputation and

awareness of our brand. Taking long-term value creation as the

keynote, the Group will steadily move forward to create substantial

returns and wealth for investors. The key overview and outlook are as

follows:

Additional investment will be made in the R&D department to
hire numerous product experts and food and beverage
professionals to strategically develop new products that meet
the ever-changing market demands, and continuously optimize
and upgrade our offerings.
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The branding department will be restructured by hiring experts
to a strong and professional brand team for enhancing the
reputation and awareness of multiple food and beverage brands
under the Group.

The marketing department will be strengthened by integrating
resources from various sources for joint creation and
development, and collaborating with multiple industries to
vigorously expand high-end food and beverage channels and
terminal construction.

A chain subsidiary holding specialty catering brands is proposed
to be set up to operate and support a large number of catering
franchised outlets.

Finally, I would like to express gratitude to the Board of XinXiang Era

Group, all business partner, employees, investors and customers for

their unwavering support for the Group. | believe that the current

global economic headwinds will gradually disappear, and that quality

catering services are still a basic need of the people’s livelihood,

resulting in a broad market outlook, so we are firmly confident that

the Group's performance will be positive and continue to grow.

Chairperson

Liu Enyu

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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Business Review

The Group is a well-known Hong Kong hospitality group with award-
winning restaurants. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group successfully operated eight brand restaurants, including
Duddell’s, Andd, Louise, MONO, Estro, 22 Ships, Mak Mak and
Chachawan, to offer our customers a wide range of dining options.
During the period under review, the government loosened social
distancing measures and opened borders for tourists to enter without
quarantine. As a result, the Group’s business performance has
drastically improved compared to the past year.

The Group had a highly successful year, winning numerous awards.
We are honoured to be awarded one MICHELIN star for each of the
five restaurants respectively for the first time, including Estro, MONO,
Duddell’s, Louise, and Ando, marking a significant achievement for
the Group. Three of our restaurants have been ranked on the year’s
Asia’s 50 Best Restaurants, with MONO ranking #41, And 6, and
Estro at #61 and #62, respectively. The three restaurants have also
been honoured to be rated among the Tatler Dining 20 list, with

MONO receiving “Restaurant of the Year” and “Best Service” awards.
Ando, MONO, Estro, and Duddell’s have all been awarded South

E 3 JEI)

REBEEE—RANLERER EREEE
HBIH - HE2023F12A3TBLEFE A%
ERNKEE N \ZmEERE aE(HE0e
#8] - [ Ando ] » [ Louise ] ~ TMONO ] -
[ Estro] [ 22 Ships] * [ Mak Mak ] &
[ Chachawan] - BB E TR Z LA EE
#oRNEEBAA - BTN EL R EREE X
FBGEBEFEREASMBARR - it - K
SEEBRBREFRNBRE ©

AEBRAFERNSHEEMENKRE  EE
2218 - NEE A RERE [Estro] ~ [MONO | »

[4ZF& 8] - [Louise ] M Ando | ¥ =&
REFKREN—EERE  RASEN—EE
R - REB=MEEE [ M50K&
£4 ] (Asia’s 50 Best Restaurants) @ H
[MONO | #E & % 414L - [ Ando | HE & 26117
K [Estrol BER #6211 - % = EBRKALLF]
[ Tatler Dining 20 fd & { & E& | (Tatler Dining
20)B 88 - HAF [MONOJ R E[FEREEE]




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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China Morning Post’s 100 Top Tables award, a guide that features
100 of the best fine dining restaurants within Hong Kong and Macau.
MONO has also championed the Sustainability Hero Award this year.
Additionally, And 6, MONO, Estro, Louise, Duddell’s and Chachawan
have been ranked on this year's OAD 2023 Asia Top Restaurants list.
These awards are a testament to the Group’s commitment to quality,
innovation, and its relentless pursuit of excellence.

Duddell’s and Chachawan celebrated their 10th anniversary with a
series of anniversary happenings. Due to the return of Art Basel in
Hong Kong, business in March has increased due to private events at
our venues. Furthermore, with the reopening of borders for business
at Duddell’s airport outpost has performed exceptionally well with
popularity among locals and tourists. Despite the challenging
economic environment, the Group will continue to take conservative
and prudent business strategies in order to maintain sufficient cash
flow and explore other business opportunities to achieve maximum
return.

Outlook

Even though Hong Kong's food and beverage industry has not fully
recovered post-pandemic and followed by the subsequent economic
downturn, we remain optimistic about its gradual recovery in 2024,
driven by an anticipated increase in tourists visiting Hong Kong. We
will continue to adapt to the changing landscape and provide
exceptional dining experiences to our guests.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$278.5 million (2022: HK$217.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$61.5 million or 28.4%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year which was a
result of the loosening of certain social distancing measures and
immigration policies at the end of 2022. The revenue of “Duddell’s
Hong Kong Airport”, one of the restaurants of the Group, has
resumed operations since late November 2022 and increased revenue
of approximately HK$56.6 million compared with last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT kT

Raw materials and consumables used

Raw materials and consumables used by the Group include, but are
not limited to, vegetables, meat, seafood and frozen food etc. That is
one of the major components of the Group’s operating expenses
which amounted to approximately HK$74.1 million and HK$60.7
million for each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
respectively, representing approximately 26.6% and 28.0% of
Group's total revenue for the corresponding periods. Such decrease
was mainly due to the cost margin of “Duddell’s Hong Kong Airport”
being maintained steadily at around 22.6% which is lower than the
average compared to other outlets.

Fit P R 41 %t e #E 4

RNEBFTA RV R REM BIEETRATRE
A BERLSREME - WARERKLE
AR EZAKI D 2 —  REZE20234F
N2022F 12 A31BIEFESFHRNAE
TANBEBAETR60TEEET HAREEMA
B A 4258 4926.6% % 28.0% bR D £ &
AR BB RIZE S R & 5] B KA H)H =
R EEEL 22.6% KPR EAPIERNTFHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Staff costs

Staff costs represented one of the major components of the Group’s
operating expenses which primarily consisted of Directors’
emoluments, salaries and allowance, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other benefits. The staff costs increased by
approximately HK$11.3 million from approximately HK$91.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$103.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The increase was
mainly due to the relaxation of social distancing measures, absence of
unpaid leave in 2023 and business being resumed. Furthermore, the
re-opening of “Duddell’s Hong Kong Airport” in November 2022
increased salary costs by approximately HK$12.0 million.

Property rentals and related expenses

Apart from raw materials and consumables used and staff costs,
property rentals also represent one of the major components of the
Group’s operating expenses. Property rentals and related expenses
increased by approximately HK$12.8 million from approximately
HK$10.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately HK$23.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such increase was mainly due to the reopening of “Duddell’s
Hong Kong Airport” in November 2022 and the payable turnover rent
as property rental expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT kT

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$1.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing a decrease in loss by approximately
HK$17.9 million as compared with a loss of approximately HK$19.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in loss
attributable to owners of the Company was primarily attributable to
the increase in revenue and the improvement in cost margin.

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated
from operating activities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$41.6
million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: net current liabilities HK$50.7
million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
0.4 (2022: 0.4) and the Group’s gearing ratio calculated based on the
total debt (excluding trade nature balances, tax balances and
provision) at the end of the year divided by total deficit at the end of
the year was approximately -607.4% (2022: -2,349.4%). The negative
figure was mainly due to the Group having incurred a loss during the
year.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings are subject to variable
interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR or the
bank’s cost of funds. The weighted average interest rate is 6.59% per
annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 2.81% per annum).

The capital structure of the Company comprised ordinary shares only.
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 1,159,780,000 ordinary
shares in issue. Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million as at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$2.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not
have significant exposure to foreign exchange risk during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the
amount of HK$5.0 million was pledged as security for the Group's
banking facilities (31 December 2022: HK$5.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT kT

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to floating-rate bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits and non-interest bearing amounts
due from/to related companies and amount due to an associate. The
Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to non-interest bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2023, the maximum exposure in relation to credit
risk of the Group which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board
considers the credit risk of the Company is immaterial. The Group
trades with a large number of individual customers and trading terms
are predominately on cash and credit card settlement. In view of the
Group’s operations, the Group does not have significant credit risk
exposure to any single individual customer.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the
Group is limited because the counterparties are medium to large-sized
Hong Kong listed banks. The Group has concentration risk on its
liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances are
placed with one bank in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalent deemed adequate by

the management of the Group to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitment in respect of property, plant and equipment (31
December 2022: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed herein, as of the date of this report, the Group did
not have any future plans for material investments or capital assets,
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures in the coming year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF NEW
SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

Placing completed on 24 September 2020 (the
“Placing 1")

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on
7 September 2020 and 24 September 2020 in relation to the placing
of new shares under the general mandate.

On 7 September 2020, the Group and a placing agent entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Group appointed the
placing agent to procure altogether not less than six placees (who and
whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and not
connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within
the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of
171,910,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.08 per placing
share. The closing price for the Company’s shares on 7 September
2020 was HK$0.096 per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT kT

The Placing | was completed on 24 September 2020 with gross and
net proceeds of approximately HK$13.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.08 per placing share) and HK$13.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.077 per placing share) as set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 7 September 2020 and 24
September 2020. The Company intended to use the proceeds for (i)
developing the cloud kitchen business of the Group and upgrading
the sales channels of the Group, including “JIA Everywhere”, the
online/offline delivery platform of the Group; (ii) investing in potential
PRC or overseas food and beverage related investment opportunities;
(iii) developing new catering outlets of the Group and for brand
management; and (iv) loan repayment.
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Actual use of Unused total
Approximate net proceeds net proceeds
percentage of up to up to
Planned use of total net 31 December 31 December
proceeds proceeds 2023 2023
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12A318 12A318
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Use of net proceeds from the Placing | BREIFSREFEAR FERR BHEAL BERAZ FHE
HK$ million % HK$ million HK$ million
BEET % BERT BEET

Developing the cloud kitchen business and BREWEEEBRA
upgrading the sales channels HERBETAR 45 34.1% 19 26

Investing in potential PRC or overseas foodand & & R E 55N

beverage related investment opportunities BESKRAERELSE 25 18.9% 25 -
Developing new catering outlets ERMEHDE 1.2 9.1% 12 -
Loan repayment BEER 5.0 37.9% 5.0 -
Total @5t 132 100.0% 106 26

Placing completed on 18 June 2021 (the “Placing 11")

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on
25 May 2021 and 18 June 2021 in relation to the placing of new
shares under the general mandate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 25 May 2021, the Group and a placing agent entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Group appointed the
placing agent to procure altogether not less than six placees (who and
whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and not
connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within
the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of
134,280,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.135 per
placing share. The closing price for the Company’s shares on 25 May
2021 was HK$0.149 per share.

The Placing Il was completed on 18 June 2021 with gross and net
proceeds of approximately HK$18.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.135 per placing share) and HK$17.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.1301 per placing share) as set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 25 May 2021 and 18 June
2021. The Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) expanding
the specialty coffee business; (ii) developing casual dining business;
and (iii) investing in PRC and overseas food tech investment
opportunities.
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Use of net proceeds from the Placing Il RENFSREFERR HE ik BREAL ERRZ B

HK$ million % HK$ million HK$ million

BEAET % BEET BEAT

Expanding the specialty coffee business WA DM RS 9.0 51.4% 6.5 25

Developing casual dining business ERABERER 53 30.3% 53 -
Investing in PRC and overseas food tech RERHBREINRY

investment opportunities REREKE 32 18.3% 32 -

Total @it 17.5 100.0% 15.0 25

The Company intends to continue to apply the proceeds from Placing
I and Placing Il in @ manner consistent with that mentioned above and
it is expected that these proceeds will be fully utilized by 31 December
2024. The Directors will continue to evaluate the Group’s operations
and financial performance when applying the proceeds.
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Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (“Ms. Wan”), aged 50, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 21 August 2015, and is the
senior operations director. Ms. Wan resigned as the chairperson of the
Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February, 2024. Ms. Wan is
responsible for formulation of corporate development strategies,
execution of daily management and administration of business and
operations, and regulatory compliance. Ms. Wan obtained a higher
diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong Kong
Technical College in July 1996. Ms. Wan has approximately 20 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. From November 1996 to
April 2011, Ms. Wan worked at Gaia Group. She served Va Bene
Ristorante from November 1996 to February 2001. Ms. Wan worked as
an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante from March 2001 to March
2008. Her last position was operations manager of Gaia Group. During
her office in Gaia Group, Ms. Wan was primarily responsible for
purchasing, staff hiring, manager and staff training, menu planning and
the daily operations of eight restaurants in Hong Kong and two
restaurants in Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Wan was also awarded “Most
Influential Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong” by APAC Insider
in 2018.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kong Linglei

Mr. Kong Linglei ( “Mr. Kong"), aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 9 February, 2024. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the
chairperson of the Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February,
2024. Mr. Kong began his career as a TV food show host and
producer. In 2008, Mr. Kong became an artist managed by Hunan
Television (341 F &7 #%) and was then transferred to the production
team in 2012 during which he took part in the production of the
television program “Great Fun in Hunan” (& &7 47 5t). In 2015, Mr.
Kong produced his own food program named “What to Eat” (R & x
R @IZ 11 ) which integrated the use of we-media and online video
channels to generate revenue through online traffic monetization.
From January 2017 to December 2022, Mr. Kong served as the
general manager of Hunan Province Fuoershite Network Technology
Co., Ltd.* (Him & B R ET R A4 B AR5 B R 2 7)) which is
principally engaged in mobile apps software development and
e-commerce platform business. From June 2018 to December 2023,
Mr. Kong served as the general manager of Changsha Xunjue
Catering Management Co., Ltd* (EX BN BEREE AR QA A])
which operated franchised restaurants under a renowned local
restaurant brand “Huogongdian”* (" A= & ") in Changsha. From
August 2022 to December 2023, he also served as the deputy general
manager of Changsha Tianxiangfu Catering Services Co., Ltd.* (&%
KMFTE B R A A]). Mr. Kong graduated from Zhongyuan
Specialty Institute of Technology (81 # [R 32 T E{& &%) majoring
in business administration in July 2006 and completed an EMBA
Distinct Director Advanced Course* (j& X EMBA T &2 S8 H
= A& I8 B ) offered by the BeiQing Institute of Economics and

Management* (1£)5 48 & = E M 5Tkt ) in August 2022.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXNEREEERE

Mr. Liu Enyu

Mr. Liu Enyu ( “Mr. Liu”), aged 39, was appointed as a non-
executive Director and chairman of the Board on 9 February, 2024.
He was also appointed as the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee on 15 February, 2024. Mr. Liu completed an advanced
program on market risk management for entrepreneurs (1t R K2R
BOESURB ISR S RIS at the Peking University and an
advance program of corporate compliance management at China
University of Political Science and Law (R BIBUA KBS R E R
SRS IE) in November 2023 and July 2023, respectively. Between
October 2017 and December 2021, Mr. Liu served as the chief
operating officer of Hunan Xinfurong Catering Management Co.,
Ltd.* CH R T = A& RE I B R 2 7)) where he was in charge of
brand management and operations. He has been serving as the chief
operating officer of Changsha Tianxiangfu Catering Services Co.,
Ltd.* (Y X MFEEK B A 7)), a company principally engaged in
catering business in the PRC since July 2022. In September 2022, Mr.
Liu has been appointed as the vice director of the Young Lives
Foundation Commission of the Hunan Province Health and Charity
Foundation* R AZE S ELVFREZEEASEZ ) for

a term of three years.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Peng Ben

Mr. Peng Ben ( “Mr. Peng”), aged 34, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 9 February, 2024. Mr. Peng is the sole director
of Central Power Group Limited, which is also 51% owned by Mr.
Peng. He served as the general manager of Sino-Market Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (F M 1T & B AR A &), a company primarily
engaged in engineering, consultancy and project management, from
August 2015 to December 2017. In 2020, he founded Hunan
Xiangdu Nongchuang Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd.* (4 F 4 &P
BEEERFERADQA), a company primarily engaged in the
business of agricultural technology development and consultancy
services, where he also served as the executive director from March
2020 to July 2022. In October 2022, Mr. Peng completed the EMBA
Distinct Director Advanced Course* (j& A EMBA T &2 S8 E
= A& I8 B ) offered by the BeiQing Institute of Economics and
Management* (b)) & E = Z W FTht). In April 2023, he founded
Changsha Yunshen Technology Co., Ltd.* (EAEZ R AR & T
‘A |]), a company primarily engaged in the provision of software and
information technology services. Mr. Peng is currently the general
manager of Changsha Aojiaohuola Catering Services Co., Ltd.* (&4
A BB 8RR 75 B BR A 1) and Changsha Tianxiangfu Catering
Services Co., Ltd.* (£ XM T E K A R A 7)) which are both
principally engaged in the catering business in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXNEREEERE

Ms. Ma Lina

Ms. Ma Lina (“Ms. Ma”), aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 February, 2024. She was also appointed as
the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and the member each
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee on 15 February,
2024. Ms. Ma completed a diploma in business administration at Beijing
Oriental College (1t RER 77 #HEEET ) in July 2008. Between May 2009
and December 2012, Ms. Ma served as the hotel catering business
director at Hunan Jinmao Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* (8 & <& /%5 J&
EI2HPRAA]) and latterly, as the general manager of operations from
December 2012 to December 2014. In 2016, she founded Xinkongjian
Environmental Protection Materials Co., Ltd.* (ZBZ=REIREME AR A
A]), a company principally engaged in the industry of environmental
decoration materials, where she served as the general manager from
March 2016 to December 2017. From May 2018 to December 2020, she
served as the sales director of Changsha Lanxing Bio-Technology Co.,
Ld.* (RAWEEMEHLER A F]), a company principally engaged in
food and beverage retail and production, and has latterly served as its
chief operating officer since December 2020. In December 2022, she
founded Zhimeng Zhiku Sports Group Co., Limited (EB E B2 B &
HBRAF]), a company principally engaged in education training and the
sale of sports equipment, where she served as its vice president since
April 2023.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Mao Xiaobi

Ms. Mao Xiaobi ( “Ms. Mao”), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 February, 2024. She was
also appointed as the member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February, 2024
respectively. Ms. Mao obtained her bachelor’s degree in Library and
Information Studies (B & 15 ¥§ & %) from Central China Normal
University (Z£ /R AT #3 K £2) in 1984. Prior to that, she obtained her
college degree in catalysis from Hunan Changling Petrochemical
Vocational and Technical College* (#7284 M E42) in July 1981.
In 2001, she founded Changsha Jialin Industrial Co., Ltd.* (&% = #k
HE ¥ AR A a)), acompany principally engaged in catering
management and the wholesale of construction materials in the PRC,
where she has served as its executive director since July 2001.

Since 2004, Ms. Mao has been actively involved in public welfare
affairs and is currently a member of the council of Hunan Province
Xixin Charity Foundation* (B A A L AmE S IR E). In 2022,
she founded Hunan Yudian Wines Co., Ltd.* (@ 8B EGR A
Al), a company principally engaged in the manufacture of wine,
beverage and tea, where she has served as its executive director since
September 2022. Ms. Mao has also been the chairlady of the board
of directors of Hunan Chuanghonglide Technology Group Holdings
Limited* (i BB L E R &S E R 5 AR 2 7)), a company
principally engaged in the industry of scientific research and technical
services, as well as the sale of various products, including but not
limited to mechanical and electronic products and new energy vehicle
related products, since March 2023.
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Ms. Deng Yongling

Ms. Deng Yongling ( “Ms. Deng”), aged 35, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 February, 2024. She was
also appointed as the chairperson of the Audit Committee and the
member of Legal Compliance Committee , Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee on 15 February, 2024 respectively. Ms.
Deng obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business management from
China Central Radio and TV University (FR R EIEE R AZ) in 2012,
In 2016, she obtained her certificate of accounting profession issued
by the Changsha Finance Bureau. She possesses the accounting
qualification (intermediate level) (& &t & #%) issued by the Human
Resources and Social Security Department of Guangdong Province in
2017. Between February 2007 and July 2012, she served as the
accountant at Dongguan Baoshengwei Plastic and Metal Products

o, Ld* (REEBRHRZRBRASYERERAA)
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of construction and

, a company

metalware products. Between August 2012 and October 2016, she
was the head of finance at Dongguan Jingsheng Electronic
Components Co., Ltd.* (R BEZEFHMEBRAA), a
company that focuses on the manufacturing of computers and
electronic products. Between November 2016 and October 2020, she
served as the financial manager at Hunan Zhuji Huangpu Big Data
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B AR EIH AR BERFE AR AQA), a
company principally engaged in information technology and
transmission services. Since December 2020, she has served as the
finance manager at Hunan Luzhou Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (4
EAEMNEEREAERAF

provision of information technology and software development

), @ company principally engaged in the

services, as well as the sale of various products including but not
limited to food, daily necessities and utility products.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group is committed to establishing and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance and adopting sound corporate governance
practices. The Company's corporate governance practices are based
on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound
corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of the
Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders’ interests.

Except for the deviations from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
(as defined above), the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the year under review.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Wong Pui Yain is both the
chairperson of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Ms. Wong's role in day-to-day operations and
management of the Group since 2015, the Board believes that it is in
the best interest of the Group to have Ms. Wong taking up both roles
for effective management and business development. Therefore, the
Directors consider that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance and the Board is of
the view that this management structure is effective for the Group’s
operations and sufficient checks and balances are in place. The Board
will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of the
chairperson and the chief executive officer at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstance of
the Group as a whole.

Ms. Wong Pui Yain resigned as the chairperson of the Board on 9
February, 2024 and ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the "CEQ") on 15 February, 2024. Mr. Liu Enyu has been
appointed as the chairman of the Board on 9 February, 2024. Mr.
Kong Linglei has been appointed as the CEO on 15 February, 2024.
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In connection with the above changes, the Company fully complied
with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, i.e .the roles of
chairman and chief executive was separated by the Company since 15
February, 2024.

Our Purpose, Values, and Strategies

By recognising the importance of stakeholders at the Board level and
throughout the Group, we strive to create values to the stakeholders
through sustainable growth and continuous development.

The Group has set out the purpose, values and strategies to provide
guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as well as the
business activities. Detail set out in the “Chairman Statement”.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its
business strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions
to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken to respond to
the changes and meet the market needs to foster the sustainability of
the Group.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give true and fair view of the
Group. The Directors are aware of the Group's net current liabilities of
HK$41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 and these
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Further discussion on this issue has been set out in the note 3(b) to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

A statement by the Independent Auditor about its reporting and its
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 122 to 128 of this Annual Report.

The key responsibilities of the Board include the formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets and the
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and the responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees of the Company. Further details of the Board committees
are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting
the success of the Company by providing direction and supervision of
the Company'’s business and affairs, and the ultimate responsibility for
day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
management. To this end, periodic financial and operational
information are provided to the Board for assessing the performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries. For significant matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board, the management must report
back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company. The management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group and for providing the
Board with updates in a timely manner, including giving an
assessment of the Company’s performance and position to enable the
Board to discharge its duties.
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The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, performing the
corporate governance duties as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of

the CG Code, which include:

(a

developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report.

As of the date of this report, the Board is comprised of seven

Directors, including two executive Directors, two non-executive

Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, and the

Directors’ details during the year and up to the date of this report are

set out below.

Executive Directors

Ms. Wong Pui Yain (resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry
Mr. Kong Linglei (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Enyu (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

Mr. Peng Ben (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric (resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam
(resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony
(resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Ms. Deng Yongling (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
Ms. Mao Xiaobi (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
Ms. Ma Lina (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

All Directors have appropriate professional qualifications and/or
substantive experience and industry knowledge. The Board
composition as a whole reflects an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements
of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has the
requisite accounting professional qualification. With more than one-
third of the members of the Board being independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has a strong independence element in terms of
its composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgment
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of
interests and management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company are duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 28 of
this report. There are no family or other material relationships among
members of the Board.
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Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015
and was re-designated as an executive Director, the chief executive
officer and the chairperson of the Board on 23 January 2018. Ms.
Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015
and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018.

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is
also responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and is
responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are
responsible for the implementation of the business strategies, policies
and objectives set out by the Board and are accountable to the Board
for the overall operations of the Group. These functions and
responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairperson and the chief executive should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year, Ms. Wong
Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Board, was responsible for overseeing
the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations
of the Group are delegated to another executive Director, Ms. Wan
Suet Yee Cherry, and the management of the Group is responsible for
different aspects of the business.

Ms. Wong Pui Yain resigned as the chairperson of the Board on
9 February, 2024 and ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ") on 15 February, 2024. Mr. Liu Enyu has been
appointed as the chairman of the Board on 9 February, 2024.
Mr. Kong Linglei has been appointed as the CEO on 15 February,
2024.

In connection with the above changes, the Company fully complied
with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, i.e .the roles of
chairman and chief executive was separated by the Company since 15
February, 2024.
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Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr.
Wee Keng Hiong Tony resigned as the independent non-executive
Directors on 15 February, 2024.

Ms. Deng Yongling, Ms. Mao Xiaobi and Ms. Ma Lina was appointed
as the independent non-executive Directors on 9 February, 2024.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent
non-executive Directors serve an important function of advising the
management of the Group on strategy development and ensure that
the Board maintains high standards in financial and other mandatory
reporting as well as provide adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a
whole. They also participate in the Company’s various committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal
compliance committee (the “Legal Compliance Committee”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of independent
non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent view and judgment at Board meetings;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.
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The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategies and
policies through independent, constructive and informed comments.
They benefit the Board and the Board committees by their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation in the meetings of the Board and
the Board committees.

In addition to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman met with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his or her independence
in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and therefore,
considers each of them to be independent.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirement as set out in the CG Code, which is summarised
below.

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing
the composition of the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All Board members’ appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture, ethnicity, educational background, professional experience,
knowledge and skills.
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Board Diversity Policy

It also sets out the Board’s commitment to gender diversity and other
diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity on
the Board.

During the year 2023, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to ensure that its composition
complies with the GEM Board Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate
mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant to the
Company’s strategy, governance and business, and contribute to the
Board's effectiveness and efficiency.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate
governance report every year and the Nomination Committee
oversees the implementation of the Board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

As at 31 December 2023, an analysis of the Board composition based
on the range of diversity perspectives is set out as follows:

ALl Al N

ﬁ:\%ﬁ\m B S

EEESUBE

ZBRMIAEESURNAEMR T E A RE
i AN [R] B T 2 B0 % AL PV B0 s - S 0A
EZgEENIBEREREE -

R2023F  REZBERBER TEFSNEE
ABAMZ M - URERAMANT S GEM £

/\E

A R BR BN B ES ORI MK A
e BKRANZEUENEEAS XA

EEENMAOMBEIEL TR

RARBFAELEER
B IREEERERE
Wit - REZEEKE
MEEsT BRESSRE
gE-

THREESEMA
B Z T e &R

E>~£Hﬂ+%%*

T s HEH
BiECHES

=&
A
@
=

BE:
fE&]

M2023F12A31B  =FeMEAKIRZ T
fb&lE A EEN D TH T ¢

Number of Years of
Directors Gender Designation Age Group  Group Skills and Knowledge
YN | 5 B FRAR BBFHE  HEAAR
Administration and business management
Female Executive Directors TBRIBER
2 e
z HNITES
<30 Development strategy and marketing management
ERRE MG EHER
over5
BiB5F Internal Control and Risk Management
Independent
Male o AP E 2 R b B IR
3 o Non-executive Directors
” BUFHTES 45-60

Financial investment management

MBERREER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERME

Each of the Board members possessed different skills and knowledge,
including business development strategy, marketing management,
financial management, administration and business management,
investment development management, etc. The Board is characterized
by significant diversity in terms of gender, age, designation, length of
service, skills and knowledge.

The Nomination Committee undertook a comprehensive review,
considering the gender, age, tenure, cultural/educational and
professional background, skills, knowledge and experience of each
Director, as well as the structure, composition, size, commitment and
independence of the Board.

The Nomination Committee was of the view that the existing Board
was satisfactory and effective in terms of its size, structure,
composition, commitment, independence and diversity. The
Committee concluded that, in order to support board succession
planning and long-term growth, the Board will require expertise in
technology and digital media, finance and accounting, risk
management, and environmental, social and governance (ESG)
matters in future. Gender diversity should also be taken into account
in Board refreshment and succession planning.

As at 31 December 2023, the workforce (including senior
management) comprised of 56.3% female and 43.7% male, which
the Board considers to reflect that a gender equality principle has
been adhered to by the Group.

The Group is determined to and will continue to maintain gender
diversity and equality in terms of the board and the general
workforce.
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The articles of association of the Company (the "Articles”) provide
that at each annual general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years.

All of the Directors, including both the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors, are appointed for a specific
term. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three
years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving at least one month’s notice in
writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles and, at each AGM
of the Company, the Directors will retire from office by rotation but
will be eligible for re-election.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS AND COMPANY
SECRETARY AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the
Directors will receive updates on the GEM Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the latest development of the
Group's business and are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop their knowledge and skills.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have
participated in continuing professional development (“CPD"). All
Directors have provided the Company with their records of training
received for the year. A summary of their records of training is
provided as follows:

EERQFMEFIIREEE
FER

EERIIRERERE

BEFZENESFHEZERESE2E  IE
ARFREMBOFEEN - Hig ﬁ%h
BEEGEM R A AR HMEERTE
*m%%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁl%ﬁmmﬁﬁﬁvl
TUEBZ2HEBBEEXEE  UEERSED
Hs M RE - RELZE2023F 12 A31 B ILHF
ERN ZEFCR2HEBEEERE ((FEEXE
BRE]) FEEZEZNERAAQARHESN
REREZHFIAL S - 185015940 8
ZT

Directors Types of CPD Subject of CPD
BHEEE HEE¥E

5= BRESR BRAR
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(MFEET) (PfF5E2)

Executive Directors

HITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain =EfMAE L L A, B

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry BEEZ LT , A, B

Independent non-executive Directors

BIFHITES

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric REBSEE . A B

Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam %t & 1,2 A, B

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4 , A B

Note 1: fHEE 1 -

1 Attending in-house briefings/trainings, seminars, conferences or forums 1 HEABENE B #EE e R

b

2 Reading newspapers, journals and updates 2 BIERE T REMEH

Note 2: MizE2 -

A.  Businesses related to the Company A BEARQFBBRER

B.  Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards B. AP EBRKAMA - gEr<FAl

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
FERKREBERIAR/ - =F5F
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Board Meetings

The Board holds at least four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Additional meetings would be arranged, if and
when required. The date of each meeting is decided in advance to
enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person. For those
Directors who are not able to attend these meetings in person,
participation by telephone conference is available.

To ensure that all Directors are properly informed about the matters
to be discussed at each regular Board meeting, documents in relation
to the regular Board meeting are sent to each Director at least three
days prior to the meeting.

During the year 2023, the Directors made active contributions to the
affairs of the Group and five Board meetings were held to consider,
among other things, various transactions contemplated by the Group
and to review and approve the quarterly results, interim results and
annual results of the Company.

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. At least 14 days’ notice should
be given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters
considered and decisions reached at the meetings are duly kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by the
Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable ZEZE&XHEBERMAEEE TERAIFEER
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board ZEARBAEZC L HUBZEZESCENE
meeting or Audit Committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised 23X BFEFLEBEEZUFEEMNEBARQF
of the latest developments and the financial position of the Company #5311 B I B 75 AX S0 30 (3 15 18 55 /] 1B 40
and to enable them to make informed decisions. TERFE °

Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board TXREHINEEN2023FHERRBAFAE
Committee meetings in the year 2023 are set out in the following EEE&NEELZESEHMES
table:

Number of meetings attended/held

LR/ BIEERY
Legal
General Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
ERER
RRAE Ex® ERZEE® FMZEe REZEE E3=4-4
Executive Directors
HITES
Ms. WONG Pui Yain 1n 5/5 - n n "
BfARL
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry n 5/5 - - - -
BEETL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 17 5/5 4/4 " 1”1 171
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 4t &
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric 0/1 5/5 a/4 - 1n -
REREE
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony 171 5/5 4/4 " - 7

WEE Keng Hiong Tony % 4
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Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may have affected the Group’s business, including those changes
to relevant rules and regulations, and are able to make further
enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related
materials. A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board has
also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional
advice in performing their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage to
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against the Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage and amount are reviewed on an
annual basis.

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee, with delegated
powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Each of the committees of the Company has been established with
written terms of reference.

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the
Company'’s website.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings
shall be held not less than four times a year and the external auditor
may request a meeting if they consider that one is necessary.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors: Ms. Deng Yongling (Chairperson), Ms. Mao Xiaobi and Ms.
Ma Lina (all were appointed on 9 February, 2024)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop and review the
policies of the Group, and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

Audit Committee

During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held to
review and approve the financial results of the Group, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted, risk management and
internal control systems, the scope of non-audit services provided by
the external auditors and its independence, and financial reporting
matters (in conjunction with the external auditors for the audited
results). The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments
adopted by the Group and, to the best of its ability, assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor’s
remuneration, the independence of the auditor, BDO Limited
("BDO"), and recommended the Board to re-appoint BDO as the
Company’s auditor for the year ending 31 December 2023, which is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that
applicable accounting standards and requirements have been
complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January
2018 in compliance with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Ma Lina (Chairperson), Ms. Deng
Yongling and Ms. Mao Xiaobi (all were appointed on 9 February,
2024).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include without
limitation: (a) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and the
senior management of the Group and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policies; (b) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and (d) considering and approving the grant of share
options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option scheme
conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the Company on 23
January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by
reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also
considers individual Director’'s competence, duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group in determining the exact
level of remuneration for each Director.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held to review the structure and remuneration policy of the Group
and to approve the remuneration package of the Directors. The
emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee according to the Directors’ respective responsibilities,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions and
recommended the Directors’ remuneration package to the Board's
approval.

Senior Management’s remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Group’s Senior Management including
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 falls within the
following bands:

FHWEES

RAFEE FHEZEEERT - RERNMR
MARBERBLRFMBERARIEEST 2%
MEB-FHEZEERBEETSENAML
ERRBERERGHRYEESFHFIME TR
VEREEZHMTBAREZTSHE -

SREEE N FHM
HE2023F12A31BLEFE FAEES
REEE (BRES) INNHFMNEATEE
A

HK$ Number of individuals
BT AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 7T 5

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and the senior
management was based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other
merit payments are linked to the performance of the Group and the
individual performance of the Directors and the senior management.

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January
2018 in compliance with paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code. The terms
of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the
Company’s website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.
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The Nomination Committee consists of one non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Enyu
(Chairperson), Ms. Deng Yongling and Ms. Ma Lina (all directors were
appointed on 9 February, 2024).

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to (a) review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; (b)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; (c)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
(d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or reappointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy as well as
discussed matters regarding the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

Nomination Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
to review the structure, size, composition and diversification (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, review the policy
of Directors’ nomination related matters, assess the independence of
INEDs, make recommendations to the Board on the proposal of re-
appointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of a
new Director.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy on 20
September 2018. Details of the Nomination Policy are set out as
follows:

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

1. Reputation for integrity;

2. Accomplishment and experience in different industries;
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Commitment to the Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The

Nomination Committee has discretion to nominate any person as it

considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

1.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee or the Company
Secretary shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee,
and invite nominations of candidates from Board members, if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by the
Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information on the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and to
invite nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment period for
shareholders to make the nominations. The names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules
and regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in
the circular to shareholders.
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5. A shareholder can serve a notice to the Company Secretary
within the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect certain person as a Director, without the
Board’'s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the
shareholder circular. The particulars of the candidates so
proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a
supplementary circular.

6. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his or her candidature at
any time before the general meeting by serving a notice in
writing to the Company Secretary or Chairman.

7. The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may obtain independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary.

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23
January 2018. The terms of reference setting out the Legal
Compliance Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance
Committee, a meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional
meetings should be held if the committee shall so request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kong
Linglei (Chairperson), Ms. Deng Yongling and Ms. Mao Xiaobi (all
were appointed on 9 February, 2024). Please refer to the section
headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures
in the
Prospectus for further details of the principal responsibilities of the

— 1. Establishment of the legal compliance committee”

Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is
overseeing compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the
Group’s operations and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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During the year, the Legal Compliance Committee reviewed and is
satisfied with the compliance with laws and regulations relevant to
the Group’s operations and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
regulatory compliance procedures and system.

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
audited consolidated financial statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
ensuring that the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for each financial year are prepared to provide a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) and the applicable accounting standards. In preparing
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023, the Board adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments
and estimates. The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper
accounting records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the state
of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement of the
Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The auditor’s statement in their
reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report with the full text included in pages
122 to 128 of this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration for the
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
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the Group was as follows: (I

Type of services Amount
B 7% 28 5Bl Kok |
HK$'000
TET

Annual audit service for the year ended HZE2023F 12 A31HIEFENFE

31 December 2023 — BDO Limited BARTS — BB EEGRTAD

EHRAR AR 1,050
Non-audit services "¢ JESEE AR FE ) 221
Total #at 1,271

Note: Non-audit services include tax compliance services.

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors review the Group’s corporate governance policies and
compliance with the CG Code each financial year and comply with
the “Comply or Explain” principle in the corporate governance report
which is or will be included in the reports of the Company.

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all of the Directors complied with such required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other general
meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for
separate issues proposed at the general meetings. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after
each shareholders’ meeting.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors on relevant information
on the Group’s business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements.

(a) Significant Changes in the Constitutional
Documents

The Company has adopted the amended and restated Articles of
Association of the Company by special resolution passed on 12
June 2023 and effective on the same date. The amended and
restated Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

(b) General Meetings with shareholders
The Company’'s AGM will be held on 21 June 2024.
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Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
Shareholders also have the right to propose a person for
election as a Director, the procedures are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the
extent such information is publicly available to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the executive
Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters
within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairperson of the appropriate committee, and communication
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company, in writing to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong.

(a)

(b)

A
TEERBBRE

ARRRIFRAE

RIFAA FANEZERKBHFEAT
PRARBHREA (MAERARBR
RRELEFORNER) +20 2 —8ER
—BENLENER HEREBAES
SRARWERLERER  BRES
SAMBRERIAE  NREABEXR
RIERAZ EMEE ARASRNER
ZEREMEARNET - HRBRES
B-t+—HAR EFEREEHEZA
g AEEERALABTARKE
EE2BRATHAREETEREARAE
MELNMBEESEERKHARF R
HeBRRMARRLE - BALBEE
= BRRF A RALRE K AT U
EH -

MEESFLEA

BRAERAEEFANEEGERNLR
ANAFHER (RRNERAEKARE
ZeREBEANETENBAERIAR
AMTES SAHEEZEeRESR
EANEENEAEEEZREEME
B RSB AEEBEEMB (F
sz TR MEERF) BRXARQF
HEMNEEAR)  BHEWHARRE
ARARBEELZEBMER °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERME

(c) Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating to
the operations and the management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meetings. The requisition in writing
should be sent to the Company’s principal place of business at
Office No.5 on 22nd Floor, Universal Trade Centre, No.3
Arbuthnot Road,Central,Hong Kong. Shareholders who wish to
put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures set out in “Convening an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
the key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and the public investors. The Company updates its
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through annual, interim and quarterly reports. The
corporate website of the Company (www.xinxiangera.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

The Company has reviewed the shareholders communication policy
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2023 and considered that
the shareholders communication policy has been well implemented
and effective.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirements of
relevant laws, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the
shareholders if the Group is profitable, its operational environment is
stable and there is no significant investment or commitment made by
the Group. The Company'’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves, liquidity
position, future cash requirements and availability, restriction on
payments of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders,
the general market conditions and any other factor(s) that the Board
may consider appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend
policy are subject to the Board’s determination that the same would
be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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The Group has established a whistleblower policy. Whistleblowing
channels are published in all workplace. The policy is to facilitate
employees, partners and customers to report complaints and internal
malpractices to the Finance Department of the Company, who will
review, investigate and follow up these complaints. Once cases are
verified, investigation results will be announced within the Company
as warnings.

On 4 February 2022, Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina of CS Legend Business
Services Limited, an external services provider, has been appointed as
the Company Secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person
at the Company is Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Group
(until 9 February, 2024) and Mr. Peng Ben, the non-executive Director
(after 9 February, 2024), respectively

The Company Secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board’s policy
and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that the Board’s procedures and all
applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating communications among Directors as well as
with management.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company Secretary
undertook more than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may have affected the Group’s business, including those changes
to relevant rules and regulations, and are able to make further
enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related
materials. A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board has
also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional
advice in performing their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense.

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Group's systems of risk management and
internal control include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group'’s
objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
The division/department head of each core operating division/
department is accountable for the conduct and performance of the
respective division/department within the agreed strategies (which are
set by the respective head together with the Board) and reports
directly to the Board.
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The Group has in place a policy on the handling and disclosure of
inside information, setting out the appropriate internal control and
reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside information.
The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the handling and
dissemination of inside information to the executive directors and
management team who will maintain appropriate and effective
reporting procedures responding to the development or circumstances
of the Group in timely manner so that the Board can decide whether
disclosure is necessary.

In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to
various types of risks. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
following principal risks of the Group were identified and classified
into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance

risks.
Risk Areas Principal Risks
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Strategic Risks
market competition risk, reputation risk

2R AR [

Operational Risks
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Financial Risks
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Compliance Risks
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Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers’ taste;

BEE R

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

BRI RS

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

AR BRER

Risk related to occupational safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances

related to employment; changes of the GEM Listing Rules and relevant company regulations

and ordinances
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The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the
Group and it has delegated to the executive management, the
responsibilities to carry out the risk identification and monitoring
procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to enhance
the governance and corporate management processes as well as to
safeguard the Group against unacceptable levels of risks and losses.
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The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst
others, (i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise which
involves assessment of the consequences and likelihood of risks and
the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (ii) an annual review of the implementation of the risk
management plans and fine tuning of the implementation plan when
necessary.

During the year under review, the management outsourced its
internal audit and risk management function to an external
consultant. The external consultant reported directly to the Audit
Committee on all internal audit matters. The internal audit plan was
submitted to the Audit Committee for approval prior to the
commencement of the internal audit work. The Audit Committee
reviewed the internal audit and risk management report and
monitored the implementation of the improvements required on
internal control weaknesses identified. They also reported any
observations identified by them in the course of their work to the
Group, and satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the
Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing its effectiveness. Based on the
review of the Group'’s internal control systems, the Directors were
satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 were implemented
properly and that no significant areas of weaknesses were identified.

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavours to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the required practices and
standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
provides an overview of the initiatives, plans and performance of
XinXiang Era Company Limited (the “Company”, the “Group” or
“We", together with its subsidiaries) in Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG"”) and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable
development.

Reporting Period

This Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures
taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“Reporting Period”, “Year”, “2023").

ESG Management Approach

Being a pioneer in the luxury dinning industry, the Group strives to
provide the best dining experience and the highest food quality to
food lovers. As a company dedicated to sustainability and community
well-being, the Group is committed to protect the natural
environment, efficient use of natural resources (i.e., food ingredients
and energy) and social beings of the community. Such commitment is
achieved by complying with all relevant laws, regulations, and policies.

Reporting Scope

The Group is a regarded restaurant group in Hong Kong renowned
for its award-winning establishments that offer a diverse range of
cuisines such as Chinese, Spanish, Italian, French, Nyonya, and Thai,
as well as specialty coffee from various brands and themes. This ESG
Report focuses on the Group’s core business activities and gathers
information from internal sources of control. The Report encompasses
the Group'’s restaurants operating in Hong Kong, including its Hong
Kong office, as well as the following establishments: 22 Ships,
Chachawan, DUDDELL's (Airport), DUDDELL's (Central), Louise, Mak
Mak, MONO, Ando, and Estro.

During FY2023, 'Ramato’ and 'Agora’ ceased operations in August
and October 2023, respectively. Despite their closure, their ESG data
was collected and disclosed in the report to provide a comprehensive
overview of the Group's ESG performance.
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Reporting Framework

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Reporting Principles

During the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group has applied the
Reporting principles stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

o “Materiality” — A materiality assessment was conducted to
identify material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby
adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus for the
preparation of this ESG Report. The materiality of issues was
reviewed and confirmed by the Board. Please refer to the
sections headed “Engaging Stakeholders” for further details.

o “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along with
quantitative data disclosed in this ESG Report to explain any
standards, methodologies, and source of conversion factors
used during the calculation of environmental KPI.

o “Balance” — This Report aims to provide a holistic and fair view
of the sustainability performance of the Group and has not
omitted any information related to material ESG topics.

o “Consistency” — The approach adopted for the preparation of
this ESG Report was substantially consistent with the previous
year, and explanations were provided regarding data with
changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Report contains forward-looking statements which are based on
the current expectations, projections and assumptions of the Group
about the businesses and the markets in which it and its subsidiaries
operate. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance and are subject to market risk, uncertainties, and
factors beyond the control of the Group. Therefore, actual outcomes
and returns may differ materially from the assumptions made and the
statements contained in this Report.

Confirmation and Approval

This Report was endorsed by the ESG Taskforce and approved by the
Board in March 2024.

Contact and Feedback

Your feedback is valuable to our continuous improvement, and we
welcome any comments and suggestions you may have on this Report
or our ESG reporting in general. Please share any comments or
suggestions regarding the Group’'s ESG performance at
cs@xinxiangera.com.

BOARD STATEMENT & ESG GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

Oversight of ESG Issues

The Board of Directors (“Board”) bears the primary responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s ESG matters, encompassing the ESG
management approach, strategy, and policies. In order to effectively
manage the Group’s ESG performance and identify possible risks, the
Board, in collaboration with the ESG taskforce, conducts materiality
assessments as needed. These assessments aim to evaluate and
prioritize significant ESG-related issues, taking into consideration the
perspectives of our stakeholders. The Board establishes a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the efficacy of ESG
risk control and internal control mechanisms.
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ESG Taskforce

The Group has established an ESG Taskforce (“Taskforce”), comprised
of key members from different departments. The Taskforce plays a
crucial role in collecting pertinent information related to our ESG
aspects to prepare the ESG Reports. Reporting directly to the Board,
the Taskforce assists in identifying and assessing the Group’s ESG
risks, as well as evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
mechanisms. Furthermore, the Taskforce examines and assesses our
performance in various ESG-related goals and targets, including areas
such as environmental sustainability, health and safety, labor
standards, and product responsibilities. Aligned with the Board’s
directives, the Taskforce ensures the implementation of diverse ESG
strategies and policies.

The Group is dedicated to fostering a sustainable approach within its
ESG strategies to enhance performance in environmental protection
and social responsibility. Valuing the input from stakeholders, the
Group actively seeks to understand, respond to, and address the
primary concerns of various stakeholders through close
communication. To facilitate effective communication and incorporate
stakeholder feedback into sustainable management and ESG strategy
development, a wide array of communication channels has been
established.

When formulating operational and ESG strategies, the Group
considers stakeholders’ expectations through diverse engagement
methods and communication channels. These methods and channels
are outlined below:

Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern
BHE BEREEE

BE HERERIEA

AEEERYRE HEREARAIEA(T
YE4R]) - TE4AAHR B S HBINZOKER
B SERMORERE LekEREEMN
HEAERUGRRRE dgkEmEMS
ZHEZ - IR EERNESSER Wi
B#EN R AEENIRE g RERE
o M MBS IR M I B9 B U o AN - TYEAR
NEERFHERMERRAFEER  ZF
k#zz  BTEANRERETFSETREE
HtEREAEBEEREEFANKE R
BEEeER LFEEARRSERE g
K ERE A BRE RBUR BT

REEBRNREHRE HEREBHER
BIEAHER L WIS EAERBRE R
EEAFTENRE - AEEERBFMNENE
B FEREFEFNETYER BRTE-
CIERBATAFOENEZ@AEIEER A
TREBBUBFOHENREBEMNATFES
BRIER Mg RECBEBOGIE KM
ST ERANEBRRE

RETEERRE L REABKE &K
SEBERAZTN2EFANBBREZER
PENHE - ZEFALRBEMALNT

Communication Channels

Government/ Regulatory Authorities ®  Compliance with policies and
regulations
e QOperational compliance
BT, BB o ETHBEERD

o BHRE

e Routine reporting and disclosure
e Announcements

e Press releases

o flTTHRERWE

. D%

o HEEM



Stakeholders
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Possible Issue of Concern

RIE - g NERRS

Communication Channels

6 E BERIEE BERE
Customers e Food and service quality e Company website
e Delivery time e Phone and email communication
e Communication with staff
e Customer comment cards
ESS s BEmkiRBES NS FER
o THFE o TFELEHER
e HBTEM
s BFERR
Suppliers e Supplier management e Supplier assessment
e Customer service e Site visits
HEm o HERMERE o HEERETE
s TFR® o EMIHRE
Employees e Rights and benefits e Employee training
e Remuneration and compensation e Employee communication meetings
e Career development and training e Performance reviews
e Working hours e Employee handbook
e Occupational health and safety
e \Working environment
== o R RABAH o EEIEFI
o FHEHEMHE s EEEBER
o BREIRNMIEI o BAETE
o I{FRER o EEFM

Stakeholders and Investors

BREZEE

Community

el

o BixfEEEZRE
o TIRIRIR

e Corporate governance system

e Business strategies and performance

e Corporate transparency and
reputation

o BEERGIE

o EBEMEKRIR

o NEFBHEIEER

e Community environment

e Employment and community
development

e Social welfare

o HERIRE

e EREMRER

o HEREAH

Annual/Extraordinary general
meetings

Annual reports and announcements
Company website and email
BREBE FRIRE
FWMRENE

N A 48k K B E

Community activities
Employee voluntary activities
Community welfare subsidies
Charitable donations

AR EE

BEEBEY

A 1 4% 7 475 B

HERE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Material issues in this report refer to what may have a significant

impact on the Group's business operations or have an actual impact

on stakeholders. To identify and prioritize these issues, the Group

conducts a materiality assessment survey every year, presenting the

findings in the form of a materiality matrix.

The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

EEMTML
AHENEEMBBIRN A EBEERLES
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BRZEHEL ARYF  AREEERT
ETHTHERAS  AEBHEBHTR 25
BR -
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MATERIALITY MATRIX OF THE GROUP

High AEBEEEMIERE
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® @ 2
S ok v
3t ¥ AL
¥om
EEy
w wa'
git *
2 W& @ 26 @
{
Low IMPACT ON BUSINESS (relative important) Hi'gh
1% HEBORE (HYESH) =
1 Emissions - Eﬁglé:mi:zrz%rgonon’ 13 Customer Data Privacy Protection
. = SR SE é%
Tﬂzﬁy %H%g N %ﬂ’gﬁi%@ﬁ% %ﬁé#’#%i\lg?1%ﬂ
2 Waste Disposal 8 Occupational Health and Safety 14 Enggszglo;roperty
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BORE MRS RIE
3 Water Consumption 9 Development and Training 15 Technology Innovation
NKOBRE R IR R B
a Energy Consumption 10 E;er\c/zgtgggzrcmld and 16 COVID-19 Pandemic
BERLFE el S 2019 TS B 5% 1
5 Climate Change 1 Food Hygiene 17 Anti-Corruption
RARZ(E RmmfEsE R&EE
Green Supply Chain Management Customer ;at|sfact|on & Community Participation
6 %ﬁéﬁ%ﬁg%ﬁﬁ 12 Food Quallty 18 T‘ilﬁé/};ﬁ\
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Emissions

The Group is committed to environmental conservation and
minimizing the adverse effects of its business activities on the
natural environment. Placing paramount importance on
continuous improvement in sustainable performance, the Group
simultaneously strives for future business growth. The
establishment of ESG goals and the implementation of proactive
measures are key steps taken by the Group to mitigate any
negative impacts on the environment.

During the Reporting Period, there is no record of non-
compliance for environment compliance issues. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, including but not limited to Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance
and Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance.

Air Emissions

The primary source of air emissions for the Group arises from
the utilization of town gas in its F&B operations’ kitchens. The
emission of oily fumes from these operations can result in odors
affecting nearby neighborhoods. To mitigate emissions, the
Group has implemented measures aimed at reducing such
impacts. These measures include the installation of efficient
filtering equipment and the regular maintenance of ventilation
systems. Additionally, the Group strategically selects restaurant
locations in less densely populated areas to minimize the
influence on surrounding residents.

RIE - g NERRS
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During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following REREH - AN B ES ) EE R AR

exhaust gas emissions performance: LU

Unit
Indicator BE B 2023 2022
Nitrogen Oxides (NOXx) RE1¥ (NOX) kg

T 33.61 19.04
Sulphur Oxide (SOx) # A1 (SOx) kg

T 0.2 0.1
Particulate Matter (PM) FERLY) (PM) kg

T 0 0
GHG Emissions BEREBHERK
The consumption of electricity at the office as well as town gas MAEMNE N EFEARBZEREBHOER
consumption for the F&B operations are the major sources of HEEAEBEAZTREERNEER

GHG emissions of the Group. GHG emissions is stated as below:

R REREBERBRAOT

Unit
Indicator R B 2023 2022
Scope 1 — Direct GHG Emissions HEN—BERREREHN tCOe 446.87 252.78
o Town gas o BER ABZEREE
Scope — Indirect GHG Emissions HE - HEAZREEN tCO.e 1,535.46 1,531.35
o Purchased Electricity o BEMEN APZEIREE
o Purchased Town gas o BEMER
Scope 3 — Other Indirect GHG Emissions ~ #3E3 — &I =R 2 tCOse 26.39 40.81
R MBS REE
o Electricity generated from processing ¢ KKREEAMNE N
Freshwater
o Electricity generated from processing ¢ SSKEEELME N
Sewage
Total GHG Emissions BEREHRA tCOe 2,008.73 1,824.94
AB_EREE
Intensity HE tCO,e/mil rev 7.23 8.41

RE_B{REE
BEBTHRA




Note:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent
and was in reference to, including but not limited to, the
reporting requirements of the “GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, the “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the HKEX, the “Sustainability Report 2022" published by the
Hong Kong Electric Investments Limited, the “2022 Sustainability
Report” published by the CLP Power Hong Kong, ESG Report
2022 published by Towngas, Sustainability Report 2022 from
Water Services Department, Sustainability Report 2022 from
Drainage Service Department, and “Global Warming Potential
Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report (AR5), 2014.

Per million revenue is used for calculating intensity data, FY2023:
HK$278 mil, FY2022 is HK$217mil.

The Group is determined to reduce GHG emissions to cope with

the target of zero carbon economy in 2050 of Hong Kong, by

setting the target of 10% reduction in carbon emission intensity

by adopting holistic management plan and implementing

energy-efficiency plan over the next 10 years, with 2021 as base

year of comparison. Ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the

progress will be regularly reviewed for goal achievement.
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Sewage Discharge

The Group diligently adheres to the applicable sewage
regulations, demonstrating its commitment to water pollution
control. The Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong has granted a water pollution control license for the
Group’s F&B operations, further validating its compliance with
regulatory requirements. In order to mitigate water pollution,
the Group has installed adequate equipment to ensure that
sewage is appropriately treated before being discharged.

Indicator BE
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5K
AEEBBETEROITESR B8R
T H B KT R R G - BAERBR
EBCRARBEEREBRBEKSRE
B E—TREFENEIEREL -
BTBINBR REEELZRRHR
BARRS KRR A SR ZERRIE -

Unit
==K 2023 2022

Sewage Discharge T3 IKBER

B8
Kt

Intensity

mS
TR 31,742 49,687
m>3/per mil rev
S K
BEATEA 114 229

Waste Management

The Group complied with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.
354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when handling and disposing
of waste. The major types of waste generated from the Group’s
operations were waste cooking oil, food waste from the
Group's diners, and bottles from pre-packaged beverages.

Handling of Waste Cooking Oil (“WCO")

The primary waste generated from the Group’s restaurant
operations was waste cooking oil (WCO). In order to strengthen
the regulation and conservation of the environment regarding
the handling and flow of WCO, the Environmental Protection
Department has implemented administrative measures. These
measures involve the registration of eligible local WCO
collectors, processors, and exporters.

The Group has assigned qualified WCO collectors who are
responsible for the collection and recycling of WCO. The
collected WCO is then processed into biodiesel, a form of green
energy. This biodiesel is derived entirely from repurposed waste
oil and serves as a new source of sustainable energy.

By ERE

AEBREIE N EEBEYEETERA
PIE 354 BCEMREEGH) - NEE =
BEEANIBZEYREHR AKERE
ENRMEHRIARKBBRERR -
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Hazardous Waste

Due to the nature of its business, the Group did not generate any
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. However, the
Group has also formulated guidelines for the management and
disposal of hazardous waste. If any hazardous waste is generated,
the Group must engage qualified chemical waste collectors to
treat such waste to comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the F&B operations
recorded a generation of 440.5 barrels of waste cooking oil with
an intensity of 1.6 barrels/mil rev.

Non-Hazardous Waste (Applying “5R" concept)

The Group embraces the “5Rs” concept in waste management,
which extends beyond the recycling of waste cooking oil (WCO)
for biodiesel. This concept encompasses various phases of
operations, including food wastage and bottles from pre-
packaged beverages. Implementing portion controls is a crucial
step taken by the Group to prevent excessive food waste.
Recognizing that some diners may have smaller appetites, staff
members are trained to offer customers the option to take
leftover food as a takeaway, promoting a green lifestyle.

To minimize food wastage, the Group has implemented
inventory control measures. The procurement team is equipped
with operational manuals and receives training on food ordering
and processing guidelines, ensuring better inventory control and
reducing food wastage. In addition to managing WCO and food
wastage, the Group has proactively introduced measures to
minimize waste disposal. One significant source of waste comes
from pre-packaged beverages, such as still and sparkling water
bottles. To address this issue at its source, the Group has
introduced an environmentally-friendly solution in select
restaurants, including Louise, And &, and Duddell’'s — a tap
water filtering system called Nordag, which provides premium
water. This initiative is expected to achieve a significant
reduction in bottle waste in the long term.

RIE - g NERRS
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Waste management practices also extend to the Group’s office
operations in Hong Kong, where paper waste is a major
concern. To promote a paper-saving culture, the Group
encourages duplex printing, recycling used paper, and
discouraging the printing of unnecessary documents. These
efforts contribute to minimizing paper waste and fostering a
more sustainable office environment.
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BEYERERTEHREAEENETEDN
MAEEF RREVRIEFRE- A
BEMHMAX  AEEZBERD
B BIRREERR  WR DS EALE
I - R EB N BRI D MR E
Y R EEAAIRE MR AR -

Unit

Indicator BEE By 2023 2022
Non-hazardous waste mEREY) Tonnes

e Office Paper o MAEHK U7 1.00 1.17
Intensity 7E Tonnes/mil rev
g,

BEBITIA 0.004 0.005

Moving forward, the Group remains committed to continually
reviewing and monitoring its waste disposal and management
scheme as an integral part of its sustainable strategies. Waste
management policies have been formulated to effectively
handle the wastes generated from the Group’s operational
activities. The Group steadfastly complies with waste disposal
regulations, including but not limited to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), in order to
uphold responsible waste management practices.

Use of Resources

The Group's F&B operations rely significantly on town gas for
cooking purposes, as well as electricity and water for the day-
to-day functioning of its restaurants.

Energy Management

In response to the Updated Climate Action Plan 2050, the
Group has established a target of reducing energy consumption
intensity by 10% through a reinforced energy efficiency plan
over the next 10 years, using FY2021 as the base year for
comparison. Electricity consumption is a significant
decarbonization focus outlined in the Climate Action Plan for
Hong Kong, and the Group has implemented responsive
measures to align with local objectives.
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To minimize energy consumption, the Group has introduced
various initiatives. High energy efficiency equipment, such as air
conditioners and refrigerators with Grade 1 Energy Labels, have
been adopted. Energy-saving concepts are incorporated into the
interior design of the restaurants, including the use of LED
lights. Additionally, alarms and auto-closers have been installed
on walk-in cooler and freezer doors. Operational workflows
have been streamlined to reduce energy consumption through
improved communication and management practices.

The Group is committed to fostering a resource-saving culture
in the workplace and raising employee awareness of
environmental protection. Proactive measures have been
implemented to encourage staff to adopt green working
practices, such as minimizing unnecessary energy and water
usage, and diligently switching off lights and machines when
not in use.

The Group's energy consumption performance is as follows:

RIE - g NERRS
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Unit
Indicator BEE By 2023 2022
Direct Energy HEIR MWh
e Town Gas o KR KRB 2,333.96 1,332.25
Indirect Energy B MWh
e Purchased Electricity o BEMEN JKFL B 2,216.15 2,086.10
Total Energy Consumption EREREE MWh
JKFLEF 4,550.12 3,408.35
Intensity g MWh/mil rev
P

BEBITKA 16.37 15.71




Water Management

The Group's office water consumption is not included in this
ESG Report as the bill for water consumption is encompassed
within the property management fee. Despite the limited water
consumption in our offices, we actively promote behavioral
changes and encourage water conservation practices among
our employees. Environmental messages advocating water
conservation are prominently displayed in pantries and toilets to
consistently remind and raise awareness among our staff
members.

Given the nature of our business and our primary operational
base in Hong Kong, the issue of sourcing water that is fit for
purpose is not applicable to the Group. However, we remain
dedicated to fostering a culture of responsible water usage and
conservation within our organization.

Use Of Packaging Materials

The Group consumed significant amount of packaging materials
such as takeaway boxes and plastic bags, mainly attributed to
the takeaway service in the restaurant operations, to ensure
food hygiene and food quality. In recent years, the popularity of
food delivery platforms has surged, and an increasing number
of people have embraced the convenience of ordering takeout.
As a result, there has been a notable rise in the usage of
takeaway boxes and plastic bags.

To address this issue, the Group has implemented guidelines for
employees to minimize the usage of packaging materials and
has established recycling and reuse practices. Recognizing the
environmental impact, the Group has transitioned to consuming
recyclable and biodegradable packaging materials, aiming to
reduce the pressure on the natural environment.

During the Reporting Period, the disclosure of the actual
amount of packaging materials used is unavailable due to
fluctuations in demand. However, the Group is actively working
on developing a data collection system to accurately measure
and track packaging materials usage.
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Impact on the Environment and Natural
Resources

The Group pursues the best practices in environment protection.
Sourcing top quality food ingredients globally is an important
step for offering luxury dining experience to customers.
Excessive plantation and resources exhaustion will cause
negative impacts on the planet. The Group formulated
procurement manual to procurement team, as a guidance to
source ingredients from sustainable sources including Marine
Stewardship Council (MSC) certified, or those that are
organically farmed.

The Group has participated in donation to “Zero Foodprint”
which turning the atmospheric carbon into healthy soil carbon
through different farm projects. According to Zero Foodprint,
“Scientists has confirmed that 1% is enough for soil to save the
world from climate change”. Through different farm projects,
carbon emission is put down to the soil and reduce the impact
of climate change.

Indoor air quality in our restaurant is regularly monitored and
measured. By conducting regular cleaning of the air
conditioning system, we managed to maintain good indoor air
quality and filter out pollutants, contaminants, and dust
particles.

Climate Change

The Group’s F&B operations are closely tied to climate change
as ensuring a consistent supply of high-quality food is essential
for delivering a luxury dining experience. To promote sustainable
development, the Group conducts risk identification and
assessment related to climate change. Climate-related risks are
integrated into the enterprise risk management framework to
identify and mitigate potential challenges.
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Physical Risk

It is expected that global warming and extreme weather
includes drought, flooding, and continuous rise of temperature,
which will reduce vegetables and livestock supply. Increase in
cost of food is expected due to decrease in food supply caused
by climate change, which in terms reducing the revenue to the
Group. Climate change also limits the choices and quality of
food ingredients due to poor harvest under unanticipated
natural hazards, which places restriction on innovation of menu
design and choices of ingredients used. Transportation of food
supply is also heavily affected by extreme weather. Delivery of
specific ingredients will be blocked by flooding, implying that
there is a challenge to the Group on the launch of seasonal
menu promotion, which requires specific seasonal ingredients.

Transitional risk

The Group identified market risk of unstable food supply and
lower food quality caused by climate change. Global warming
will cause a change in pattern of precipitation event, micro-
climate, biodiversity, and gradual increase of temperature,
which is changing the ecosystem and food chain, such as,
warming New England are contributing to shifting lobster
populations, Pacific salmon are changing their migration
behaviours, the grapes ad growing season in California wine
country are being impacted and shortage of coffee over the
next few decades. The Group revenue could be adversely
affected by transitional risk.

According to the United Nations, the food sector accounts for
around 30% of world total energy consumption and for around
22% total greenhouse gas emissions. Restaurants will inevitably
be impacted by vigorous fluctuations in energy prices. The
future uncertainty of carbon tax that may also be a transition
risk.
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Opportunities due to climate changes

The Group recognizes the substantial impacts of global warming
and acknowledges the importance of risk identification in
understanding potential challenges. By incorporating ESG
considerations into its strategy development, the Group believes
that climate-related risks can be effectively mitigated.

Sustainable sourcing is implemented to reduce pressure on the
environment, the Group purchases Marine Steward Council
(MSC) certified ocean products, and sustainable meat sources
globally from suppliers which put ESG issues at top priority.
Procurement team does not only conduct sourcing in other
countries, but also sourcing high-quality food ingredients locally,
to reduce air and GHG emissions released by transportation.
Sourcing locally also ascertains the delivery of ingredients and
reduces pressure on food supply, smoothen seasonal menu
launch.

The Group proactively transforms risks into opportunities by
conducting analyses on dining and drinking habits to mitigate
market risks. Recognizing changes in customer preferences, the
Group has decided to expand its customer base through menu
enhancements. The introduction of new menu designs caters to
a wider range of dining habits, offering a diverse selection of
cuisine.

Furthermore, the procurement team actively seeks out sources
of fresh ingredients to minimize procurement challenges. The
Group also invests in upgrading its IT systems to streamline
workflows, leading to improved operational efficiency and
productivity. These efforts directly contribute to reduced
operating costs and a more sustainable use of natural resources
by the Group.

The Group remains committed to identifying climate-related
risks and opportunities and assessing their influence on
operational and financial returns. It is anticipated that
investments in technology and the expansion of the target
customer base will further enhance operational efficiency,
reduce costs, and drive revenue growth in the future.
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Employment

Employees are our valuable assets. We have developed
Employee handbook to govern the discipline, working hours,
leaves and other benefits of our employees, in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations.

To attract, motivate and retain experience staffs, we reviewed
their pay packages annually with prevailing market conditions.
Our full-time employees are entitled to maternity, paternity,
compassionate leaves, medical insurance, performance related
bonus and mandatory provident fund.

Social and recreational activities are arranged for the employees
in achieving work- life balance. We apply equal opportunity and
non-discrimination in recruitment, promotion and all other
aspects of our employment practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.
Such laws and regulations include but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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Gender
4 7l
Female Male
feqli:S BiE
44% 56%
Age Group
FiR4a R
Above 50
SOE’ZEAJ: Below 30
17% 30 T
38%
30-50
years old
30-50%%
44%

Geographical region
&

Hong Kong
EH
100%

RIARMEME T

Frotrr\]tlineta#d ' %?&?;i/\é
other sta ‘—I b

B R REARE

Employment Type
EREER

Part-time
FH
38%

Full-time
28
62%

By Employee Category
RETEHE D

Senior
Management

Middle

86% Management

FARERAR
6%
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As of 31 December 2023, the employment information is

shown below: LU
Percentage of
Number of employee
Employees breakdown
(“FY2023") ("FY2023")
EBEAH BE D LA
(M2023 81 1) (2023814 )
Total AT 380 100%
Gender Bl
Male S 214 56%
Female it 166 44%
Age Group FHRE
Below 30 30BRA N 146 38%
30-50 30-507% 169 45%
Above 50 508504 E 65 17%
Geographical region i E
Hong Kong B 380 100%
Employment Type EBEER
Full-time il 237 62%
Part-time FeE 143 38%
By Employee Category RETIERES
Senior Management EREEAB 31 8%
Middle Management RREEAE 23 6%
Frontline and other staff A& R H A B T 326 86%
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At 2023, the overall turnover rate of the Group was 54.47%.
The table below shows the employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region:
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R2023F  AEBEERBETIRAER
54.47% ° TRAINRIEMR - FHRE X

Fiscal Year BMBEE 2023 2022
Gender 5l

Male B 59% 64%
Female pega 48% 50%
Age Group FiRE

Below 30 30BR AR 58% N/A*
30-50 30-50 5% 54% N/A
Above 50 507 A £ 49% N/A
Geographical region ih &

Hong Kong BB 54% 56%

Note: The Turnover rate category has been re-classified this year

Health and Safety

The Group places a high level of importance on ensuring the
occupational health and safety of its employees within its
restaurant operations. The well-being of employees is always a
top priority. To this end, the Group has established a
comprehensive Health and Safety at Work Policy that provides
clear guidelines and promotes safety awareness, especially
within the F&B operation.

Employees are actively encouraged to report any accidents or
incidents through the internal reporting system. Such cases are
promptly assigned to the relevant departments and handled in
accordance with the Group’s standard procedures. Additionally,
a Health and Safety Committee has been formed to oversee
occupational risks and facilitate regular meetings with the
operations teams. The Group’s commitment to occupational
health and safety underscores its dedication to providing a safe
and secure working environment for all employees.
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Employees are required to attend health and safety training to
minimize work injury and severe cases, training content includes
first aid, fire evacuation and other emergency procedures during
initial training and refresher programs on a regular basis. During
the Reporting Period, the Group endeavours to minimize work-
related risks and did not identify any material non-compliance
regarding occupational safety and health-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Law of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded 54 lost days
due to work injury and zero case of fatality in the past three
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years.
Unit
Fiscal Year MFE By 2023 2022 2021
Fatalities due to work AN A Cases
[HES 0 0 8
Lost days due to work injury & L{518%k X # Days
PN 54 36 333
Training and Development FIRER

Delivering excellent and professional service standard is one of
the successful elements. To ensure employees are equipped
with sufficient knowledge in the F&B operation and customer
service industry, different training programs are assigned to
staff, to assure service quality of the Group.

To optimize resource allocation and enhance operational
efficiency, the Group provides role-specific training to employees
across various sections of restaurant operations. These training
programs cover a wide range of topics, including food
preparation and preservation, customer service, quality control,
and specific dietary requirements. By equipping staff with the
necessary professional knowledge for their respective roles, the
Group aims to prevent any misallocation of resources.
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The Group is committed to allocating training resources
effectively, ensuring that employees receive the appropriate
knowledge and skills through orientation training and ongoing
training programs. Career advancement is a key focus, and the
Group strives to enrich employees’ knowledge in their job tasks
through comprehensive orientation training upon joining.
Additionally, internal training sessions are conducted on an
ongoing basis, and external training opportunities are arranged
as needed.

As part of the onboarding process, all employees undergo a
4-hour orientation training on their first day of work. This
ensures a smooth transition into their roles. Continuous internal
training is provided to all employees, with external training
opportunities being arranged whenever necessary.

Labour Practice

The Group has zero tolerance and strictly prohibits the use of
child labour, forced labour and hiring of illegal immigrants in
our operations. Below measures have been taken to avoid these
illegal employment practices.

Prevention of child labour
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During the recruitment process, the human resources department will verify the

applicant’s identity documents and ensure that they have reached the minimum

age for employment.
PribsET
PR EF R o

REHEERET  ANERMBASKERBENGORERXM  BEREEDE

Prohibition of forced labour

ZibmHlsE T

Prevention of hiring of
illegal immigrants

it RAIEEBR

The Group specifies overtime compensation provisions in the Employee
Handbook. The Group carefully monitors the employee working time and
working schedule to ensure they work voluntarily and freely.
AREBAEREFMPETRMMEBERTE - AEBEEREEE TH TIERHEM
TR HREIEME BHMIE-

A Stringent recruitment screening procedure is adopted to ensure that all
recruited employees bear the necessary documents to work for the Group, such
as Hong Kong ID, proof of eligible working visa, the Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate, etc.
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XM PIMEBSNHE FERIERZER BEXLEHIEES -



In case of any illegal labour practice is discovered, the Group
will stop their employments immediately. Investigation will be
carried out subsequently and report the case to the relevant
authorities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Supply Chain Management

Achieving high level of service and sourcing quality food for safe
consumption is one of the Group’s ultimate goals. The Group
requires its suppliers to deliver services or products meeting our
quality standards. The Group has established a supply chain
management system, offering suppliers engagement policies to
procurement department for supplier engagement process. The
designated procurement staffs are responsible for supplier
selection, monitoring and reviewing, ensuring the efficiency of
the supply chain management.

For supplier selection process, the Group shall only purchase
from pre-approved suppliers who have passed the Group's
assessments. Suppliers with relevant certificates or those which
meet specific food standards, will be prioritized for engaging in
business relationship with the Group. The Group also conducts
supplier training and capacity building activities to strengthen
the communication with suppliers. Reputation of suppliers is
also one of the important selection criteria. Due to food variety.
each restaurant outlet may also have its own assessment for the
suppliers. The Group will normally choose the one with highest
reputation in industry. Chef also shares the responsibility of
quality procurement and responsible for checking the
ingredients during food preparation procedure. The Group only
serves food that passed the selection process and checked by
the Chef. Food supply that could not obtain a pass grade of the
Group are returned to suppliers and will affect the suppliers’
rating in our system.
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The Group understands that delivering consistent food quality
to avoid customers disappointment is essential. Regular
meetings and performance reviews with suppliers are conducted
for food quality assurance and performance review. Suppliers
who fail to fulfil the quality standard of the Group, would be
removed from the supplier list.
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Distribution of Suppliers is shown as below: HEFSMEMNT

Regions/FY WE, B E 2023 2022
Hong Kong BB 290 296
Overseas o - -
Green Procurement RERE

The Group implements green procurement to protect the
environment and conserves natural resources for sustainability
enhancement. To ensure marine ecosystem is conserved and
avoid marine resources being exhausted, the Group purchases
from sustainable sources whenever possible, such as Marine
Steward Council (MSC) certified ocean products and sustainable
meat sources around the globe. Continuous cooperation with
local farms to secure a sustainable and stable supply of safe and
fresh ingredients. The Group supports responsible farming
practices, by purchasing local, sustainable, and humanely
produced products. Sourcing locally to reduce air and GHG
emission generated by vehicles consumption. Ongoing effort
will be placed to develop sustainable food chain by the Group,
by taking consideration of ESG issues into procurement process.
Maintaining a healthy and balanced biodiversity through
sustainable consumption of natural resources.
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Product Responsibility
Dining Experience

The Group is committed to delivering a memorable dining
experience to its valued customers, characterized by high-quality
food and exceptional professional service. To stay attuned to
evolving customer expectations and foster innovation, the
Group maintains consistent communication channels with its
customers. This enables the Group to understand their
preferences and consider special dietary requirements related to
allergies, religious or personal beliefs, and more. Such valuable
insights guide the design of new menus that cater to a diverse
range of potential customers.

To ensure the highest service quality, employees undergo
professional training to equip them with the necessary skills to
deliver excellent service and handle customer inquiries with
proficiency. The Group provides comprehensive guidance to its
staff on how to effectively address and resolve guest complaints.
Customer complaints are handled systematically, with a clear
protocol in place. All customer complaints are to be addressed
by a senior staff member or restaurant manager. Additionally,
any significant customer complaints are promptly reported to
the Operations Directors for their attention and appropriate
actions. By prioritizing effective communication with customers,
providing professional training to employees, and implementing
a systematic approach to handling complaints, the Group strives
to maintain and enhance its service quality.
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Customer Safety and Food Hygiene

To maintain food hygiene and safety is the highest priority of
the Group's business strategy. The Group strictly complied with
all food safety-related regulations, including but not limited to
Cap. 612 Food Safety Ordinance in Hong Kong. Internal control
and risk management system are implemented to maintain high
standard of food hygiene. Employees are provided with food
safety and internal control guideline for food preparation and
food handling to mitigate food safety risks. To maintain
cleanliness in food preparation. The Group implemented
comprehensive measures regarding food safety and quality
control, including but not limited to the following:

o Cleaning of food preparation equipment frequently.

o Cleaning schedules are established to ensure regular
cleaning of freezers, ovens, stoves, microwaves, chopping
boards and knives.

o Staff are required to have the highest standard of personal
hygiene such as hand washing and using disposable glove
for food preparation.

] Freezer storage and temperature are set as correct
temperature to avoid food contamination and food
poisoning.

o Hot food must be held at optimum temperature during
transfer, display & service.

] Ensure quality and hygienic source of food ingredients
such as using portable water for ice making, using
pasteurized egg for dressing preparation, etc.

During the Reporting Period, no material products and service-
related complaints were received. No recalled cases of products
sold or delivered due to health and safety reasons have been
recorded.
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Technology Innovation

Recognizing the need to adapt to the challenges posed by the
COVID-19 pandemic and the economic instability that extended
into 2023, the Group made significant investments in
technology innovation to optimize restaurant operations and
enhance overall efficiency. As part of this effort, the Group
developed an efficient online ordering system and engaged with
delivery apps services. Furthermore, the Group embraced digital
marketing strategies, actively promoting its offerings across
various social media platforms. This digital presence enabled the
Group to connect with a wider audience, effectively engaging
with customers and showcasing its unique value proposition. To
further enhance operational efficiency, the Group accelerated
the process of digitalization across every step of its operations.
This involved implementing digital solutions and systems to
streamline processes such as inventory management, order
processing, and customer relationship management. By
embracing technology, the Group aimed to optimize resource
allocation, reduce manual efforts, and enhance overall
operational effectiveness.

Advertising and Menu Setting

The Group places great importance on the careful selection of
marketing materials that are shared with the public. This
approach is adopted to ensure that product descriptions are
accurate and avoid any exaggeration. The Group is committed
to adhering to responsible content practices in its marketing
materials, in full compliance with relevant regulations, including
but not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter
362 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained a
strong commitment to compliance in advertising and labeling-
related laws and regulations. No instances of material non-
compliance have been identified during this period. The Group
remains dedicated to upholding the highest standards of
integrity and transparency in its marketing practices, ensuring
that all materials accurately represent the products and services
offered.
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Customer Data Privacy

The Group respects customer data privacy and complies with
relevant data privacy regulations, including but not limited to
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “PDPO"), regarding data collection, data
processing, use of personal data and data storage. Data
collected will only be used for the stated purpose and
information will be kept confidentially. Employees
acknowledged that they should keep customers data
confidential during the business process, with reference to
relevant terms and conditions set out in employment contract
and internal policies. Employees are not allowed to disclose
confidential data to any third party, breach of such policies may
result in termination of employment without prior notice.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any non-
compliance with the PDPO.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights and set out the
Intellectual Property policy to comply with relevant regulation,
including but not limited to Cap. 528 Copyright Ordinance.
Intellectual Property Rights includes but not limited to patents,
rights to inventions, copyright and related rights, trademarks,
trade names and domain names. The Group will seek for the
approval from the inventor or creator for using their ideas, work
or trademarks which are covered by the IP Rights. Intellectual
Property Rights is included in the employment contract.
Employee should comply with the regulations. During the Year,
the Group did not record any material non-compliance with
intellectual property issues.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is resolute in fostering a culture of unwavering
commitment to ethical business practices and maintaining the
highest standards of integrity. It firmly upholds a zero-tolerance
approach towards corruption. To ensure compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “POBO"), the Group has developed a comprehensive
anti-corruption policy.
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In respect of the policy, clear guidelines of supplier due
diligence, segregation of duties, declaration of conflict of
interest are executed with proper record keeping. The employee
handbook clearly states the employees code of conduct,
including the responsibility of employees and misconducts such
as bribery, kickbacks or accepting any advantage from any
person, company, or organization having business dealings with
the Group, or any subordinate, are forbidden.

There were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during the
Reporting Period.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity, and accountability. As
such, the Group set out Whistle-blowing policy to encourage
employees reporting suspicious cases of misconducts, to prevent
harms to the Group or third parties.

This policy is intended to cover serious concerns that could have
an impact on the Group, including but not limited to the breach
of rules of conduct, policies or internal controls of the Group;
breach of legal or regulatory requirements; malpractice, fraud
and corruption, and miscarriage of justice.

Identity of whistle blowers will be kept confidential. Reports and
complaints received will be handled in a prompt and fair
manner. The Group will conduct investigation for reported
cases, which will be diverted to relevant regulators or authorizes
if needed. Such policy also aims at protecting whistle-blowers
from unfair dismissal, victimization, and unwarranted disciplinary
actions.
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Anti-Corruption Training

Enhancing employee awareness of anti-corruption practices is a
top priority for the Group. To accomplish this, regular training
sessions are conducted for all staff members. In a collective
endeavor to reinforce compliance awareness, the Group
consistently invites representatives from the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver informative
talks on anti-bribery measures. Additionally, during the
reporting year, the Group’s Directors actively engaged in anti-
corruption training, allocating 5 hours to deepen their
understanding of anti-corruption protocols and share option
scheme.

Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group gives back to the
community through different voluntary projects. To enhance
social harmony and strengthen social tie with the community,
ongoing effort has been contributed by the Group. Currently
1% revenue from Estro, MONO, and Ando is donated to “Zero
Foodprint Asia” and “More Good Foundation”, which is an
NGO running different farm projects and free hot meals, it aims
to achieve carbon neutral by putting the bad atmospheric
carbon back to soil and help combat global warming. The
Group also encourages employees to participate in voluntary
projects through donations and community services during their
leisure time. We keep on seeking ways for community
investments and improving communication with stakeholders
for their goals and needs, to achieve better resources allocation.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 22 February 2024 and the issue of the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands on 29 February 2024, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “Jia Group Holdings
Limited” to “XinXiang Era Group Company Limited” and the dual
foreign name of the Company in Chinese had been changed from
EREEBRAA to "HERFREBEBR QA" with effect
from 29 February 2024.

The Companies Registry in Hong Kong also issued the certificate of
registration of alteration of name of registered non-Hong Kong
company on 14 March 2024, confirming the registration of the new
English and Chinese names of the Company in Hong Kong under Part
16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. The principal activities of the Group
is the operation of restaurants in Hong Kong.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out on pages 129 to 131 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five years is set out on page 240 of this report.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Use of Proceeds from Placing
of New Shares under General Mandate” in Management Discussion
and Analysis, the Group had no definite future plans for material
investments and capital assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2023 are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to owners.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wong Pui Yain (resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry
Mr. Kong Linglei (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Enyu (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
Mr. Peng Ben (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric (resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam
(resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony
(resigned on 15 February, 2024)
Ms. Deng Yongling (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
Ms. Mao Xiaobi (appointed on 9 February, 2024)
Ms. Ma Lina (appointed on 9 February, 2024)

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, at least one-third of the Directors shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant to
article 111 of the Articles, directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
pursuant to Article 108. Accordingly, Mr. Kong Linglei, Ms. Wan Suet
Yee Cherry, Mr. Peng Ben, Mr. Liu Enyu, Ms. Deng Yongling, Ms.
Mao Xiaobi and Ms. Ma Lina shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Each of Mr. Kong Linglei, Mr. Peng Ben, Mr. Liu Enyu, Ms. Deng
Yongling, Ms. Mao Xiaobi and Ms. Ma Lina, who were appointed as
directors of the Company on 9 February 2024, has obtained legal
advice pursuant to Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on 9 February
2024 and has confirmed that he/she understood his/her obligations as
a director of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet the
independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

(a) Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant
service contract), which may be terminated by not less than one
month’s notice served by either party on the other. The
appointments are subject to the provisions of the Articles with
regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and
retirement by rotation of Directors.

(b) Non-executive Directors and Independent non-

executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from
9 February, 2024 (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letter of
appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month’s notice served by either party on the other. The
appointments are subject to the provisions of the Articles with
regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and
retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors’ fee,
none of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as a non-executive Director
or an independent non-executive Director and a member of any
board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service
agreement with any member of the Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to the benchmarking of the
market. The Company also looks at individual Director’s competence,
duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 22 to 28 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity
connected with any of them had any material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of
the parent company was a party and subsisting at any time during or
at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, no contract of significance had been
entered into between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement that enables the Directors or chief
executive of the Company (including their spouses or children under
18 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company or any of its specified undertakings as defined in the
Companies (Report of the Board of Directors) Regulation or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and/or administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.
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The Directors are not aware of any business and interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of
their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interests which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report.

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant
Mind”) (the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 23 January 2018 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its subsidiaries),
pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has,
unconditionally and irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the
Deed of Non-Competition that she/it will not, and will procure her/its
close associates (other than members of the Group) not to, for herself/
itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company
as shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or
otherwise, and whether or not for profit, remuneration or other
purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or engaged in or undertake
any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly or
indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group’s business or
undertaking (the “Restricted Activity”), or hold shares or interest in
any companies or business that compete directly or indirectly with the
business engaged by the Group from time to time except where the
Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less than
5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in
any business that is or may be in competition with any business
engaged by any member of the Group and they do not control 10%
or more of the composition of the board of directors of such
company.

Further, each of the Group’s Controlling Shareholders has undertaken
that if any new business investment or other business opportunity
relating to the Restricted Activity (the “Competing Business
Opportunity”) is identified by or made available to her/it or any of her/
its close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close
associates shall, refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the
Company on a timely basis.
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For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to
the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders
— Non-competition undertaking and corporate governance measures
to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of her/its compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition during the
year ended 31 December 2023. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Subsequent to completion of the disposal of their shares in the
Company by, among other selling shareholders, Giant Mind, Ms.
Wong Pui Yain and Ms. Lo Yeung Kit Alan (spouse of Ms. Wong Pui
Yain) which took place on 13 December 2023 (details of which are
set out in the section headed “Change of Controlling Shareholders
and the Offers” below in this report), each of Giant Mind and Ms.
Wong Pui Yain (and their respective associates) had ceased to hold,
whether individually or collectively, 30% or more of the total issued
share capital of the Company directly or indirectly. Accordingly, each
of Giant Mind and Ms. Wong Pui Yain had ceased to be regarded as
controlling shareholders of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. Giant Mind’s and Ms. Wong Pui Yain’s obligations under the
Deed of Non-Competition had ceased with effect from 13 December
2023 in accordance with the terms thereunder.

a) Interests and short positions of Directors and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO™)) as (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed to
have pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO), (ii)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by directors of listed issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
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FEQHE

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of () REATARGREBROGNETE
the Company
Approximate
percentage of
Equity issued share
derivatives capital of
Capacity in which Interests in  (share options) the Company
Name of Director interests are held Shares (Note 3) Total interests (Note 1)
RASTETIR EEAREET
(BRE) RENBOED
E=pg BEEZZHH RERBHES CES) EneH (Hz£1)
Mr. Peng Ben (Note 2) Interest 702,020,000 (L) 702,020,000 (1) 60.53%
gtk (i) in a controlled
corporation
REHEEER
Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry Beneficial owner 1,850,000 (L) 1,850,000 (L) 0.16%
BEETL ESERA
Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric Beneficial owner 750,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 0.06%
REBELE ESERA
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam Beneficial owner 750,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 0.06%
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam %24 E&zBEABA
Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony (Note 4) Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 1,750,000 (L) 0.15%

Wee Keng Hiong Tony % 4 (17t 4)

BEGAA

(L)  denotes long position

E NGy
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Note:

As at 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the
Company is 1,159,780,000 shares.

Mr. Peng Ben was interested in 702,020,000 Shares which
was held through his controlled corporation, Central
Power Group Limited, in which, he directly owns 51%.
Accordingly, Mr. Peng Ben is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Central Power Group Limited under
Part XV of the SFO.

Such interests relate to Share which may be issued
pursuant to options granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony, was interested in a total of
1,750,000 Shares, of which his interest in (i) 1,000,000
Shares was held in his capacity as beneficial owner; and (ii)
750,000 Shares relate to Shares which may be issued
pursuant to options granted to him under the Share
Option Scheme.

—_

w

MN2023F 12 A318 KA AW
B 217 A A 1,159,780,000 %
&5 o

T #5 % £ 72 702,020,000 A% B% 19
RIEERER  TVEBRHE A
EhEEERHERAREE -
MERZEEEZEFES % IE
o Bt - BIEFES R EEG)
FEXVED - R EWR AR F
FEBRHDEERARAFERD
RHER R

BRI S MR B R &
BT R A Al se B TRIAD ©

Wee Keng Hiong Tony %t &£ A &
#£1,750,000 & B 1 R 7 B 4
z o H A% ()7 1,000,000 A% A%
NRBEEHNREETINEERE
BHEBEANEHEE KRR
750,000 & i 5 B BV RE R P
RIBEERES SR TENRE
P& AR T 7] BE B 1T RO AR 1D o
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(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
in associated corporation of the Company

FEQHE

(i) RADQTEBEERD REER
HER

Name of
associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity shares shareholding
EEnE HEEEER 54 RBEE EREAL
Mr. Peng Ben Central Power Group  Beneficial owner 5,100 (Note) 51%
Limited (Note)
TSRS FEEERNAR EREBA 5,100 (BT 3E)
~a) (M)
Note: BieE -

Central Power Group Limited held 702,020,000 Shares,
representing approximately 60.53% shareholding in the issued
share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/
or short positions which the Directors or the chief executives of
the Company were taken or deemed to have pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO); (ii) recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

FTEESERODABERAAFAE
702,020,000 B f& 17 15 AR R A E 81T
M4 60.53% ©

bR £ X FTiREE & SN - 7R 20234 12 A 31
H BIEAAAESEIEZRITHRAER
AAmH B LB (ERRESRE
BERBIZEXVER) B H - HERG HE
EEFR BEEMNOEEZESRAGK
BIEEXVERE TR 8D EBME AR A K&
BMXHERIAE (BEREESF R
B IR BISEXVELE 7 K 85 B & 1E sk
REBARTESIERTRAEHES
MR RKR) (DR ARBEF
MEEEPIE I GEBFMELEMA
B HE 25 BOK B 3 (i) AR 1B GEM T AR
@IJ%546§56711%}5)?3;#&%%5%)\%
FEIRGNEEEESITANS AR
R R TR SR B o
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b)

&

Interests and short positions of the substantial
shareholders and other persons in shares and

underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, so far as it is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of

the Company) had or were deemed to have interests or short

positions in Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the
provision of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO:

() Long positions in Shares

b)

FTERRREMALREQTR
REBERDNEZR AR

BR2023F 128318 sLEEATA - WA
TALT(WHARBESELZEITEHA
B) R iBERh R EE R A
BHLZALRRBIRERES MBEKRYIE
3BHREBTHNELMAIBIEZSEL
HIEIEDIEXVEBE 2R3N EIEXEF
WERNREZSAE

() RROHHFE

Number of Approximately

Capacity/ Shares held/ Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Interested Shareholding

Fiks/ BAEES

RREEEB g5 RRME BH#A BAKRBEDL

Central Power Group Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 702,020,000 (L) 60.53%
PEEERMHARDA (FiT2) ERBEBA

Mr. Zhao Hong (Note 3) Interest in a controlled 702,020,000 (L) 60.53%

BREE (HE3)

corporation
R EEER

(L)  denotes long position

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the

Company is 1,159,780,000 Shares.

O EREE
B i
1. M2023F 128310 ARAIE

1T M AR A5 1,159,780,000 A% A%

e
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2. Central Power Group Limited is a controlled corporation
directly owned as to 51% by Mr. Peng Ben, the controlling
shareholder of the Company and a Director, and 49% by
Mr. Zhao Hong.

3. Mr. Zhao Hong was interested in 702,020,000 Shares
which was held through his controlled corporation, Central
Power Group Limited, in which, he directly owns 49%.
Accordingly, Mr. Zhao Hong is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Central Power Group Limited under
Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
have not been notified by any person who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO, or which fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in
writing of all the Shareholders passed on 23 January 2018. The terms
of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best quality personnel for the development of the Company’s
businesses; to provide additional incentives to the Qualifying Grantees
(as defined below) and to promote the long term financial success of
the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any
Qualifying Grantees.

FEQWE

2. PEEEARNARITAR—M
MARAMNERKRRRESEE
wERENRBELED B HEE
R B 51% & 49% 7 5 1) X 12
EE -

3. R AEM 702,020,000 5% f% 9
REEB R TVEBE SR
EhEEERHERAREE -
MERZEEEZEFEI9% B
o B - RIEES R EEG)
EXVED - R EWR AR F
FEBERHERAFAFRD
REER R

Br ESCRTHEE & SN - PR 20234F 12 A 31
B @MEfMALTELENESEETHERR
HERBEERNDEELCAREZSLEE
16151 %6 336 kB 17 0 B SL it (N S AR 1B
BENMEAEEDIEXVEIE2 M35 305
NATHEENEZIRE

TH AEREEEREA2018F1 A23HBABBER
AERBRGERANEREFTSRAINES
IR 2 o BB AR RT S A0 R 5T LA GEM £
RAE T =EMEXABRE -

BRESESNENRRIRBEHARAE
BERRBEINNKEAEBAL : RAERK
BAEER T RHBEINER  BBHBE
B+ B A RO 4 o B i BROARE o A B B 2R (T o
ARARBE LORERY - EF S RE
MABRARABHROBRE -
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"Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or
part-time employee) of any members of the Group or any of its
affiliates and any person who is an officer of any members of the
Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee”); (2) any person who is
seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates
("Secondee”); (3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser,
customer, contractor of the Group or any of its affiliates; or (4) any
business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of goods
or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee
thereof (collectively the “Eligible Person”); or (ii) any trust for the
benefit of an Eligible Person or his or her immediate family members
or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his or her
immediate family members.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue following the completion of the capitalisation issue
and the share offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01
each. As at the date of this annual report, a total of 41,800,000
shares of par value HK$0.02 each*, representing 7.21% of the
Company’s issued shares, were available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option
Scheme such that the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to that person
in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1%
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time. Any further
grant of options to a participant in excess of the 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his/her close associates (or
associates if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting. Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall issue a
circular containing such information as required by the GEM Listing
Rules to the shareholders of the Company.

* The number of shares and the pair value of shares was adjusted as a
result of share consolidation and change of Board dot size on 25 March
2024.

[BEREFEAIBRE  OAKETAKE
RERETBEARNEMES (BREE2R
FHRBET) R RAEEEAKE AR
B ARRRAENERNAL(EED  (2)
t& 38 T AR S B AL A B 2 7] 3 (] B 8 A7)
THENEMAL(ERARD  QAEEK
HETMEBARMTA#AAA - KB KK
B FFPRARRE  RAERXBEIER
HBR/MEAET  AASENEM
B AR R m s RS A A S AT
BE (MBIEEBALD  HMEEBRAL
FHEERBYXENEMAEEAZEERA
ITHREERBBIEHOTMAGE -

AR 15 B AR M A 81 e AR A BT B b T 2
TREOMBEREETEM A EEITHR
MNEE LRBETTSBBRBENMEEITR
RHEBEETKEBE ZHITROA10% + B
86,000,000 K &l EIHO0.01 BT I 9 ° B
REWRAH BREFEHIETHLE
41,800,000 A% & A% T {8 0.02 78 7T 89 B 19 AT
BT MARRIEBITRG7.21% °

HEFEREF 2 RBERTEERERR
R EHEEA12EABERE EX LK E
RBAE MBS BT RS FRITHRD
REEBARBTRHERITRAN 1% - BIT
BRaz2RERHENERE -2 H
ERBBEBZ1% LR EMEINEREEA
RIRRARE L ESARRRELA - B
S2RERAEZTHBEA (HH2EEREA
T RIRBMEBEA)EANERRE RESRARHY
FERT  ARRBARARBBRRELBER  E
FEEGEM EMARARENBREER

* hR2024€3 A5 ERGAHRERGFE
B RIPHE RAEECEHE -
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. The
Board may, in its discretion, determine the vesting period of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the option offer (or
such period as the Board may specify in writing). The exercise price of
the options is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the offer date; or

(¢)  the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.

On 11 January 2021, 3,750,000 share options were granted to the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors, employees
and consultants of the Group, respectively, in order to reward the
Directors, employees and consultants for the development of the
Group. These share options have an exercise price of HK$0.13 per
share and an exercise period ranging from 11 January 2021 to 10
January 2024. The closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant was HK$0.122.

On 19 January 2022, 7,600,000 share options were granted to
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors, employees
and consultants of the Group, in order to reward the Directors,
employees and consultants for the development of the Group. The
exercise price of these share options is HK$0.10 per share and shall be
exercisable from 19 January 2022 to 18 January 2032. The closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$0.089.

FEQWE

BREREZSEETNHE(ETSBEBER
B EIRE R 104F) BE B AR I BB A R AT 81 IR 3K
ATTE - EFE A NERERBEBRE
RENBRIENRE BN - BRIEE2
HEANBHBHEF 280 (REFEAZ
EHEANEE) A EAREMAARE X
1.087T - BRETEEHREFSRBEBE
BE BTBERTI=89N&2%E

@ REBHBRMBIMEARERMBNHK
o iE

() RERZHEHAAEZXABIAE
FRERME AR FHRHE : =

(© KhhmEE-

B ESE B2018F2 A8HEET10FRNA
MM AR - EETEBRESBRHERE -

R2021F 1A 1B DRlMAEBENITE
FE BUFERTEE EEABHEARD
3,750,000f7 s et - LARRB) =S - EE REE
MAREBERAENER ZEBERED
TEERBRONIBIIL 1T HA2021F 1
A11BZE2024F1 3108 - KRAF M REF
LHEBZWHERSTIR0122TT »

M2022F1A198  MASEENITES B
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B0.10% T - WM 20224 1 A19H Z2032
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EEFERNBRESE

Movement of Share Options during the year under
Review

B ZE2023F 128318 LB BFEHRER
BT MAE (TRERRE ) &8 RN B 22023
FUMBFENBRE  BE - BEH%
BAMZ BRI H#EMT -

Particulars of share options under the Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option(s)”) outstanding at the financial year ended 31
December, 2023 and the Share Options granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed during the financial year ended 2023 are as follows:

—— 104 —

Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balance as at Balanceasat immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December  hefore date date
Grantee Date of grant period  per Shares 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 of grant (Note 4)
R223E 2B RTERMH
RanE BHE#/ NANE  BHEEE  SREK
ERA RYAH S SROEE 18180ER 2R Bk b3 fgsh  NERER GET)
HKS HKS
B B
Directors
gz
Wong Pui Yain 1101201 11.01.2021- 0.13 850,000 - - (850,000) - 0121 NA
EME 10.01.2024 (Note 9) Byl
(Note 284) (fizt9)
GEINT)
19012022 19.01.2022 - 0.10 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 (Note 9) (Note ) @R
(Note 384) (Hft9) (B 8)
(FizE3%4)
Sub-total /)it 1,850,000 (1,850,000) -
(Note 9)
(Fit9)
Wan Suet Yee Cherry 11012001 11.01.2021- 0.13 850,000 - - - 850,000 0121 N/A
BEE 10.01.2024 ki
(Note 284)
(k2 R4)
19012022 19.01.2022- 0.10 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.203 (Note 8) ki
(Note 384) (st 8)
(RzE3R4)
Sub-total /)& 1,850,000 - - - 1,850,000

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

HEFRKEBERA

A/ =F
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FEQWE

Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balance as at Balanceasat immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December  before date date
Grantee Date of grant period  per Shares 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 of grant (Note 4)
R223& 2B RORASY
RABE BHE#/ NANA  REBHE  SRER
REA RAAH &% SROKE 1818048 R Bk K fEs  NERER (izE4)
HKS HKS
Leung Yuk Lun Ulric 11.01.2021  11.01.2021 - 0.13 350,000 - - - 350,000 0.121 N/A
2T 10.01.2024 T@EB
(Note 284)
GEIRT)
19.012022  19.01.2022- 0.10 400,000 - - - 400,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 (Note 8) TER
(Note 384) (Hfzts)
(P33 %4)
Sub-total /3t 750,000 750,000
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam ~ 11.01.2021  11.01.2021 - 0.13 350,000 - - - 350,000 0.121 N/A
10.01.2024 MER
(Note 284)
GEIRT)
19.01.2022  19.01.2022 - 0.10 400,000 - - N 400,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 (Note 8) MR
(Note 384) (Fizx8)
(FfzE3%4)
Sub-total /J\3F 750,000 750,000
Wee Keng Hiong Tony 11012021 11.01.2021 - 0.13 350,000 - - - 350,000 0121 N/A
10.01.2024 TER
(Note 284)
(k2 Rk4)
19.012022  19.01.2022- 0.10 400,000 - - - 400,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 (Note 8) TER
(Note 384) (Hfzts)
(zE3R4)

Sub-total /'3 750,000 - - - 750,000
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2 o5 A
£ W&
Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balance as at Balanceasat immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December  before date date
Grantee Date of grant period  per Shares 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 of grant (Note 4)
R223E 2B RORAHY
RaB%E BHE#/ NANA  REBHE  SRER
REA RHAH &% SROKE 1818048 BRH Bk b3 hign  HERER (HizE4)
HKS HKS
Employees
2]
Employees 11.01.2021 11.01.2021/ 0.13 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.121 N/A
B2 10.01/2024 TR
19.01.2022  19.01.2022/ 0.10 3,300,000 - - - 3,300,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 TER
Sub-total /Nt : 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000
Consultants
B
Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (Note 5) 19.01.2022  19.01.2022/ 0.10 550,000 - - (550,000) - 0.093 N/A
B8 (3E5) 18.01.2032 (Note 9) Bl
(BzF9)
Leung Man Yee, Sophia 11.01.2021  11.01.2021/ 0.13 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.121 N/A
(Note 6) 10.01.2024 ki
285 (M36)
19.01.2022  19.01.2022/ 0.10 550,000 - - - 550,000 0.093 N/A
18.01.2032 TER
Sub-total /P 1,600,000 - - (550,000) 1,050,000
Total &3t 11,350,000 - - (2,400,000 8,950,000
Notes: MisE -
1. As at 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the Company is 1. 72023412 A318 * A AT D EHITRAA
1,159,780,000 shares. 1,159,780,000 J& A& 1% °
2. The option period of the options granted on 11 January 2021 shall be 2. 202141 8 11 B H oY B IR #E 2 B AR 42 BR
three years from the date of acceptance and the options shall be lapsed REZEMARET=F TR ERERR
at the expiry of the option period. B s
3. The options granted on 19 January 2022 shall be exercisable fora 3. 202241 A 19RFHMNBRIETAEHEH

period of ten years commencing from the last date of acceptance for
the grant of share options (i.e. 19 January, 2022) and ending on 18
January, 2032.

BRRENEIEEMNB B (BN20224 1 819H)
H#£ZE2032F 1 A18H IEHHFHARTTHE -
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Save as the share options disclosed in note 9 below, No share option
had been exercised, cancelled and lapsed as at 31 December 2023.

Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan is the consultant of the Company and spouse of
Ms. Wong Pui Yain. Mr. Lo is experienced in corporate finance and is
currently the head of corporate development and strategic investments
for GP Industries Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Mr. Lo has been
engaged as the Company’s consultant for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021. The rationale for granting 550,000
share options to Mr. Lo is to provide incentive and award for services
provided by Mr. Lo as the Company’s consultant advising on the
Company'’s corporate finance matters and investor relation matters, and
to provide motivation for Mr. Lo to create value for the Company
without affecting the operating cost of the Company.

Ms. Leung Man Yee Sophia (“Ms. Leung”) has been engaged by the
Company to provide advice to the chief executive officer of the
Company on corporate strategy in administrative and head office-
related matters as a business consultant of the Group over the years.
Ms. Leung is independent of and not connected with the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company. The share options were granted to Ms. Leung (i) as part of
her remuneration for services provided; and (i) with a view to further
incentivise her to provide continued services, and contribute to
sustaining and improving the organisational efficacy, performance and
productivity, of the Group. The grant of the share options constitutes
reward for services rendered and will furnish her with a personal stake
in the Company. The Directors believe the grant of share options to Ms.
Leung will serve to incentivise her to remain retained with the Group
and to contribute further to the development and growth of the Group
for the benefit of the Shareholders.

No fulfillment or vesting period condition were associated with the
share options.

The total fair value of the share options at the grant date on 19 January
2022 was HK$381,000 (2021: The total fair value of the share options
at the grant date on 11 January 2021 was HK$229,000). For details of
the methodology and assumptions used in calculating the fair value of
the share options, please refer to Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

5.

8.

FEQWE
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9. On 4 December 2023, pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, Mr.
Lo Yeung Kit Alan and Miss Wong Pui Yain agreed to surrender a total
of 2,400,000 outstanding share options (comprising of (i) 550,000 and
1,000,000 share options with an exercise price of HK$0.1 held by Mr.
Lo Yeung Kit Alan and Miss Wong Pui Yain, respectively; and (ii)
850,000 share options with an exercise price of HK$0.13 held by Ms.
Wong Pui Yain) at nil consideration for cancellation by the Company.
The cancellation of these share options took place upon completion of
the Sale and Purchase Agreement on 13 December 2023. For further
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
December 2023 and 13 December 2023, respectively.

At the date of this report, the Company had 40,000,000 options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 6.90% of the Company’s issued shares as at the date
of this report. The Company had 11,350,000 and 8,950,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January
2023 and 31 December 2023 respectively.

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the total number of
share options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
were 74,650,000 and 74,650,000, respectively.

No share options and awards were granted under any share schemes
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023. The total
number of shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under all share schemes of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023 divided by the weighted average number
of shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was therefore
nil.

9. R2023F 12748 - BIBEERBZE  BiGHE
FEREMBEZLTRABEUNERERES R
2,400,00017 & RITE RS AR #E (BIE()BIH &
EEREMAZ LD BFAEZITHEE RO
7 7T 2 550,000 13 K. 1,000,000 15 B AR # © K2
MEMBZTRHBEZITFEEAR0IZELZ
850,00017 FEfR ) B A A AIGEH - fEE B E
W aE 0 2023F 12 B13 A5 - X S HE
MBEZFE - FERAAARBHSANA
202312 7B K% 2023F 12 A13AMAE -

RARERS AQRRERESSEBTA
40,000,000f7 BE R E M RITHE - (AR BN
R4 HEE BT £76.90% © 72023 4
1B1HK2023F 12 A31H » A QA HRE
sHEI7E 9 BI4E 11,350,000 17 & 8,950,000 17
B M ARITIE ©
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On 4 December 2023, Giant Mind International Limited and other
selling shareholders (the “Selling Shareholders”) and Central Power
Group Limited (the "Offeror”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Selling Shareholders agreed to sell and the Offeror conditionally
agreed to acquire 702,020,000 Shares, representing approximately
60.53% of the total issued share capital of the Company at that time,
for a total consideration of HK$54,476,752, representing
approximately HK$0.0776 per Share. Following the completion of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement which took place on 13 December
2023, the Offeror had become a controlling shareholder of the
Company and was required under the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers in Hong Kong to make mandatory unconditional cash offers
(i) to acquire all the issued shares of the company at HK$0.0776 per
offer share (the “Share Offer”); and (ii) to cancel all outstanding share
options (the “Option Offer”, and together with the Share Offer, the
“Offers”). The Offers were closed on 9 February 2024. Having made
all reasonable enquires and to the best knowledge and belief of the
Board, the Offeror received 8 valid acceptances in respect of a total of
172,180,000 Shares under the Share Offer, and held 874,200,000
shares of the Company immediately after the close of Offers on 9
February 2024. The Offeror did not receive any acceptances under the
Option Offer. As such, 6,050,000 Share Options which were
outstanding at the time automatically lapsed upon close of the Offers.
Details of the change of controlling shareholders and the Offers are
set out in the announcements dated 4 December 2023, 13 December
2023, 9 February 2024 and the composite document dated 19
January 2024 jointly issued by the Company and the Offeror.

Grant of Share Options

On 21 February 2024, the Board announced that the Company has
resolved to grant share options to 30 service providers of the Group,
subject to their acceptance, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 23 January 2018, to subscribe for a total of
80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company. For further details on the grants and the grantees,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 February
2024.
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Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following confirmations &R A B/EHEEERNEREESIEHUT
from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this report, there is no  #R ' BR AR E B BHHBPIN - B AR F&E
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed ~ TIB YR RIANR - HEEZEHF EBIRE
pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules since the ~ GEM E T8 BI 5 17.50AM &8I 1R T F A
Company's last published interim report. The change of Directors’ & ° 1R GEM b R B 55 17.50A(1) 1§78 T #
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of BHEZ=EREFTEHIIMT ¢

the GEM Listing Rules is set out below:

Directors Changes in Positions held with the Company

B RAEQXFEEBUNEE

Ms. Wong Pui Yain o Resigned as the chairperson of the Board on 9 February, 2024
BEMELL R2024F2 A9BBHEEREEE/E

Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry
mEER L

Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric

Ceased to be member of the Remuneration Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee on 15 February, 2024
R2024F2 15 ATNBEEFHEES L EREREEGKE

Ceased to be the chairperson of Nomination Committee on 15 February, 2024

R2024F2 AISHTNBETREEZESER

Resigned as executive director and ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer on 15
February, 2024
R2024F2 R 15 BB EARTE S LTI BEETRAER

Resigned as the chairperson of the Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February,
2024
R2024F2 A5 HBHEERAREZEREE

Resigned as the independent non-executive director on 15 February, 2024

MR2024F2 A1SHEME B IENITES

Ceased to be the chairperson of the Audit Committee on 15 February, 2024
R2024F2 A15ETBEEEREZESERE

Ceased to be the member of the Legal Compliance Committee and Nomination
Committee on 15 February, 2024
20242 A1ISETBREEEEREEGRREREEGENKE
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Changes in Positions held with the Company

REQRRREBUNED

Mr. Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam

Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam 7t &

Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony
Wee Keng Hiong Tony %t &£

Mr. Kong Lingeli
_jf 7565%’:15

Mr. Peng Ben
e

Mr. Liu Enyu
ZBFhAE

Resigned as the independent non-executive director on 15 February, 2024

R2024F2 A5 BRI BY IENITES

Ceased to be the member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee on
15 February, 2024
MR2024F2 H1ISBETMBEAEZZEG MIERLZEENE

Ceased to be the chairman of Remuneration Committee on 15 February, 2024

R2024F2 A1 BTBETFHNEES TR

Resigned as the independent non-executive director on 15 February, 2024

R2024%F2 A5 BB BY IEMITES

Ceased to be the member of Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee on
15 February, 2024
MR2024F2 A1SBTBETHFHNEZESRERZEENKE

Appointed as an executive director on 9 February, 2024

R2024F 2 AOHEZEARITES

Appointed as the CEO on 15 February, 2024
202442 A 15 AEZR T ABITHAR

Appointed as the chairperson of the Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February,
2024
2024 F2 R 1SR EZERERZAREZEGER

Appointed as a Non-executive Director on 9 February, 2024

R2024F 2 AOBREZ T AENITES

Appointed as a Non-executive Director and chairman of the Board on 9 February,
2024
R2024F2 AORERERIFFATEZTREFTELR

Appointed as the chairperson of the Nomination Committee on 15 February, 2024

R2024F2 HISHEZ T ARREEZESER
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Directors

BE=x

Changes in Positions held with the Company
RAEATEETBUNES

Ms. Deng Yongling
Bkt

Ms. Ma Lina
BBz

Ms. Mao Xiaobi
FEBZL

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 9 February, 2024

MR2024F 2 AOHEZ I ABYIERITES

Appointed as the chairperson of the Audit Committee on 15 February, 2024
R2024F2 R 1SERZEREREZERETE

Appointed as the member of Legal Compliance Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee on 15 February, 2024 respectively

MR2024F2 H15BHREZERZEZEEREZESR REZEEhTWNEES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 9 February, 2024

MR2024F2 AOBEZEARBUIERITES

Appointed as the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee on 15 February,
2024
2024 F2 R 1SR EZERFHEESEE

Appointed as the member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee on 15
February, 2024 respectively
R2024F2 A15AD R ERERERZEGMRERREEK

mn

\

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 9 February, 2024

R2024F2 AOREZEAB Y IERITES

Appointed as the member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Legal Compliance Committee on 15 February, 2024 respectively
R2024F2R15ADFEZEREREZES FHMEEGLEZAREZES
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Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31
December 2023.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer
base. There is no customer that significantly dominates the Group’s
revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20.7%
(2022: 24.2%) of the Group’s total purchases of raw materials and
consumables. During the same year, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 5.7% (2022: 6.8%) of
the Group's total purchases of raw materials and consumables.

Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 32
to the audited consolidated financial statements, none of the
Directors, their respective associates, or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any significant
beneficial interest in the major customers and suppliers disclosed
above.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of such related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction which is subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and/or shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high
level of corporate governance standards and will review and improve
the corporate governance practices and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
29 to 58 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws
of Cayman Islands or the Articles which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Act, every Director is entitled under the
Company’s Articles to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses that may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts, except such (if any) as he or she shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance during the year ended 31 December 2023. To the extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance, a directors’ liability insurance
is currently in place to protect the Directors against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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FERKREBERIAR/ - =F5F

BBAXZ REAERS

AEBHZE2023F12A431BEFEETH
BT R DB GEE M B mRM 32
ZEBE AR ST EKEESTGEM LR
BIZE20ZEH T ER® FEHEHR 25K
IR R AL IR ERIBER S o

EXER

ARRRERNEHRERBRFOCEE

AR WETERN RAECEERHA
RigE .

ARBAEANEEERTROFHEHNA
HEF29E8AMNMPEERMSE °

BRBEE

P28 &A1 S AD R0 (8 T B B AR sl IR L
B MEARBARLAIMBRERREE
FTAX

BEFF R REREIR
ERTAVENERT  BRESQDMI
SEFERAETELSANMERERF
BrOBELEABREMEL - AESER
B L1777 B) A B 2 A SR R O BT 3R~ AR
ABM AL BEMLH UARTH
EERGHERTERR R FAE
162 B B AR ¥F SR 9 70 2 2R R R B (10
B B5h

HZE2023F12A3MBLEFE - ARa—H
HEFEZEERERABEERE - R FHED
EFHNSEERN BREHBEESETRRU
REEESEEERRIAIEEENNAREE -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a workforce of 388
employees (2021: 338). Total staff costs for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approximately HK$91.9 million, as compared to
the staff cost of HK$87.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and in
accordance with the performance, qualification(s) and experience of
each individual employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each
individual’s performance, are paid to employees as recognition and in
reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all
the Group’s employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the Remuneration Committee (as defined below) with reference to
the duties, responsibilities, experience and competence of individual
employees. The same policy also applies to the Directors. In addition
to salaries and discretionary bonuses relating to the performance of
the Group, employee benefits included pension scheme contributions.
The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed annually by the
remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”).

As incentives and rewards for their contributions to the Group, the
employees of the Group and all the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) may also be granted share
options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 8 February 2018.

The Group provides various training to its employees to enhance their
technical skills and knowledge relevant to the employees’
responsibilities. The Group also provides its employees with quality
control standards and work safety standards training to enhance their
safety awareness.
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The employees in Hong Kong are enrolled in the Mandatory Provident
Fund under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Monthly contributions are made by the Group which are
5% of the monthly income of the employees as stipulated under the
relevant requirements (if applicable), with the maximum contributions
of HK$1,500 monthly.

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any
strikes, work stoppages or significant labour disputes which affected
its operations in the past and it did not experience any significant
difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. The Directors
consider that the Group has maintained good working relationship
with its employees.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its key stakeholders, including its employees,
customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate and long-term
business goals. During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no material and significant disputes between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.

The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and
strictly complies with labour laws and regulations and regularly
reviews its existing staff benefits for their enhancement. Apart from
reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers other
employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides
good quality services to its customers and keeps a database for direct
communications with recurring customers so as to develop a long-
term trusted relationships. The Group also maintains effective
communication and develops long-term business relationships with its
suppliers.

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 and the material factors underlying its results and
financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section set out on pages 11 to 21 of this report. These
discussions form part of this report.
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Following the close of the Offers on 9 February 2024, a total of
284,580,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
24.54% of the entire issued share capital of the Company were held
by the public. Subsequently, as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 15 February 2024, Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony (“Mr.
Wee") resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 15 February 2024, upon which (i) Mr.
Wee, ceased to be a core connected person of the Company; (i) the
1,000,000 Shares held by him were classified as being ‘in public
hands’ for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules; and (iii) as a result,
to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
285,580,000 Shares (representing approximately 24.62% of the
issued share capital of the Company) were held by the public (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) immediately following Mr. Wee's
resignation and up to the date of this report.

Accordingly, since the close of the Offers, the Company has not been
able to comply with the public float requirement as set forth under
Rule 11.23(7) of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had made an
application to the Stock Exchange for a temporary waiver (the
“Waiver”) from strict compliance with the public float requirement
under Rule 11.23(7) of the GEM Listing Rules for the period from 9
February 2024 to 11 April 2024 (both days inclusive) (the “Waiver
Period”). On 11 March 2024, the Stock Exchange has granted the
conditional Waiver to the Company for the duration of the Waiver
Period. For further details of the Waiver, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2024.

The Offeror will, as soon as practicable after the end of the Black-out
Period (as referred to in the announcement of the Company dated 12
March 2024), take appropriate measures to ensure that the minimum
public float requirement under Rule 11.23(7) of the GEM Listing Rules
can be met. Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company
regarding the restoration of public float when and as appropriate.

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of them holding the Shares.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

1)

2)

Change of Directors, with effect from 9
February 2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Mr. Kong Linglei has been appointed as an executive
Director;

Mr. Peng Ben has been appointed as a non-executive
Director;

Mr. Liu Enyu has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board;

Ms. Deng Yongling has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director;

Ms. Mao Xiaobi has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director;

Ms. Ma Lina has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director; and

Ms. Wong Pui Yain has resigned as Chairlady of the
Board.

Resignation of Directors, with effect from 15
February 2024

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Ms. Wong Pui Yain has resigned as an executive Director
and ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer;

Each of Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony has resigned
as an independent non-executive Director; and

Mr. Kong Linglei has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer.
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3)

4)

5)
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Grant of Share Options

On 21 February 2024, the Board announced that the Company
has resolved to grant share options to 30 service providers of
the Group, subject to their acceptance, under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 23 January 2018, to
subscribe for a total of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company. For further details on
the grants and the grantees, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 21 February 2024.

Change of Company name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 22 February 2024 and the issue of the
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the
Registrar of companies in the Cayman Islands on 29 February
2024, the English name of the Company has been changed
from “Jia Group Holdings Limited” to “XinXiang Era Group
Company Limited” and the dual foreign name of the Company
in Chinese had been changed from “ER&EBEER A A" to
" ERREBEABR AR with effect from 29 February 2024.

Share Consolidation and Change in Board Lot
Size

On 26 February 2024, the Company announced the proposal of i)
the share consolidation pursuant to which every two (2) issued
and unissued existing shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company will be consolidated into one (1) consolidated
share of HK$0.02 each (the “Share Consolidation”); and ii) the
change in board lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange from
10,000 existing shares to 20,000 consolidated shares subject to
and upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective (the
“Change in Board Lot Size").

The Share Consolidation was approved by shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21
March 2024. As such, the Share Consolidation and the Change
in Board Lot Size have become effective on 25 March 2024.
Immediately after the Share Consolidation, the total number of
issued shares of the Company was adjusted from
1,159,780,000 to 579,890,000.

3)

4)

5)
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For further information in relation to the Share Consolidation and
Change in Board Lot Size, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 February 2024, 21 March 2024 and 22 March
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 1 March 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of
this report, is set out on pages 59 to 89 of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 21 June 2024,
the notice of which shall be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in accordance with the Articles, the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 18 June 2024 to Friday, 21 June 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 17 June 2024.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FEQWE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have ¢ N AEBRNGEEUBREREAEELE

been audited by BDO Limited who shall retire at the forthcoming EZEHAIEHFER QA RNER  MEBRL

AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A ﬁEEHx%%@EﬁQL%&EIﬁ%ﬁWﬁE‘“

resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as  {f > # R EBEHEF ARG FIR2 —HRFERI

auditor of the Company. ENEAEAUGERGHMEBMERD
AIERZAR DRI ZELAD

By order of the Board REEF®E

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited FERKRKEERRAAE
Liu Enyu FREFHHTEE
Chairman and Non-executive Director ZBRF

25 March 2024 202453 A25H



|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{&E : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EBTHER1115
JKZAI2588

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF XINXIANG ERA GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of XinXiang
Era Group Company Limited (formerly known as “Jia Group Holdings
Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 129 to 239, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$6,618,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2023. As
of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$41,646,000 and the net liabilities were HK$10,827,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

(Refer to notes 4(c) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant
operations as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue
from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from
catering services of the Group's restaurant operations amounted to
HK$278,542,000.

The recognition of revenue involves high volume of small amount
transactions through cash receipts and credit card settlements. Any
errors arising from capturing of data or interfaces of data amongst
the various systems may have significant impact on revenue.
Therefore, it required significant time and resources for the audit.
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Our response:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue recognition
process and validating the management’s key internal controls
over the revenue recognition process;

o Performing analytical procedures on revenue through comparing
the actual result of current year with that of prior year and
assessing reasonableness of its trend in relation to the Group’s
restaurant operation;

o Verifying the daily sales reports, cash receipts and credit card
settlement on sample basis; and

o Verifying the accuracy and completeness of the daily sales
reports generated from the back end systems on sample basis.

(Refer to notes 4(e), 5(a)(ii),
financial statements)

17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated

The Group had significant assets on its consolidated statement of
financial position, including property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets as at 31 December 2023.

Management is required to perform an impairment assessment where
indicators of impairment are identified on these assets. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, these assets were allocated to cash
generating units (“CGUs"”), and management has assessed the
recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment
assessment, significant management judgement was used to
appropriately identify CGUs and to determine the key assumptions
and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for the
year ended 31 December 2023, management concluded that
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,991,000 in respected of the
Group's property, plant and equipment and HK$5,789,000 in respect
of its right-of-use assets were made.
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Our response:

o Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in
respect of the assessment of the recoverable amount;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the management'’s identification
of CGUs based on our understanding of the Group’s business;

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations
used; and

o Assessing the appropriateness of key input data used in the
assessment of the recoverable amount.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represents the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &= 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Revenue WA 6 278,542 217,005
Other income H AU A 8 1,427 14,422
Other gains and losses E b ees & B8 9 (382) 2,163
Raw materials and consumables used Fr AR M R R FE# (74,120) (60,672)
Staff costs 8 T KA 12 (103,204) (91,866)
Depreciation e 12 (28,878) (34,250)
Property rentals and related expenses WEM S MAERERX (23,266) (10,528)
Utility expenses HEMX (7.664) (6,037)
Advertising and promotion expenses EERHEERE (8,872) (8,705)
Other operating expenses HEp e 10 (29,395) (30,703)
Finance costs B E A 1 (2,926) (3,185)
Share of results of associates iy /NI 20 (551) (307)
Impairment loss of property, plant M BERZHEOREER
and equipment 19 (3,991) (5,314)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets CRAREAENREEIE 19 (5.789) (3,545)
Impairment loss on financial assets CREEREERE (384) (887)
Loss before taxation B FR A& 1A 12 (9.453) (22,409)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigfiEe, (F%) 13 2,835 (591)
Loss for the year FNEE (6,618) (23,000)
Other comprehensive expense, that HETesioEsEn
will not be reclassified subsequently HEme2mEAX :
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of provision of R EHB 2 EFTTE
long service payment (127) -
Total comprehensive expense for the year 4 2 7 X7 4258 (6,745) (23,000)
Loss for the year attribute to: AT ALEIEFARES :
Owners of the Company RKABEA A (1,801) (19,744)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR A (4,817) (3,256)
(6,618) (23,000)
Total comprehensive expense for IANTATEEFAZEMAZEEE -
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RREHEE A (1,923) (19,744)
— Non-controlling interests — JEPERE S (4,822) (3,256)
(6.745) (23,000)
(restated)
(eE75)
Loss per share BlEE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR #E (B 16 (0.31) (3.40)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sra ML

As at 31 December 2023 72023412 A31 H

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WBER&E 17 7,542 20,364
Right-of-use assets FHRESE 18 25,916 23,675
Investments in associates REE R RN E 20 - 1,317
Financial assets measured at ERAFEHEFABEEN
fair value through profit or loss TREE 21 1,131 3,147
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 31 5,505 2,327
Deposits e 22 12,569 14,107
Pledged bank deposits BIEIRIRITIER 23 5,000 5,000
57,663 69,937
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 24 6,027 6,283
Trade and other receivables, deposits B 5 REMERFIE
and prepayments e RIER A 22 12,430 9,656
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEFEFABEN
through profit or loss CTREE 21 - 1,783
Amounts due from related companies JiE W BR B A B FRIE 25 1,065 747
Amounts due from associates JE U A B SR 25 - 531
Current tax recoverable TH&@EHE@%RIE 114 279
Bank balances and cash SRITHSB MRS 23 10,359 9,341
29,995 28,620
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables and B REMENFIEBERESER
accrued charges 26 33,068 33,883
Contract liabilities BRAE 27 4,608 4,962
Amounts due to related companies FE{< A B é‘?”& /TAIE 25 2,227 2,399
Amount due to a director ENEE 25 4,105 939
Amount due to an associate F“ﬁﬁ?’ﬁ%’& FRIE 25 - 94
Bank borrowings RITE 28 4,833 8,191
Current tax payable JE 1 BN ER#% 18 816 648
Lease liabilities HERE 18 20,443 26,126
Reinstatement provision 18 IR B 29 1,541 2,119
71,641 79,361
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (41,646) (50,741)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBAERE 16,017 19,196

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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As at 31 December 2023 2023512 A31 H

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FkRBAE
Reinstatement provision BIREE 29 2,504 2,357
Provision for long service payment RERB BB 33 813 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 31 672 505
Contract liabilities BRAEE 27 8,086 9,082
Lease liabilities HEalE 18 14,769 10,116
26,844 22,060
Net liabilities BEFE (10,827) (2,864)
Capital and reserves EARFE
Share capital & s 30 11,598 11,598
Reserves fE (10,823) (8,900)
Equity attributable to owners RATHEE NEGEZ
of the Company 775 2,698
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR A (11,602) (5,562)
Total deficit &5 At 48 ZA (10,827) (2,864)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 239 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

KONG LINGLEI
Pa —
< A
Director

EF

EEE DN 20244 3 B 25 B HEfE I 5 AE T
BNE129F 239 A 2R MBWE - LA T
SINTRAEE

WAN SUET YEE CHERRY

BEES
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B It FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARIRRARLE
Capital
redemption  Treasury Share Other Non- Total
Share Share reserve shares option  reserves Accumulated controlling equity/
capital  premium  (noteb)  (notec) reserve  (notea) losses Total interests  (deficit)
E5RE
i EFRR Rt R B/
k& ROEE  (WEb)  (WEd BRERE (W) ZHER h B (BY)4E
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TER  TER  TER  fER  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TER
At1January 2022 RANE1R1A 1,612 100,922 50 (148) 229 10326 (101,038) 21953 2,20) 19,752
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZERYER
expense for the year - - - - - - (19744 (19,744) (325%) (23,000
Cancelation of shares repurchased ~ FESSEERIAVIR (BH3E30)
(note 30) (14) (148) 14 148 - - - - - -
Transactions with non-controlling EARERNRS
interests (note 34) (F3t34) - - - - - - 108 108 (108) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEMBAE (5 14) - - - - - - - - 3 3
Equity settled share-based WREEENRA AERS
transactions (note 40) 25 (H340) - - - - 381 - - 381 - 38
At 31 December 2022 RAONENANAR
and 1 January 2023 WBE181H 11,598 100,774 o4 - 610 10326 (120,674) 2,698 (5562) (2.864)
Loss for the year EMEE - - - - - - (1801) (180 @817)  (6618)
Other comprehensive expense EREMZERR
for the year - - - - - - (122) (122 (5 (127)
Total comprehensive expense EMEERXEE
for the year - - - - - - (1923) (193 (4822) (6,745)
Disposal of subsidiares (note 14) HEMBAR (i 14) - - - - - - - -y 029
Cancellation of share ptions iTHERE - - - - (130 - 130 - - -
At 31 December 2023 RBE12531A 11,598 100,774 64 - 480 10326 (122,467) 175 (11,602) (10,827)

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

Other reserves mainly represent the aggregate amount of 1) the
differences between the considerations received and the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the
relevant interests upon the deemed disposal of partial interest in
subsidiaries; 2) the differences between the considerations paid and the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed acquisition/
acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries; 3) acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by a controlling shareholder as
deemed capital contribution; 4) reserve arising from the group
reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by JIA Group
Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big
Team™)) and the Company to acquire equity interest in subsidiaries and
shareholders’ loans of respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan
balance of HK$48,330,000; 5) deemed capital contribution from
shareholders through waiver of amounts due to the then shareholders
of HK$3,589,000; and 6) HK$1,825,000 upon the waiver of inter-
company loans to More Earn by group entities that caused an increase

in net assets of More Earn attributable to non-controlling interests.

The capital redemption reserve of the Company represents the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company repurchased and cancelled.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled was
transferred from share premium to the capital redemption reserve.

Treasury share represents the consideration paid for the shares
repurchased by the Company but not cancelled at the end of the
reporting period.

B RE

(a)

HMHEHEEZENTSENEE 1) BEKR
EEEAHENB QR BMEREABMEZ
EEEEFERAELAGENERE : 2)E
RREERE R BN B A R s IME =
BIEEESEREEFERAELMNHDEN
ER 3 —RERBRRKE-ERBATS
HIMER (RIEXE)  4) EEEEMELEY
@FE TERREREESEERQR (A
7% Big Team Ventures Limited ([ Big Team])) &
AARBWENBRRRERSHE RN
& 3R B R (A B FR48 4 7% 48,330,000 7 7T ) M
BITRG 5) BRRREMNERRRNKIE
3,589,000 ST RAFMRRITE : Kk6) EE
BERK% TMore EammtEB AR RIKE
KB EIEYE % #E %5 E (5 More Eam & EF B
#4901,825,000 7% 7T °

ARBWEARERFHEREBLDREHNAR
ARANEE - — RSN EHBROEED
REACHBRNEEEREERABELHME -

EFBRMDERAATEERERRS RS A
SESHHI B STAS RO AE o



For the year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B It FE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation BRI E 18 (9,453) (22,409)
Adjustments for: BAT SIBIEL FH%
Interests income FEHBA 8 (101) 21)
Depreciation of property, plant M- BERZETE
and equipment 12 9,267 13,040
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEENE 12 19,611 21,210
Finance costs E KA 11 2,926 3,185
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment REREE 9 629 1,250
Fair value loss on financial assets ERAFEFAEZH SR
measured at fair value through EEANFEEBEFE
profit or loss, net 9 1,454 1,105
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE QRS 9 (36) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMER,(WE) 9 433 (4,350)
Impairment loss of property, Y - B REED
plant and equipment REEE 19 3,991 5,314
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ER#EEENRERE 19 5,789 3,545
Impairment loss of financial assets TREEREBE 384 887
Share of results of associates FE(REEE R R EE 20 551 307
Reversal of reinstatement provision BIREERD 9 (431) -
Equity settled share-based transactions LA B e 48 55 DARR 17 7%
AR5 40 - 381
Gain on termination of lease IEFRE WA 9 (1,401) -
Operating cash flows before LEEREER
movements in working capital KERSME 33,613 23,444
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(1Em) 256 (752)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, B 5 Rk H b fE Y IE -
deposits and prepayments e RIEMNRBER D 658 1,922
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B NHMEMNFRIEN
payables and accrued charges FEETER CRd), /1 m (808) 3,753
Decrease in contract liabilities AHEERD (2,047) (3,131)
Decrease in amount due from a director R —RESEFIERD - 608
Increase in reinstatement provision 18 R g AN - 241
Increase in provision for long service R EARR % & B 8 12 hn
payment 686 -
Cash generated from operations REEFXNET 32,358 26,085
Income tax refund REFER 157 -
Income tax paid BRI H a (469)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHEENRE T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32,515 25,616




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Interests received 2R & 101 21
Advance to related companies BlEz) YNGR EN (139) (292)
Acquisition of financial assets Wi A T EF ABES

measured at fair value through TREE

profit or loss (414) (2,868)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEMBRARNERES

disposal of subsidiaries GR),/ WA FE 14 (23) 2,238
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  WEREZED

plant and equipment ZIECE S 380 -
Purchase of property, plant BEWE BELERE

and equipment (1,445) (9,269)
Advanced to an associate A — B B 2R B BN - (386)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEEFRITFROR D = 4,500
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZTBFFARSFHE

ACTIVITIES (1,540) (6,056)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METED
Interests paid B FLE 38 (407) (358)
Repayment of bank borrowings BEEBITER 38 (3,358) (2,993)
(Repayment to)/advanced from MR R A GER), 2K

related companies 38 (266) 234
Advanced from a director —BEERN 38 3,166 939
Advanced from an associate L NGIE-E 38 - 94
Payment for lease liabilities HEBERN®K 38 (29,092) (21,060)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHAREFEE

ACTIVITIES (29,957) (23,144)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREZEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #(Rd) B8 1,018 (3,584)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDNRERREEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,341 12,925
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERNRERREZEY

END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED (METHEBRES)

BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 10,359 9,341




For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands on 21
August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 8 February 2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Central Power Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

Pursuant to the passing of a special resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 February 2024, the
English name of the Company was changed from “Jia Group
Holdings Limited” to “XinXiang Era Group Company Limited”
and the Chinese name of the Company was changed from “ {£
REBBERRAR" to "HEHFHREBBR AT " with effect
on 29 February 2024.

RRBIR2015F8 A21 HRERE R
AE (B e HEREEMK L&
RAERRBR AR ERHN2018
F2RASHUEBAEWMERIMARADF
([BZZFT)) GEM £ » R E B R 4R iE
RAGA—HREBZMALZH AR
Central Power Group Limited ° 2~ 2 A1 &)
AR EE R EEE E DA F
WMARER—EIHE -

RRRAREERAR - HHERAN
FEEBHNME3 -

RIE R 2024F2 A22 B BT R R R
RlRE LBBMEIIAER - XA AW
® AT A [ia Group Holdings Limited ]
# & & [ XinXiang Era Group Company
Limited] * RAFRMRXEZBHIERE
EERAFRIZFERIFZRREBER
AR B2024F2 A29HRBAERK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re ISR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2. ERTBUREE
(a) BT BRBUMBHREER

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) to the Group's financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17
ERMBMELERIE TR
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEAGHERE 1R RBEBYBRELER
EREBE2H (BFTR)

Insurance Contracts
REEE K

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB KR

([ERMBHREEA]) RHE
BRI A

RAFE AEEEHAEER
2023F 1 A1 B2 RFAMNEE
MR BEREREXEAATH
BAGMAg ((BEEEA
B BMHNFITREYHHRSE
AISKEERTA -

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB GFTERIE 8 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates

SEHEFTZER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

BB ERFE 125 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BEAGEEAFE 125 (BFTA)

Except for the impact of the adoption of the amendments
to HKFRSs that have been summarised in below, the other
new and amendments to HKFRSs has no material impact
on the Group’s accounting policies.

HE-QRFEANEELRBEREBNELERIE
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

R RE — IEZSDARR

BRER @ T & B A 3R £ R
RIRZEESN HMHaIEEY
BHREENREEFTANEAEE
ZEHRALBEATE -

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
accounting policies in note 4 to the financial statements.

These amendments have no effect on the measurement
or presentation of any items in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but affect the disclosure of

accounting policies of the Group.

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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(a)

BRI BRI R EER
(([ERMBHREEA]) RHE
CHENE D

EREMERNE1RREEBMBR
EEABHBAE 2% (BFTE)—
B BEZKE

FEREGENFE IR (BFTAN) B
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B BRREMATUNGEEREY
ERRMBRENEIZEAER
1R % F B AR PR AR MR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BRI AT

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to (a) HMFFETEBYBREZEAR

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

New guidance on accounting for the mandatory
provident fund — long service payment offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong issued by HKICPA

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment)
Ordinance 2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was
enacted. The Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of
the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
contributions under the mandatory provident fund
("MPF") scheme to offset severance payment (“SP”) and
long service payment (“LSP") (“the Abolition”).
Subsequently, the Government of HKSAR announced that
the Abolition will take effect on 1 May 2025 (“the
Transition Date”).

The following key changes will take effect since the
Transition Date:

— Accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions cannot be used to
offset the LSP/SP in respect of the employment
period after the Transition Date.

—  The pre-transition LSP/SP is calculated using the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition
Date, instead of using the last month’s salary of
employment termination date.

([ERMBHREEA]) RHE
CHENE D

ERESMASRAEANEER
FMELAEE — REBRBEIEHH
I B & 5 BRI A9 FT 5 5

M2022F 6 A 2022 FEE MR
REFEDED (K ) (1BET) 1§
B> (MEET 15 B1 1) FIRE < 1ZET 151
BB s EREE ([RES])
HTEXENEHAHRE RS
EIHEMEBE (BB RRAR
He ((RARBE2]) L H (H
BEYE] - BHig - BEAFRIN
S BUBLZHEAG R 2025F 5 A1
B (&6 8] 4

THEELPEEEH ARER:

— EEXemsliEsiEs HRw
RERGTERARNEHEES
FRXEHORIRS
&/ EME -

— BhH AR ER
BN EZEH AR &RRE—
A& F 25 E - MIEUK
HEBHEBZ&EE —EAN
FrastHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

New guidance on accounting for the mandatory
provident fund — long service payment offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong issued by HKICPA (Cont’d)

Due to the complexities of the accounting for the
offsetting of accrued benefits derived from an employer’s
mandatory MPF contributions and its LSP obligation and
the accounting for the offsetting mechanism could
become material in light of the Abolition, the HKICPA
published “Accounting implications of the abolition of the
MPEF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” (“the
Guidance”) in July 2023 to provide guidance to account
for the offsetting mechanism and the Abolition. The
HKICPA concluded that there are two acceptable
accounting approaches for the offsetting mechanism,

being:

— Approach 1: Account for the amount expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution
towards that employee’s LSP benefits in terms of

HKAS 19.93(a)

— Approach 2: Account for the employer MPF
contributions and the offsetting mechanism as a

funding mechanism for the LSP obligation

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s LSP
liability before the expected offsetting under the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism is immaterial. Application of the
Guidance had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
based on management’s assessment, provision for long
service payment of HK$813,000 was provided as at 31

December 2023.

(a)

BRI BRI R EER
(([ERMBHREEA]) RHE
CHENE D

ERESMASRABANEER
FMELAEE — REBRBEEIEHH
FWETEENHES (F)

HREHEEFARFERESHER
ErEN2ERSRARBRB S
EB2EHREREERURE
FAEUSZH IR IE S 2 5T R
BEEXR A AagR
202357 AEM(BEBBUERER
— RS EEKE 2257
2)([%#E3l)) - L S R E
HEHN ST EERHIES -F
BEIMAERAEEKEE M
ErEX 85t RIER A - Bl

— AEV:BEESGFAER
#19.93(a) k- BIEHH T
HENHEARBEIERE
HEBRARBEBHOH

E
N

— R BRERIBESHK
KR SHHFI 1 B RARS ©
5 HO SR Il BE 72

HZE2022F128A31HLEFE K
SEEHRERES — RERS
SHEEBETEE 218 & 5
RIEEETLFNEKN - FEAZIE
Sl AR B 22022612 A
3NHIEFERNEGE M BREREK
EAFE - EHZ=2023F12A31H
LHFEE REEEREMNGT R
2023 12 A31 Hitie RHRS
1% 813,0008 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re ISR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES conte) 2. EEtBEEE 2

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that have (b) EEMEERERNFTE
been issued but are not yet effective BIMBHREERREEITAR
The following new and amendments to HKFRSs, ATEAKEEBRREETHH
potentially relevant to the Group's financial statements, ZHEI BB EERREE
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not RIABEEEM BRARES B
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current REREEIERZRMN - AEEB
intention is to apply these changes on the date they AT BN ZEER A B B ER
become effective. ZEEY -

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)’

BB EEERIZE 15 (IBFTA) BESBARESIERE ([2020F&5T])!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)’

BB SFERE 158 (IBFTA) MR AR ERE A E ([2022 &5 1)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)  Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause’

EABREEST (KER]) HBRRNEY — BRAHHBRERERERNTEHERD
Pax
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements'
HKFRS 7
BB EAETRREE HEmRE LB
I mELERIE 75 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
EEMBRELERF 165 (BRI X)) ERERNEERE
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
BEEGFHERIE 2158 (IBF]A) R Z AT W 2
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
and HKAS 28 or Joint Venture?
EEPBRELERNFE 105K REEHRHBENFRREECEZHANEEHETOEAS
BEEGEHERIZE 285% (7] )
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 L MR2024F 1 A1H 2 ERIENFE
January 2024 HRRE AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 MR2025F 1 A1 2 ERIBNFE
January 2025 HRRE AR
3 No mandatory effective date determined yet but available 3 MR TR A E - AT L4

for adoption

The directors of the Company anticipate that the AANBEEES EEHAA LEHETE
application of all above new and amendments to HKFRSs EI B E LR REBEI A e Y]
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial BB RS A TS R EREATE -

statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs"”)
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

During the year of 2023, despite the gradual recovery of
the Group’s business from the COVID-19 pandemic, the
operating environment remained challenging in the face
of rising global inflation and a slowdown in the local
economy. The market sentiment is weak where
consumption did not recover as expected and will
continue to challenge the economic prospects in 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group still
suffered from the weak market sentiment and a net loss
of HK$6,618,000 was incurred. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group’s had net current liabilities of HK$41,646,000
and net liabilities of HK$10,827,000.

(a)

(b)

BREH

REMBHRRDREMBERE
S AERMAOT B ER
XA -BAGMEN(EES
FREAD KRB CATRBEIEE
B SRS ZERIL) A R BB R AE
FIMMBERERR - I FE
M RERBAY I FTGEME 7 £
MARAMAENEREEANR -

STEEERSALERR

BREAFEFENETERTA
Sh o MR A RS MR TR IBIE 2 X
AERRH HBRTXHAHZ
SRR ©

R2023F BEAEBEBD R
COVID-19%Z Ew B & F g
KERBINAGEHRBR AR
EMEERESEE mi5EHE
Rk - HBERTIRME i
B 2024 FHCB AT R BAPE -

HZE2023F12A31HILEFE &K
SENZImMEHEHEELTE
A BB F 586,618,000/ T - A
202351231 B AEE RSB
&/ F % 541,646,000 A&
SHEE /10,827,000 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Cont'd)

For the purpose of assessing the appropriateness of the
going concern basis for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a
period of 15 months from the end of the reporting period
of these consolidated financial statements (“Forecast”).
The past performance and liquidity as well as the future
economic outlook have been taken into account in the
preparation of the Forecast, which includes the following
major measures and assumptions:

(@) The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over staff costs aiming at improving the
working capital and cash flow position of the
Group; and

(b) Closely monitoring the future development of
catering industry.

In addition to the above, Central Power Group Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company, has
undertaken to provide financial support to the Group to
enable the Group to have sufficient working capital to
meet its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall
due and to continue to carry on its business over the
period covered by the Forecast. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

In consideration of the Group’s current operation and
business plan, the directors are satisfied that the Group
will be able to meet in full its financial obligations when
they fall due in the foreseeable future.

(b) FFEEERISELERE

(%)

RTEERSEREEERUZSE
RAMBBRRNEEE  ARF
EFECREREXSHRAVBR
R E UM AAREFT 1588 B
MmEBERERR (ZER] - R®
REZEARESEBBRBERARK
MBESARKREKEENS - &
AT X2 MRE

@ AKBIEREUEEMNEE R
TR R ARAE Bl - AR FH
AEBELEES MRS RM
R

(b) TUEFERENRLER -

BREEN PEKERNDAR
AR (RRBIMEREZERAF B
EERAAEBERHRMBXE &
AEBERBRANLEES N
REZBRAMREN RREAEED
HEBLREENHELEER-
At FEMBERRCEREER
BEERES

REBREEZRBLERER
el BEFEEMAKERERA
SEREMBE DR 2E0EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (contd)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

(o)

assumption (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the above, the going concern of the
Group is dependent upon the future outcomes of the
above plans that are subject to inherent uncertainties that
include (i) the operating costs would not surge to an
extent that fail the cost control measures and (ii) the
immediate holding company would be able to provide
sufficient working capital on a timely basis to the Group
when the Group is in need. These indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce
the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net
realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
FERREEERAR/ -F

=

3.

fim BB 2 (1)
(b) FREERBELEBRR

(c)

(%)

BE LN AEENFEL
EANEURR B a8 MRRAER -
MzEERZUATEE T HEER
EMAR - B )EERATE
AL B R B e A AN HE il 4R B Y
BRE: RMHEREZERAFERANE
AEETER RERAKBREH
FRRMEEER ZFBAKRHA
FEAEEHAREBELEN
BENELEEARENEANTEE
HE Bt AEEAEELE
EREGBETREREEKEE
&% -

AR EEEFERLE  RBA
ETHE SAKEEEZERE
EREAERFE RAELELE
ZE—TBEERE LHIER
BEERFRBDABEIREH D
BRRDEELRRDEE KA
MBBRARERRZ AR ZFE -

WEER 2SI G
REMBHRIAET (BT 7§
BARBNMEERE) 25 K5
BEAEIN MAERENIEER
AESEANTEE(TAET) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BRI AT

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

~

REZSFRA BRI ARG IR
iy

consolidated financial statements are set out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation (a) GEEHE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets,
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

When the Group ceases to equity account for an
investment because of loss of significant influence, any
retained interest in the Group is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in
the profit or loss. The fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as a financial asset.
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(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Revenue and other income

The Group recognises revenue from restaurant operations
which provides catering services. Revenue from catering
services is recognised at a point in time when the services
are rendered.

Revenue from restaurant consultancy and other services
are recognised over time when services are rendered as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
entity performs.

Revenue from membership contracts and sponsorship
income from promotion services are recognised on a time-
based method over the subscription period/sponsorship
period respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Leasehold improvements HEMEEE
Furniture and fixtures EMREEEE
Equipment and tools Ak ITE
Computers B

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

(e) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

—  right-of-use assets
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(e) Impairment of other non-current assets

(f)

(Cont’d)

The recoverable amount of assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Corporate assets are allocated to
individual cash-generating units on a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis that can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in
first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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(g) Financial instruments

0}

Financial assets

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they
are originated. All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. All other financial assets
are initially recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

0]

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the
business model. These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. All other equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

(90 €I A#)

(i)

EREEREBRE (F)
AEERBEBMBREE
AIEIEEIL T A EE S
FEUW RIRR E IR B IE
Rz HBEREEERER
%Eﬁﬁ%%féﬂa°$§%l5$ﬁ
BEEBEEEERERHE
BiBERE AREMCHE
WHRS S ERRTIEER R R
RERB T IARE -

REMEBEREEMS
TRHEEEE L1218 A R
EEEBRREE -AM &
ERRA NS ERLREZE
e BB A HESRE
EBRAEE-

EETEREENEER
E%ﬂiﬁﬁaﬁé%%’?ﬁ%i‘m
ERfhEtRBEEBRE
AEESEERRENMBAN
HBZRARKE DA #S
MEERBEBNER - It
BEREASENBELR
AREAMEEFHBHNEE
REMERDN XL BIEA
EIEER

AREER HWEBEES
MEB30 A FEAREA
-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to action such as realising security (if any
is held); or the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the

Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;
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(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

° it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group'’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities including
trade and other payables and accrued charges,
amounts due to related companies, a director and
an associate and bank borrowings at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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(h) Employee benefits costs

0}

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are charged as
expense in the year as the related service are
provided by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Employee benefits — Defined contribution
schemes

Mandatory provident fund scheme set up and
operated under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Cap. 485 (“the MPF Schemes
Ordinance”) is categorised as a defined contribution
plan. Contributions to defined contribution plan are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the related services are recognised.
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(h) Employee benefits costs (Cont'd)
(iii) Employee benefits — Defined benefit schemes

LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(“the Ordinance”) is categorised as a defined benefit
plan. Employees qualified under the Ordinance are
entitled to LSP in certain circumstances specified in
the Ordinance. There are no legal funding
requirements on employers and the Group does not
have any arrangement in place to settle its payment
obligation in the future. The Group’s obligation to
LSP is measured at:

—  Gross LSP obligation which is estimated using
the projected unit credit method discounted
to its present value using market yields
available on high quality corporate bonds (or
government bonds if there is no deep market
in such high quality corporate bonds) that
have maturity dates approximating to the
terms of the liabilities and are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars which is the currency of
the LSP obligations; less
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(h) Employee benefits costs (Contd)

(iii) Employee benefits — Defined benefit schemes

(Cont’d)

— Negative service costs. Under the Ordinance
and the MFP Schemes Ordinance, the Group
can offset the accrued benefits derived from
the Group’s MPF contributions against the
Group's LSP obligations. The Group regards
these MPF contributions are deemed
contributions by employees towards the LSP
benefits. The nature is negative service costs.
These deemed contributions are estimated by
applying an expected investment return rate
on the MPF contributions and then attributed
to periods of service using the same
attribution method for gross LSP obligation.

Service costs are recognised in profit or loss, and
include current and past service costs (including
result from a plan amendment).

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss, and is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the LSP obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the balance of the LSP obligation,
considering the effects of benefit payments during
the period.

Remeasurements of the LSP obligation, including
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases are capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for (i) leases which are short-term leases and (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset are initially recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

()

Leasing (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(i)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. In both cases, an
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Leasing (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont’d)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an
extension to the lease term), the lease liability is
remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount. If the
renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of
the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax. Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss

except when they relate to items recognised in other

comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also

recognised in other comprehensive income or when they

relate to items recognised directly in equity in which case

the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

()

Income taxes (Cont’d)

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part
of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised, provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arises from initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary difference. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(k) Provisions

)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in foreign currencies are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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(m) Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair value
of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve within
equity.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and depreciation method in determining
the related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
management’s experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions and will take into account the lease
term (including any renewal option) of the Group’s
restaurants. Management of the Group will
accelerate the depreciation charge where the
economic useful lives are shorter than previously
estimated due to removal or closure of restaurants.
The management of the Group will also write-off or
write-down the carrying value of the items which
are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned. Actual economic useful lives
may differ from estimated economic useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

Assessing impairment of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets requires an
estimation of its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. If there is any indication that the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
allocated to each individual restaurant cash
generating unit (“CGU") may be impaired, such as
restaurants operated with operating loss,
recoverable amount shall be estimated for such
restaurant CGU. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGUs of each
individual restaurant and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value to those
cash flows. When fair value less costs of disposal
calculations are undertaken, the fair value was
estimated using relevant valuation technique and
make reference to recent market comparative for
similar assets and adjusted for difference in
condition in order to determine the fair value.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets included in the consolidated
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value. The fair value of financial
assets measured at FVTPL that are not traded in an
active market is based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair value, the valuers have based on variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. In relying on the valuation report,
the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
could affect the reported fair values of these
financial assets. Further details are contained in note
36 to the financial statements.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

5. {55t EE R

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (conta)

(b) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

0}

Going concern assumption

The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors of the
Company, at the end of the reporting period, about
the future outcome of events or conditions, which
are inherently uncertain. The directors considers that
the Group have the capabilities to continue as going
concerns, the going concern assumption and related
mitigating measures taken by management are set
out in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue represents the consideration expected to be entitled by

the Group from catering services of restaurant operations. The

Group's revenue from external customers based on their nature

are detailed below:

(b) ERAKESRERNET
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6. WARZHER

L ON

WARAEEEREEREENERR
HBERZFANRE AKEERETFP L
AORBEINREFORAFFRLINT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHEIT

Catering services BEIRE
— Fine dining — SIHER 165,020 152,503
— Mid-market dining — IR ER 16,750 21,236
— Spedialty coffee — gk - 7,470
— Casual dining — KEERK 96,772 35,796
278,542 217,005

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

FERRKEEERAT/ —F

=EER

— 167 ——



—— 168 —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (contd)

Revenue (Cont'd)

The Group applies the practical expedient of HKFRS 15 which
allows the Group not to disclose the information of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customers, as the original expected
duration of the performance obligation arising from the catering
services are all within one year. All revenue is recognised at a
point in time for the year.

Segmental information

The Group's revenue is solely derived from the restaurant
operation and management of restaurants in Hong Kong. For
the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the chief operating decision maker (being the
executive directors of the Company) reviews the overall results
and financial position of the Group as a whole, which are
prepared based on same accounting policies set out in note 4.
Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further analysis of this single segment is presented.

Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding deposits, deferred tax assets and
financial assets) of approximately HK$33,458,000 (2022:
HK$45,356,000) are located in Hong Kong based on the
physical location of assets or location of operations.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual external customer contributes over
10% of total revenue of the Group for both years.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 &£ 20234 12 A31 HIEFE

7. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’ 7. EEREEME

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments

() EERFETHAEME

EXEpREERASEEHKEM
RIS SN T :

Director’'s emoluments for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Group were as
follow:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZE2023F12A31RLEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTES BukiunEs
Devin Leung Wee
Wong Wan Nijanthan YukLun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Suet Yee,  Chanmugam Ulric Tony
(note ¢) Cherry (note ¢) (notec) (note ¢) Total
Devin
Nijanthan Wee Keng
BB Chanmugam 2EB  Hiong, Tony
(Wito) BEE (Hic) iE (Krzc) h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET ThR TR TR TET TR
Fees e - - 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments: Hte -
Salaries and other benefits FeREMENRZE
and allowance 894 894 - - - 1,788
Retirement benefit scheme RIVERIETBIES
contributions 18 18 - - - 36
Discretionary bonus (note b) ~ EDfETEAT (i3Eb) - - - - - -
912 912 150 150 150 2,214

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 7. EEREEME )
EMOLUMENTS (conta)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EERFETHAE#MS
emoluments (Cont'd) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022F12A318LLEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiEs BUFHITES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan YukLun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
Devin Wee
Nijanthan Keng Hiong,
=il BE&  Chanmugam 218 Tony a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn i iR T AL
Fees we - - 113 13 113 339
Other emoluments: Ehe:
Salaries and other benefits ESREMENREH
and allowance 710 803 - - - 1513
Share-based payments (note o) bAR{) BERERI (3 (Hista) 53 53 A 2 bii 169
Retirement benefit scheme RIVBRLTBIES
contributions 15 18 - - - 3
Discretionary bonus (note b) ~ EVIRTEAL (B £5h) - - - - - -
778 874 134 134 134 2,054

These amounts represent the estimated value of
share options granted to the directors under the
Company’s share option scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The value of these share
options is measured according to the accounting
policies for share-based payments as set out in note
4 to the financial statements. Further details of the
options granted are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis
with reference to the individual’s performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (contd)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Cont'd)

Q) With effect from 15 February 2024, Ms. Wong Pui
Yain has resigned as an executive director. Each of
Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony has
resigned as an independent non-executive director.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
both years. No director waived any emoluments for the
year ended 31 December 2023. During the year ended 31
December 2022, one executive director and 3
independent non-executive directors waived HK$144,000
and HK$112,500 emoluments respectively.

Five highest paid individuals

Two directors of the Company with the same emoluments
were included in the five highest paid individuals of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
none) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis
presented above. The two directors all ranked fifth among
the five highest paid individuals. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2022: five) individuals are set out below:

7. EEREEME

(a)

(b)

pir:

EERITETBRAEMSE
(&)

) H2024%F2R158E &M
BZtEBmARTES R
X B %t & - Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam %t 4 & Wee
Keng Hiong Tony L £ & A E
BEBIEMITES -

AEEREFEHERAARAQATE
BXERFHM - ERWRSIE M
AREB A K E B r 52 E
RIEABMEBEE - REZ=2023F
NANBLEFE MEESEHE
ER B - BEZ 202212 A 31
HIEFE —®2HTEFR=4
BLIENITEE D Al E FH B
144,000/ 7T . 112,500/8 7T °

AEEEHMAL

MEAEBHAMEHAARES
BREZ=2023F12A318IF
EAEBREZESFH AL (2022
FE) HMEeREXHTHRR
BRo-MEEEHERE &S T M
ATHHERER - FgRIUEZ (2022
F:RAB)ALTHOBMSEIOT -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits and allowance ¥4 K& E b 1@ 7 K 32/ 4,312 5,109
Share-based payments LARR 19 72 B R 69 157 3K - 525
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R R4& F 5 &l 7% 72 90
4,384 5,724

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

HERREBARAR/ T =FF®R

— 171 ——



— 172 —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 4.
EMOLUMENTS (contd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The number of the highest paid individuals who are not

EEREEME &

(b) EEREHMAL @)
TIMEHENEARRESR

directors of the Company have their remuneration falling REFEMATEHBENAT :
within the following bands:
2023 2022
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &L E
1,500,000 7T 4 4
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no NEBE Z2023F K 2022412

emoluments were paid by the Group to the four (2022:
five) highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the four (2022: five) highest paid
individuals waived any emoluments for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re ISR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

OTHER INCOME 8. Hithdgr A
2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Government grants (note) B #6 Bh (B 53) - 10,978
Sponsorship income ZRA 254 708
Membership income gBIA 208 243
Interest income A EHBA 101 21
Insurance claim REEERE 20 229
Restaurant consultancy service income BEEMRBEEA 229 1,748
Event services charge income EERBEWA 483 468
Others Hitb 132 27
1,427 14,422
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised MisE B Z=2022F 12 A31BILFE A&
government grants of HK$10,978,000 in respect of COVID-19- = 3t 2019 7 MR 7 5 7 40 8 0 B T AR IR
related subsidies, of which HK$5,898,000 relates to Employment fI#%8 10,978,000 7 + E+ 5,898,000
Support Scheme and HK$5,080,000 relates to Subsidy Schemes BT E B R BT BUE BUS R AR
under the Anti-epidemic Fund, both of which were provided by TEEIBR - &5,080,0005% T E A
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. EMEES AT 2B - WMZSE
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies 78 R AR A BRT 5 1) R PR A R 1 R EL
attached to the receipts of those subsidies. HNEIE ©
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hittlhz=mRiEGiH
2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net exchange gain b H s F 58 98 9
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WEIKENERFRE

plant and equipment, net (629) (1,250)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR

(note 14) (&518), Wz (Rt 14) (433) 4,350
Gain on disposal of an associate (note 20) &5 & A & AUk s (K7 20) 36 -
Reversal of reinstatement provision B B8 R (M93E29)

(note 29) 431 -
Gain on termination of lease HLIFHE R s 1,401 -
Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEF ABZED

measured at FVTPL, net TRMEENDNTFEBEFR (1,454) (1,105)
Others Hit 168 159

(382) 2,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

1.

10. H{th =X

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Auditor’s remuneration EiBA 1,050 880
Bank charge RITIE 385 354
Business and license fee EBRFAE 180 339
Carriage and freight B R EE 527 877
Cleaning and laundry B R KER 4,544 4,782
Consultancy fee BB 1,753 2,229
Credit card commission EAFAE 5,310 4,737
Decoration £i& 753 640
Event expense TEENF X 252 799
Insurance R 581 651
Legal and professional fee EEREXER 1,230 2,897
Machine rental W2 843 700
Operating supplies KA m 4,280 4,234
Other expenses HMpx 1,857 1,851
Recruitment cost FREE R AN 313 93
Repair and maintenance BB MIRE 3,785 3,178
Samples/food tasting B Rae 398 741
Stationery and office supplies XA N AR R 289 327
Travelling expense ERFAX 1,065 394
29,395 30,703

FINANCE COSTS 1. ME KA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABENEMX (M 18)

(note 18) 1,822 2,044
Interest on bank borrowings SRITERFE 407 358
Others — Interest accreted on Hitt — 5B ERNERFE

contract liabilities (note 27) (FtsE27) 697 783

2,926 3,185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re ISR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 12. R ATES 18
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation has been arrived B RTE B E B, (GEA)
at after charging/(crediting): THIEE -
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B A Er B 1,050 880
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - RERZEETE (HFE17)
equipment (note 17) 9,267 13,040
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (M:E18)
(note 18) 19,611 21,210
28,878 34,250
Gain on termination of lease KIFHERMRE (1,401) -
Directors’ remuneration (note 7) EEHM(FHE7) 2,274 2,054
Provision for long service payment of EERARBGSEE
directors 61 -
Other staff costs: H B ITAAK :
Salaries and other benefits FekHEMmEH 96,372 86,290
Provision for long service payment RERRTS © B H 625 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K4& F 51 2] 4 3 3,872 3,522
Total staff costs (note) B I A4%E () 103,204 91,866
Lease payments in respect of: FEATSENHEERNRK
— Short-term lease expenses (note 18) — SR (HiE18) 1,211 1,246
— Low-value lease expenses (note 18) — EREBEESERZ (H:E18) 940 790
— Variable lease payment (note 18) AT E R (KIRE18) 15,580 3,399
17,731 5,435
Impairment loss on financial assets: @Eﬁi’é%f@i@%?ﬁ :
— Other receivables — H b UL KT 32 -
— Amounts due from related companies  — JEUZEAEE A 7 276 285
— Amounts due from associates — EEEENT Iﬁﬁ 76 602
384 887
Note: During year ended 31 December 2023, no share-based payments MizE: #EZE2023F12A318LFE - #
(2022: HK$798,000) was recognised and included in the total B AR R 2R R (2022 4F -
staff cost. 798,000 ) TIARERRFTAE T
A HEEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to profit or loss

REE GEA) /B RA S #ERE

represent:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Current tax Bl ERFR 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEN 176 608
Deferred tax (note 31) EIERLE (FI7E31) (3,011) (17)
(2,835) 591

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
16.5%.

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

BREMBHFERESE  GEKEE
ERNE2EE A TR S A8.25% 8
MEHH - MBR2E BB T 258G
LA16.5% H) B R B - TR/ & RIS
LAz EREEER 2 AT KEER
16.5% =2 %1 °

REERNERGER) FX 8R4
B hkEtarmbmRmYIBHRATER
HERWMT -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FHEIT
Loss before taxation B A5 Al Es 18 (9,453) (22,409)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LA E165%
(2022: 16.5%) (20224 : 16.5%) st H IR (1,560) (3,698)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT H07350 5 32 80 A 75
for tax purpose 2,481 2,151
Tax effect of income not taxable BERTRANT G E
for tax purpose (409) (2,004)
Tax effect of deductible temporary WA Pl R R FR A
differences not recognised N E 791 589
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised W RN IEBENR BT E 1,428 3,983
Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax IR 5 iR & IR AE T 1H & EE 1Y
losses now recognised as deferred tax ERIARERIAEEN
assets T E (3,183) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously BALRTERERNRIESE
not recognised (2,383) (430)
Income tax (credit)/expense PrASH (%), B (2,835) 591

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 31.

EER IR FBE N3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

In December 2023, Jia Group Hong Kong Limited (formerly
known as ‘Big Teams Ventures Limited’), the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a share sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to dispose its
100% equity interest in a wholly owned subsidiary, Incredible
Resources Limited, at cash consideration of HK$2,200,000.
Incredible Resources Limited and its 80% held subsidiary,
Hidden Glory Limited, (collectively, ‘Incredible Resources Group’)
are principally engaged in the business of investment in financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The disposal was completed during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Group recognised a
loss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$433,000.

B ZE2023E 1231 HIFEE

# 20234 12 A * JIA Group Hong Kong
Limited (AT %8 [ Big Teams Ventures
Limited] * NEBZ 2 EMBAR) H—
BEILE=FE MUK ATTWJ@ LA
2,200,000 Tz HEREBELEER
fd 2 & K /B 2 & Incredible Resources
Limited #) 2 ZBAXAE © Incredible Resources
Limited & £ £ 5 80% #E 25 & it B 2 &)
Hidden Glory Limited (45 %8 [ Incredible
Resources E E |) F ZW ER N FEFTA
BRilENeREECREER - HE
FENBE2023F12A31BILEFER
TR AEEBRAHEWEB A TNEE
#7433,00078 7T °

The net assets of Incredible Resources Group at the date of Incredible Resources s @ 74 H & B 83 &Y
disposal were as follows: BEFENAT :
2023
Notes HK$'000
Mt & FHER
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABEHNEREE 3,561
Bank balance and cash WITHEBR LIRS 23
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e TN RRIE K H WG IR 274
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FERFRIE 7)
Net asset disposed of HEAEFHE 3,851
Cash consideration receivable JEUR & KRB 22 2,200
Non-controlling interests IR = 1,218
Net assets disposed of HEEEFR (3,851)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRARMNERE 9 (433)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

2023
HK$'000
FEx

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMR ML FE -
Cash consideration received (note) FEWIR S RAE (FiIFE) -
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEMRITEB LIRS (23)
(23)

Note: the consideration was not yet received as at 31 December 2023
and included in other receivables (note 22).

For the year ended 31 December 2022

In August 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with Colour Bright Global Limited, a Company
wholly owned by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"), to
dispose of its 41% equity interest in Between Hong Kong
Limited (“Between (HK)"”) at cash consideration of
HK$2,722,000. Between (HK) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Between Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
providing specialty coffee in Hong Kong. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$4,350,000. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group’s retained interests in Between (HK) is 19%.
This is a related party transaction.

MIsE 72023 12 A3 B WA WRIREIL
T AE A FEUGRIE (B 5E22)

BZE 202212 H31 HIFEE

202268 A AEBEEMBA X+
([EMEZ L)) 2&% B8 25 Colour
Bright Global Limited 7] 32 & B% 173 5% + A
WEMNR(E2,722,0008 THEHZEN
Between Hong Kong Limited ([ Between
(HK)1) 41% %4 - Between (HK) S H
BAa (45 [ Between @ ) T EHF
B EREERBEER - HEFER
HE2022F12A31BIEFERK - &
EEBERELEMNB AT KD
4,350,000/ 7T c SEAX H &% - REER
Between (HK)MRE = AB19% © b A
—IHAB LIRS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Cont’d)

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

BZ2022F 12 A31 HILFZ (&)

The net liabilities of Between Group at the date of disposal were Between &£ E N H & H AW B & FE W
as follows: D
2022
Notes HK$'000
B E FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREHE 17 14
Right-of-use of assets EREEE 18 30
Deferred tax assets BERETIEEE 31 2
Inventories BB 195
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 484
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5 REMBYIE e K
prepayments TE 3R 1,773
Amount due from a related party JiE Uk BB B 75 5B 28
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B REMENZFBERESER (1,749)
Contract liabilities aHaE 27 )
Lease liabilities HEAR (541)
Tax payable FEfHR I8 (26)
Reinstatement provision EIREE (215)
Net liabilities disposed of HEEEFE (7)
Cash consideration BEeRE 2,722
Fair value of interest retained recognised as ERARERE R AIKAR
cost of investments in associates REERMN A TE 1,624
Non-controlling interest IR A A 3)
Net liabilities disposed of HESEFR 7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE KB A R AU R 9 4,350
2022
HK$'000
FHT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMBSREFH
Cash consideration BeRE 2,722
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEMRITEBR LIRS (484)

2,238




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of an interim and a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

B E2023F %2022 12 A31 B IFE
[E RARWERMKT RS ©

ARNBEETEZHEZ2023F K
2022412 A 31 H 1 F E R 5 E {a] A Hf
T REARE B o

RABHEEANEBEERERNREEER
THiR A T BUERTE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T
Loss for the purpose of basic and AUSEERELAR
diluted loss per share BEBEENEER
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ ARNAQAFIHEH A BIGEEEIE
of the Company 1,801 19,744
‘000 ‘000
T’ F A&
Number of shares RBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary B EBRER REEEEN
shares for the purpose of basic and LB
diluted loss per share 579,890 579,941

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted
for the share consolidation which took place on 25 March 2024
as if the share consolidation occurred at the beginning of the
earliest period presented (i.e. 1 January 2022). Further details of
the share consolidation are set out in note 41(3) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 since their exercise
would result in a decrease in loss per share.

AR ESREARBEEBRNHEBR
MEFHEC 5 20244F3 258 # 1T
MR DA HETTAE - RGNS HE
ETEHRFE2WERE (12022F1 A1 8)
2 RINEHEE—THFBENGE
B S IRER I EE41(3)

H 2 2023F N2022%12A31H I
B BRETESEREREERD -
MRS e EEGREAREIBER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re ISR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BENEE

Leasehold Furniture Equipment
improvements  and fixtures and tools Computers Total
RENEEE BAREEEE  RERIE EK @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEn TEn TEr TEr
osT S
At 1 January 2022 RAREFI1R18 80,136 19,083 33,97 3838 137,024
Additions WE 4,527 1466 3,109 167 9,269
Disposalshuriten-off HE /Wi (6,300) (1672) (5.208) (573) (13753)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERBAT (Fi14) - - - (15) (15)
At 31 December 2022 R2002E12 8311 78363 18,877 31,868 3417 132,525
Additions RE 128 171 1,112 34 1,445
Disposals/written-off HE /8 (162) (830) (571) - (1,563)
At 31 December 2023 R203%F12A31H 78329 18,218 32,409 3451 132,407
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 January 2022 R0RE1ATHE 63,110 13,891 26,403 2,907 106,311
Provided for the year Ehik 6,348 1,981 3810 401 13,040
Eliminated on disposalsuritten-off REE/HisE (5,557) (1,586) (4,838) (522) (12,503)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERBRR (F14) - - - () )
Impairment loss recogised in profit REENETHERE (1)

o loss (note 19) 5,216 10 84 4 5314
At 31 December 2022 R2002E12831H 69,617 14,29 25,459 2,189 112,161
Provided for the year EMEE 4590 1,756 2619 30 9,267
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten-off REE/HiEE (128 (183) (243) - (554)
Impairment loss recognised in profit RERNEDRESE (H:19)

or loss (note 19) 2,850 481 622 38 3,991
At 31 December 2023 R203E12A31H 76,929 16,350 28457 3129 124,865
CARRYING AMOUNTS AR
At 31 December 2023 RBF12A318 1,400 1,868 3952 m 754
At 31 December 2022 R02F12A318 8746 4581 6,409 628 20364

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

HERKEBERAR/

==

=FER

— 181 ——



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

Right-of-use assets EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class REMEERFESHNEREEENR
of underlying asset is as follows: EFEI T
Buildings
B3
HK$'000
FERx
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 202261 A1 H 72,539
Lease modification HEEET 6,018
Expiry of lease terms THEAE W (8,915)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) A A (FiEE14) (1,049)
At 31 December 2022 MR2022F12A31H 68,593
Lease modification HEEET 28,988
Expiry of lease terms THERfE W (29,810)
Termination of lease It E (6,367)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 61,404
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZFtERREE
At 1 January 2022 20221 A1 H 30,097
Depreciation provided for the year FNEHRITE 21,210
Impairment for the year (note 19) FRE (HFE19) 3,545
Expiry of lease terms AR E W (8,915)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERME QR (M 14) (1,019)
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 44,918
Depreciation provided for the year FNEFHRITE 19,611
Impairment for the year (note 19) FRE (FFE19) 5,789
Expiry of lease terms 8 HA i (29,810)
Termination of lease wIFEE (5,020)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 35,488
Net book value IREFE
At 31 December 2023 M2023F 12 A31H 25,916
At 31 December 2022 72022412 431 A 23,675




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI R

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B It FE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. FRHREEREESEFE @
LIABILITIES (conta)
Lease liabilities HEEE
The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdiction in NEBNREEEHEREERBEZR
which it operates. The values in the table below reflect the ME . NAREEKRMIEHHETNEE
current proportions of lease payments that are fixed over the R BVERER 7 -
lease term.
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RREERNFOBESIFTAT :
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Current liabilities mEAE 20,443 26,126
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 14,769 10,116
35,212 36,242
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREENRBBABERAT :
Future lease Present
payments Interests value
ARBEEFRK FE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fit Fi#
31 December 2023 202312 H831H
Not later than one year —FR 22,134 (1,691) 20,443
Later than one year and —FREMRFEA
not later than two years 11,147 (688) 10,459
Later than two years and MEZRBRFR
not later than five years 4,466 (156) 4,310
37,747 (2,535) 35,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

18. ERBEEREEEE

iy

LIABILITY (cont'a)
Lease liabilities (cont'd) HEEE#®)
Future lease payments are due as follows: (Cont’d) RAREENRBBABERAT : (&)
Future lease Present
payments Interests value
RERBEMK B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT FET
31 December 2022 2022412 H31H
Not later than one year —F R 27,217 (1,091) 26,126
Later than one year and —FREMRFA
not later than two years 9,010 (269) 8,741
Later than two years and MEZREBRFR
not later than five years 1,539 (164) 1,375
37,766 (1,524) 36,242
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: REREROSELOT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 11) TS &GS (K1) 1,822 2,044
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets CTREEENERX 19,611 21,210
Short term lease expenses (note 12) EHMEERZ (iE12) 1,211 1,246
Low-value lease expenses (note 12) EKEEHERS (WHiE12) 940 790
Variable lease payment (note 12) ATEAEN R (HE12) 15,580 3,399
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBHERNAE 39,164 28,689
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITY (contd)
Lease liabilities (Cont'd)
Variable lease payment

The Group leased certain restaurants which contain variable
lease payment terms that are based on revenue generated from
the respective restaurants and minimum annual lease payment
terms that are fixed. These payment terms are common in
restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group operates. The
amounts of the fixed and variable lease payment paid/payable
for the year ended 31 December 2023 for these leases are
HK$19,157,000 and HK$15,580,000 (2022: HK$16,086,000
and HK$3,399,000), respectively.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that an increase in
revenue generated from these restaurants by 5% would have
increased the lease payments by HK$1,354,000 (2022:
HK$385,000).

18. ERMEEREEEE

i

bl

HEaE®
TEEE

AEBHEETERE E1&#AUEMHE
ENFER - DRBEEBREENWRA
REE&KEFEBENKIGEHET © %
ENFERRAEBZERTHNRBE
EETRGR ZEHENEE2023
FNRANBLFEER BAHEE
LA EHEENFEEH A A19,157,000
770 % 15,580,000 JT (2022 4 ¢
16,086,000 7 7T % 3,399,000 /8 7T) °

MN2023F 128310 Lt 2 EEEE
AU A AIN5% - 355 E R N
1,354,000 7T (2022 £ : 385,000/ 7T) °
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The management of the Group concluded there was indication
of impairment and conducted impairment assessment on
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets associated with certain restaurants.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the remaining lease term
with a pre-tax discount rate is 11.7% (2022: 10.3%). The
annual growth rate used is 0% to 8% as at 31 December 2023
(2022: 3% to 18%). The assumptions of annual revenue growth
rates are determined based on expectation for the market
development and is not expected to exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the catering industry in Hong Kong.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculated is the
budgeted gross profit and operating expenses, which is
determined based on the recent performance of the relevant
restaurants.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amount of certain CGUs
is lower than the related carrying amount. Impairment amount
has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets such that the carrying
amount of each individual asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and
zero. Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
an impairment of HK$3,991,000 (2022: HK$5,314,000) (note
17) and HK$5,789,000 (2022: HK$3,545,000) (note 18) has
been recognised against the carrying amount (before
impairment) of property, plant and equipment of HK$7,122,000
(2022: HK$13,662,000) and right-of-use assets of
HK$12,889,000 (2022: HK$9,082,000) of the relevant CGUs,
respectively. As the CGUs has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of HK$10,231,000 (2022: HK$13,885,000), any
adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculation of
recoverable amount would result in further impairment losses.

AEEEREERRFERETRLEY
X BELEREBMESTERMBRENE
FEE EM AT E & EEITRETE

REEFSEMHNAIIE S ETREGER
BENEET ZEAEDRERAEE
ERERECTBEE  FRREFR
THEHRRMIRES RETERHEST - BIATRL
BWEAE11.7% (20224 : 10.3% ) B
2023F12A3MH - FAFEERER
0% £ 8% (2022F : 3% £18%) ° FU
HIERENBRDBEMISEERRE
TR TR EERENTAR
HREERX - FHAEBEFENS —TER
BRRABEEMNREERS  HIREEH
BEMNOBARRET

BEIHER AEEEREEETET
ReELBMMAIESEERBEE
HE RESBEIRESWE  HE

HERERAEEE Bt SEMNE
E 8 IREE I R BB R B QT ER
ERA - HEAEERSFHREE -
BREFEAEBEFERSE  SHEERS
EEBUNYE BERXENEREDE
(R {E A1) 7,122,000% T (2022 %F :
13,662,00078 70) A & fF B & E /R
& O E A7) 12,889,000% Jt (2022
% :9,082,0007% 7T) o Al ¥ R R E
3,991,000 7T (20224 : 5,314,000/%8
70) (M £ 17 ) 5,789,000 Jt (2022
F : 3,545,000 7) (FT3E18) » RAER
PELBEMNERAEETKED $EE
10,231,000 7T (2022 4F : 13,885,000
BIT)  METE AW E S ERE AN R
FEETNFE - BEBHEHMBEEXL -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

4 EX S\ = req

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/LOAN TO 20. RE¢E A TRIIRE i
AN ASSOCIATE DEEM
The following list contains the associates, all of which are B ne (ZEBRERARE AL ETIS
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not WEM 3H:Fﬁﬁ¥f*§ 2) B9 K& T
available. N
Place of Proportion
incorporation Issued and of voting
or registration/ fully paid Proportion of equity interests power held
Name of associates operations share capital held by the Group as at 31 December by the Group Principal activities
AL ER L 5 BRIR AEEfE
BENTER i/ eEn Y BRBE R12B31AREERRILA REELH TEXE
2023 2022
3% W0 F
Potato Head Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 30% (note a) 30% 30% Investment holding,
Limited (“Potato Head (HK)") operates a mixed-use
entertainment venue
which comprises retail
shop, cafe, bar and
restaurant
Potato Head Hong Kong ) 10057 30% (W a) 30% 0%  RERR S=2-F
Limited ([Potato Head SRERESH - 8%
(HK)) TEEE WHE -
BIERZE
Between (HK) British Virgin Islands Us$200 N/A (note ¢) 19% (note b) N/A (note ¢) Investment holding
("BVI")  (2022: US$100) (2022: 19%) and specialty coffee
Between (HK) ABRNAS 20057 FER (K o) 19% (kb)) MER (Ko REBRREQNS

((ZBRu&s]) (202%F:100%71)

)
(2022 : 19%)

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Potato Head (HK) Potato Head (HK)
Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted BB EANRIKA - RE™ - -
Loan to an associate M E N FER 6,900 6,900
Less: share of post-acquisition losses that W FE(RERIBRINE AR
are in excess of the cost of investment WigzEE (6,900) (6,900)
Between (HK) Between (HK)
Group's share of net assets REEDIREEFE - 1,317
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

Notes:

The Group subscribed 30% interest in the associate at
subscription price of HK$30 on 13 January 2016. Pursuant to the
shareholders agreement entered into by the Group and the other
shareholder of Potato Head (HK), an independent third party to
the Group, the Group has the right to appoint one out of the
three directors of Potato Head (HK). Accordingly, the Group is

able to exercise significant influence over Potato Head (HK).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s ownership interest in
Between (HK) is less than 20%, the Group has appointed one
director in Between (HK). The directors of the Company therefore
considered the Group have the power to exercise significant
influence and have treated the interest in Between (HK) as an
associate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Between (HK) allotted
60 ordinary shares to an independent third party with the
consideration of HK$2,000,000. Upon the completion of share
allotment, the equity interests of the Group in Between (HK)
decreased from 19% to 10%. The Group is no longer entitled to
appoint any director in Between (HK) and Between (HK) ceased
to be an associate of the Company. The retained interest has
been accounted for a financial asset at FVTPL since then. Details
of fair value measurement are set out in note 36(d).

The gain on disposal of interest in Between (HK) of approximately
HK$36,000 has been recognised in profit or loss and is calculated

as follows:

GEX

AREBEMN2016F 1 A 13 B UAREE30
BT RBE L QA F30% S - RIEA
£ [B B Potato Head (HK) 5 — & 3 (K
EEBUE=FH)T LR ERE
%8 % # % (T Potato Head (HK) =& &
ERH—F o L - A& E 0] ¥ Potato
Head (HK)TT{E ERFZ N

MR2022F12A831H  REEBER
Between (HK)FF B W 5 A m DR
20% * A& BB & T —% Between (HK)
BEF-HIt ARAIEZRALNEH
BRETFEERTE N - Wi Between
(HK) B 7 2518 72 B 2 A &)

REE2023F12A31BIEFE -
Between (HK) A — & % 37 8 = 77 Bid %
60 % i@ + X8 /42,000,000 7T °
IR BL B FEAfE + A5 [E 7 Between
HK) BB E R 19% T FEE10% © A&
E I~ 5 & ## % {fBetween (HK) E’\JE@
= £ N Between (HK) B A A R a
gENEl e Bt RE *&ﬁnﬂiﬁﬁ¥
Bt A BafNemEAEAR -AHERQ
FEFTEMFFIBE N E36(d)

H & Between (HK) K #2 25 7 4 B9 U8
#97/36,00078 70+ WE R IBEPHER -
AHET

2023

—EC-=F

HK$'000

FET

Fair value of 10% interest retained by the Group AEBEREBN10% ERHAFE 802
Carrying amount of Between (HK) at the date of REREERTE A

loss of significant influence Between (HK) #) BR E & (766)

Gain on disposal of an associate (note 9) HE—AEEE AR E(HFE9) 36

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's share of
losses of Between Group is HK$551,000 (2022: HK$307,000).

(d

HZE2023F12A3MHIEEE K&
& 5> Between % B 518 551,000 78 7T
(20224 : 307,000 7T) ©
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FHET
Convertible notes EIE L et a = 1,783
Future equity investments RIRIIERE a - 1,122
Fund investment ESRE a - 588
Unlisted preference shares REMEER a - 371

Unlisted shares: R EWIRGD
— Others — HAftb a, b 1,131 1,066
1,131 4,930

Analysed as: DT

Current BIEA = 1,783
Non-current JEBNER 1,131 3,147
1,131 4,930

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the financial
assets were disposed through the disposal of subsidiaries.
Further details of the disposal of subsidiaries are set out in
note 14.

(b) Balance of HK$1,131,000 represented 10% retained
interest of Between (HK) upon the loss of significant
influence during the year ended 31 December 2023 (note
20 (0)). Fair value gain of HK$329,000 was recognised in
the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, these financial assets were stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by OCF Corporate
Advisory Limited (2022: OCF Corporate Advisory Limited), an
independent firm of professional valuer. The valuer conducted
the valuation based on market approach (2022: binomial option
pricing method, discounted cash flow method, equity allocation
method and underlying assets method) (level 3 fair value
measurements).

(@) HE2023F12A31BIEFE &
MEEDFEBHEMNBARTIA
HE -BERLHEMBRARMNE—
FEF BRI E14 -

(b) ##A1,131,0008 TEREE
2023F 12 A31BIEFE  REX
FAYE N FBetween (HK)HY
10% RE = (H5E20 () - B =
2023F 12 A3MBIEFE  RFEAE
I35 329,000 8 L E R IBa P HER ©

MR2023F 1283108 ZEFHKEER
BERRBEEZAFRLOA (20224 -
ERBEEFZRNBRAT) BULHEEM
BEEN) EITHHBEIRAFESR - &E
BB IE 5% (2022 4F « XN FEEE -
AR EeREE Emo A MEEE
EX) (B=ZHATENE)ETMHE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 #{ £ 2023F 12 A31HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT 21. R FEFABEEZNEH
FVTPL (Cont'd) BE#®
Financial assets measured at FVTPL are denominated in the BAVEFAEBENEREEN T E
following currencies: BEETE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKS AT 1,131 1,066
us$ ETT - 3,864
1,131 4,930
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22 BESRHEHMEBWRE - ZE
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS R FKIE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Trade receivables from restaurant operations ~ REZEE LN E 5 EUFIE 3,147 1,772
Rental deposits Heke 13,959 15,365
Other deposits Hiviz e 3,520 3,898
Consideration receivable for disposal of HE B A R WA E
subsidiaries 2,200 -
Other receivables H{th jE kIR 564 1,340
Prepayments and others A< RRIE R E A 1,609 1,388
Total trade and other receivables, B 5 M EMmEIRGRIA
deposits and prepayments e RIEFRIBERE 24,999 23,763
Analysed as: DT
Current Bl EH 12,430 9,656
Non-current JERNER 12,569 14,107
24,999 23,763
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables from contracts with 202312 A31H  BEFPAIHNEE
customers amounted to HK$3,147,000 (2022: HK$1,772,000). #)E 5 JE W R IE 588 /33,147,000 % TT

(20224 : 1,772,000 7T) °
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Usually, there is no credit period for the restaurant operations
except for certain customers in which credit period ranging from
4 to 30 days is granted by the Group. The Group's trading terms
with its customers are mainly by cash or credit card settlement.
The settlement terms with credit card companies are usually
within 7 days after the billing date which is also the service
rendered date.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from
restaurant operations presented based on the invoice date,
which approximated the service rendered date, at the end of
the reporting period.

Y EBRLETEGSEN MAKHE
BHAZIOREEHNE TEPRI
AEBEAEZFHNESHBRAETENERE
HEAREE BEAFRARMNGEEL
BEREBEH(MAEERRSEAE) &
7HR

UTRRHmERRZEZAE (REH
RFAMBE) 2INKEEREZN
B 5 RUGRIRRRE DA -

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 02 30H 2,538 1,377
31 to 60 days 31£60H 93 104
61 to 90 days 61290H 82 1
91 to 365 days 91&F365H 434 280
3,147 1,772

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$609,000 (2022: HK$395,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$434,000
(2022: HK$280,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default as the amounts are due from
counter-parties with good history of repayment. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2023, no loss allowance has been provided
on trade receivables (2022: nil) and HK$32,000 was provided
on other receivables (2022: nil). Details of impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

R2023F12A31H REBHE
Hi - BRI %84 609,000 7T (2022 &
395,000 7T) WEBEMAREENE
SERFIBEHAN - REBSEHSD
434,000 7T (2022 4F : 280,000/ 7T)
EEERKIA LETEAEEL  Hi
EREARKERTERLENZ S
FHE - ARBVWERZSEREEL
A o

M2023F 12 A31H WEREZE S ENK
SRIEFHREBEEE (2022F - &) - Wit
H fth B UK FRIB ET 2 32,0007 T (2022
FE) o BRMN2023F K2022F12
A3MBME 5 &AM ERFIRBERT
O BRRN RS EIREROME36 -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #{ £ 2023F 12 A31HILFE

23.

24,

25.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED  23. SR{T#E R IRE BIKIHR
BANK DEPOSITS THEX
As at 31 December 2023, pledged bank deposits represent a M2023F 128318 BEHE\BIRITER
bank deposit of HK$5,000,000 (2022: HK$5,000,000) pledged EAMGAEERITHE MEMR THRT
to a bank to secure the bank loan facilities of the Group (as set ) £R 77 1% 75,000,000 7% 7T (2022 4 :
out in note 28). 5,000,000 70) (F A HIEE28) °
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranged from EEFIRITFERMN2023F 12 A31HIE
1% to 4.1% per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: ranged EEFFEI%ZEL41% (2022 F : FF
from 0.05% to 0.35% per annum). #&0.05%Z%0.35%) 518 °
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held and short term bank RITHEBR R @ BHER2023412 A31
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and BFR#fReRREHABE A=A MA
carry interest at prevailing market rate at 0.875% (2022: T WHRIR1T T 5 & H % 0.875% (2022
0.001%) per annum at 31 December 2023. F:0.001%) 5T ERRESRITIER ©
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 HZE2023F 12 A31 AL FERERT
December 2023 are set out in note 36. EFFIBE AT FE36 o
INVENTORIES 24. 7E
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Food, beverages and other consumables BM  RGREMERER 6,027 6,283

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
amounts are expected to be recovered/settled within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI R

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 25. EUR FEMAEEAT—B&
COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES B BENTIRNIE®
(Cont’d)

Details of the amounts due from related companies are as FEUR REESE A R FRIARIFEIB AT
follows:

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFEN

BESRKREEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET FET FAT
Non-trade nature: FEBHIEE -
Cigarro Limited (“Cigarro”) Cigarro Limited
(note a) ([Cigarro])
(Mizxa) 8 8 8 8
Billion Huge Asia Pacific Limited BEHREAREBERRE
(“Billion Huge") (note b) (TEKk]) (FFsEb) 246 345 345 346
Mutiara (HK) Company Limited Mutiara (HK) Company
("Mutiara”) (note d) Limited ([Mutiara )
(Mf3Ed) 391 394 522 679
Between (HK) (note e) Between (HK) (FifsFe) 420 - 565 -
1,065 747
Details of the amounts due to related companies are as follows: JENTRARS A R FRIERFFIB AT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Trade nature: B51E
Cigarro (note a) Cigarro (Fft3ka) = (43)
Non-trade nature: IFEBESHME :
Billion Huge (note b) BEJK (M5t b) - (129)
Golders Way Company Limited Golders Way Company
("Golders Way") (note ) Limited ([ Golders Way )
(MtzEc) (2,227) (2,227)
(2,227) (2,399)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES

(Cont’d)

Notes:

(@  As at 31 December 2023, no balance with Cigarro (2022:
Amount due to Cigarro of HK$43,000 which is controlled by Ms.
PY Wong, are trade nature, with a credit period from purchase of
goods of 30 days. These trading balances with related companies
are unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. The remaining
balance with Cigarro is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand).

(b)  Balance with Billion Huge, which is 100% owned by Ms. PY
Wong, is non-trade nature, which is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(c)  Balance with Golders Way, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY
Wong, unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

(d)  Balance with Mutiara, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong and
50% owned by Mr. KS Wong, father of Ms. PY Wong, is
unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

(e)  Balance with Between (HK), which is 10% owned by the Group,
is unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on
demand. As set out in note 20(c) to the financial statements,
Between (HK) is no longer regarded as the associate of the
Company as at 31 December 2023. Balance of HK$455,000 was
re-classified from amounts due to associates to amounts due to
related parties at the date that Between (HK) is not regarded as

the associate of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, HK$1,239,000 (2022: HK$887,000)
was made against the gross balance of amounts due from

related companies and associates.
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25. Bl EMEBAT—3&
BE HEQTFE @)

PsE :

(a)

7202312 A31H B Cigarro ) #5
#%AZ (20224 : FEFI Cigarro (B3 &= M
WSl RIE43,0008 TEE 5
ME HEEHRRBEEEME30H -
I EHARARNE SERAEER -
RERRBRERARERERAHZ27H
BR B2 £30 H A » £ Cigarro 89 Fl &4 45 £
BEEF RS RIEERERE) -

HEEK (BEMELZ AR 100%) H
ERBEFEZME  EBER 28R

B Golders Way (R EMHA X Lt H B
50%) MEH AEKE - BIEEHMHE
BB RIBEEREE-

B Mutiara (HEMEZ T EEME L
T AR FKS Wong 5t 4 9 Bl B 50% &
50%) MiEHAEERT BIEBESHHE
B 2B RIEERERE-

g1 Between (HK) (A ANEE#EHF10%)
WEHRBEER BHFEEFELE &
BRIZEREER - BV BRI T
20(c)FT &L - 20234124318 -
Between (HK)“T H 4 1% A& 78 X &) /9 B
QA 455,000 LB R
Between (HK) T # 4% & 78 2 & B & A
AlZ AHENBE AR RIEETHE
B e B T RE o

2023912 A31 8 » BLEKEH A A
T Bt N B) FRIE AR 45 &R 5H1R 1,239,000
7T (2022 4F : 887,000 7T) ©
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. E5 R HMENSRIERE
ACCRUED CHARGES ATEH
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trade payables g NI 13,677 14,460
Accrued staff related costs FEET B TR A 3,842 3,449
Rental, rates and building management fee He ZMAARAEERE 3,585 2,516
Restaurant renovation work and repair BEBN IRENEESHRE
and maintenance 3,230 3,483
Audit and professional fee ZEHLEEE 1,921 3,137
Marketing, advertising and promotion MHHRE - BS RIEiH 2,569 2,640
Utilities charges AR 541 550
Receipts in advance TE UK 750 750
Other payables H fth fE T R IE 2,953 2,898
33,068 33,883
The credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The BEEMMNEENA30H -RBEH
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented NOREZAMZINNE HENRIER
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BoTamT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 6,825 6,942
31 to 60 days 31 60H 3,905 4,312
61 to 90 days 61£90H 1,405 1,679
Over 90 days H#iE0 H 1,542 1,527
13,677 14,460
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

27. S8R

2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Non-current ERE
Credit consumption programme ERHEEE 8,086 9,082
Current RE
Deposits received for catering services EEZHRGBERNIES
at restaurants 2,098 2,501
Cash coupon payables R &% 363 379
Prepaid membership fee ENEEE 138 160
Credit consumption programme ERABEETE 2,009 1,922
4,608 4,962
12,694 14,044

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. The Group's typical payment terms which
impact the amount of contract liabilities recognised are as
follows:

Deposits received for catering services at
restaurants

The Group normally receives approximately 50% deposits in
advance from customers for catering services in relation to
events to be organised at the Group's restaurants. The Group
also receives deposits in advance from members of a restaurant
of the Group and the members will in return be granted
equivalent cash value of food and beverage credits for the
catering services at that restaurant during the subscription
period, which is normally within one year from the date on
which the annual membership card was issued to the member.
All of these deposits and credits are non-transferable and non-
refundable.

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Prepaid membership fee

The Group receives annual membership fees in full amount at
the beginning of the annual subscription period. Prepaid
membership fee will be recognised on a time-based method
over the subscription period which will normally be one year.
The prepaid membership fee are non-transferable and non-
refundable.

Credit consumption programme

In 2021, an arrangement has been entered into with the
shareholders of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "Advance Shareholders”) pursuant to which the Advance
Shareholders are agreed to make advances (the “Advances”) to
the non-wholly owned subsidiary for funding the operation of a
new restaurant (the “New Restaurant”). The Advances will be
settled by way of food and beverages credits (the “Credits”) to
be enjoyed by the eligible person duly appointed by Advance
Shareholders (the “Credit Users”) solely at the New Restaurant
commenced from 1 August 2021 (i.e. Credit Consumption
Arrangement). As a monthly settlement of the Advances, the
Credit Users of each Advance Shareholder can enjoy a maximum
of 30,000 Credits (1 Credit equivalent to HK$1.00) at the New
Restaurant. If the available monthly Credit of HK$30,000 is not
fully utilised in that particular month, the unused Credits for
that particular month would be forfeited and cannot be carried
forward. The Credits are non-transferrable and non-refundable.

ANEE#E

AEERFERBHRNKRE2BEESF
E-BNEEEHNREHRANCEAESR
—F)RERKHEN S AER -ENE
BENAEEAE AR -

AR E

R2021F - BAARIFEZREHE R A
BB ([TEAR R )) RIS & 5E - Bt
BRABRRAZMFEZEMBRRIRK
(TTEFIE]D WA BE ([FEED K
EREES - BNRIAEB B 2021458
A1THRUBABRREEXNZTHEG ER
AT (EEAFEDEEFHEEZENR
mikHFRERE(EREDMNAFREHE
(BMEREEBLH - ERTENFIEN A
EHE SRNRRNEABPALH
EREZA&%30,000@EMA%E (11EE
ABEMREN1.0087T) -] AAERE
FA#830,0008 T ARTERE AH 2 EE
A RzEERAnHRERERABERK
B AT ResEsE s ABEAEEA
TAJRER

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEBENES
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance as at 1 January 1A ERNER 14,044 16,394
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result FERUA B R
of recognising revenue during the year EHBERD (4,962) (6,127)
Interest accreted on contract liabilities (note 11) & X B &M FEEFIE (FHF3E11) 697 783
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of LA IR A 89 B8R AR 75 U ER
receipts in advance of catering service TBWRIBER S DA R/EM
to be provided 2,915 2,996
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERB AR (FizE14) - )
Balance as at 31 December R12 A31BH&EER 12,694 14,044




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Bank borrowings RITER 4,833 8,191
Carrying amounts repayable FEEERTERIREE:
of the bank borrowings*:
Within one year —FR 2,000 3,333
More than one year, but not —F A EEBEHEARF
exceeding two years 2,000 2,000
More than two years, but not MELA L ETBBRE
more than five years 833 2,858
4,833 8,191
Less: Amounts due within one year or B BB E T —F R E E
repayable on demand shown IR ESRK(EE A FRIE
under current liabilities (4,833) (8,191)

Amount shown under non-current
liabilities

FERBEE THFIFOR

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

As at December 2023, the bank borrowing is subject to variable
interest rate of the higher of 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or
the bank’s cost of funds (2022: variable interest rate of the
higher of 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the bank’s cost of
funds and 2.5% per annum below prime rate or the bank’s cost
of funds). The weighted average interest rate is 6.59% per
annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 2.81% per annum).

o HHFBEDERERBHEAEE
TEEREH -

2023512 A - |ITER IR FF X
25% MEBRITRAEFRSBHBRTES
AR B =& LU B FIRE B (2022 F
BREME25% MEBBITEER LN
RITE N ANEF R HEEF R
25% HIBTTE SR AN R = E LFH
FIERETBE) -2023F 12 A31 B e
FYGER K 56.59% (20224 £ H =
2.81%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings of the Group of
HK$4,833,000 (2022: HK$6,858,000) are secured by bank
deposits of HK$5,000,000 (2022: HK$5,000,000). No balance is
unsecured (2022: HK$1,333,000). The bank borrowings of the
Group are guaranteed by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and the director of the Company as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Group’s bank loan agreement is subjected to covenant
clauses, whereby, the Group is required to comply with, among
others, the covenant that restricts the Group to maintain certain
financial ratio. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
did not fulfil a financial ratio as required in a bank loan
agreement and therefore the bank may declare the outstanding
principal amount, accrued interest and all other sums payable
under the loan immediately due and payable. As such, the bank
is contractually entitled to request for immediate repayment of
the outstanding loan amount of HK$4,833,000 (2022:
HK$6,858,000). Such events of defaults also resulted in cross-
default of certain borrowings with carrying amount of
HK$1,333,000 as at 31 December 2022. These bank loan
agreements also contained repayable on demand clause. The
outstanding balances are presented as repayable on demand
under current liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

In March 2024, the Group has early repaid the entire bank
borrowings of HK$4,833,000. The bank has cancelled the
respective loan facility and return the pledged bank deposits of
HK$5,000,000 to the Group in March 2024.

M2023F 12 A31H  AEBERRITE
4,833,000% 7T (2022 £ : 6,858,000
78 70) BASR 7777 50 5,000,0007%8 7T (2022
% : 5,000,000 7T) 1EH R o B4 &
(20224 : 1,333,000/ 7T) A ELIF -
AEENRITERBARARARFE
HR2023F 2 2022F 12 A 31 BiREH
B A EEIREITIELR -

REEMRITER BRI ZLGRTKTR
IR AEEAEET (AP BE)R
FIAEES#TF - EHRMELLRMHREY -
20234 R2022%12A31H » A& H
REFRTERBHRATHRE L X -
ALRITREEMERBA NTREERS
B EETR S RETE HALE AR AR
FIHARESS Bt REHL - RITHE
BERNBEERAEEENRSSE
4,833,000/ 7T (2022 4 : 6,858,000/%
L) cREENEHEHETERRX
EA O R022F12A3MBEEEES
1,333,000% 7T © % F R 17 & 5 5 3% 7%
HEAEREREEBRK - R2023F &
2022 12A31A - KREEBLEHRET A
MENBEIE TARERKEENRIE -

202443 A - AEEERATEES
R 1718 304,833,000 7T < IR1TE BUH
HEERREL N 2024F3 ABAREH
R IF IR 1777 315,000,000 7 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

29. REINSTATEMENT PROVISION 29. EREE
Reinstatement
works
BEIR
HK$'000
FHExT
1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 4,476
Reversal B El (431)
At 31 December 2023 7R20234F12A31H 4,045
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current BN A 1,541 2,119
Non-current JEBNHR 2,504 2,357
4,045 4,476
The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated BEIEBRHRSHERRETHNESR
cost of reinstating the rented premises to be carried out at the HEMENGEKAER - BRFZEW
end of respective lease periods. These amounts have not been TEKX HIWERTEBE TR ER
discounted for the purpose of measuring the provision for R LA o

reinstatement works as the effect is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Number of
shares Amount
R & E &5
HK$ HK$'000
BT TET
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREBIETNEER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R2022F1A18 20224
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 12A31H 2023F1/71H
%2023F12A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H 1,161,190,000 11,611,900 11,612
Cancellation of shares repurchased (note a) & $485 B A% {7 (FifEa) (1,410,000) (14,100) (14)
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 2022512318 2023 F
and 31 December 2023 TA1EK2023F12A31H 1,159,780,000 11,597,800 11,598

Notes:

The Company repurchased a total of 6,410,000 shares of the
Company at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$691,000, during the year ended 31 December 2021, in
which 5,000,000 was cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2021, while the remaining 1,210,000 and 200,000
were cancelled on 10 January 2022 and 13 May 2022
respectively.

Due to the share consolidation took place on 25 March 2024, the
ordinary shares in issue is then changed to HK$0.02 per share
since then. For the details of the share consolidation, please refer
to note 41(3) to the consolidated financial statements.

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing shares in all

aspects.

GEE

(@ EE2021F12A3MBIEFEE AR
AR BB 4691,00078 T BB B A R
Al A $£6,410,000 % &1 - Hf -
5,000,000 f& A% 1 B A B £ 20214 12
A31BIEFEEE - Mk 1,210,000
% % 200,000 % B% 15 9 51 72 2022 F 1
A10B8 &%202295 313 H5E8H -

(b) BREMDAEHR20245F3 A25H #
TOEBBETEBRRALERTR0.02
BrL-BHERMNEHOFE F28
RABMBMERMETA10)

PrETMEmBRnEma T mEREmR
BRMNEBREMA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and the prior year.

AT RAFER E—EFERNEZRNER
EHBREE(AE) REEH -

Accelerated
Accelerated tax
accounting  depreciation

Tax losses depreciation  allowance Total
illpd mEHE
BHESR BitHE nERE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FER FERT FERT

At 1 January 2022 #®2022F181H - 1,899 (92) 1,807
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (note 13) R 8% (F1%), /5t A (BtE13) - 373 (356) 17
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEMBAR (ME14) - - ) 2)
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H - 2,272 (450) 1,822
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (note 13) W82 (30%) /5t A (BiF5£13) 3,183 (5) (167) 3,011
At 31 December 2023 #2023 12A31H 3,183 2,267 617) 4,833

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement

AT REERIBDN - AE25EE

of financial position, the following is the analysis of the deferred BkRRZA -
taxation:
As at 31 December
R12A318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE E 5,505 2,327
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBBEE (672) (505)
4,833 1,822

At 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$93,526,000 (2022: HK$111,044,000)
available for offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$19,289,000
(2022: nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$74,237,000 (2022: HK$111,044,000) at 31 December 2023
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

R2023F 128318 AEBA XA
754 7B E5 18 49 93,526,000 7% 7T (2022 4F -
111,044,000/ 7T) - A AV 4H R 0%
Flo BRtaZ S E184719,289,000/%8 JTiE
RIEETHIEEE (20224 « #) - AT K
AR A FERR B m A Al (B A B I B 18
MR 2023F 12 A3 HAMG THRIEES
B #74,237,000% T (2022 % -
111,044,000 % 70) MERIEIETRIH & & o
THIBE B ER L -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. A A XS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRiza B REMEHMIEEEIN
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its FR - ANEEEAEETETUTRS
related parties during the year:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Catering income from Ms. PY Wong M= B 22 T TS B U 177 218
Catering income from Mr. Alan Lo (note a) # 28 % £ S £ TS B UA
GET)) 217 188
Purchases of goods from Cigarro [ Cigarro i B & - 14
Restaurant consultancy service income M — R E QRS £
from an associate B 1 AR 75 M A - 605
Lease payment to a company with 50% [ & {fl. & 2 = # 5 50% A7) 32
owned by Ms. PY Wong MERK 900 900

Note:

(@  During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, Ms. PY
Wong is the executive director of the Company and Mr. Alan Lo
is the spouse of Ms. PY Wong.

Details of the balances with related companies, a director and
an associate at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and note 25.

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to key management personnel of the Group
representing individuals appointed as directors of the Company
is set out in note 7.

P &E -

(@) A ZE20224K2023F12A318 L4
E EZEMELZLARRANITES
BEHRLEREMA T TOESE -

REEHR  BEBAR . —REEX
—EBERRNESRFBEBERGRAY
AR R R MIFE25 -

TEEBAEBNFS

AEETREREABBEZEIAART
BEENAL EHSERMHET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(a) Defined contribution scheme

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500 per

employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

schemes.

The contributions paid or payable to the above retirement
benefits schemes by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 is approximately HK$3,908,000 (2022:

HK$3,555,000).

REMKETE

BEEFENDBERGEAES
FFEGAI R AR E T
BEREL RERTECEENR
MBYSEAZN ZESRARE
BErEEIREBERE RERER
FE - EEREESEDHAMRR
HestEIEFHRBIEE L X 2 #
Ko REEHBHMBRERFTE A
—BEERELATHR -KREME
TP BEEMEESFET
B9 58 U 4 2R B] A DA FOOR R SR 2
EHER - HEREBELRATR
BE® A 1,5008 7T °

RiFERakEMEE SR
B RO SR TR 2 5t 81 T E A RN AR A
B sEAK B R 8 AR Al
AN D AN ERESED
LR -

HZE2023F12831BIEFE - K
5 B B A sk e A bl R R A8 I A
£ 1E 1 &t 3k #3,908,000 7% T
(20224 : 3,555,000787T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (conta)

(b) Provision for long service payment

33.

SRR IER AT ) o
(b) REBRBEERE

i

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financial REEHBEMERPERNSEE
statements are determined as follows: EZZD—I— :
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Liability recognised in the consolidated ERE B IR 2R
statement of financial position WRHAE 813 -
Remeasurement of provision of long REEREHRARARE
service payment in the consolidated BB BN E
statement of changes in equity (127) -

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding

Under Employment Ordinance, Cap.57, an employee who
has been employed under a continuous contract for not
less than 5 years of service is eligible for LSP under the
following circumstances:

o The employee resigns at age of 65 or above;

o The employee dies during employment;

o The employee resigns on ground of ill health;

o The fixed term employment contract expires without
being renewed;

o The employee is dismissed which is not because of
redundancy or serious misconduct.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR MR

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(b) Provision for long service payment (Cont'd) (b) REARBESEE @

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding RERAGFEBHERMER(E)
(Cont’d)

The LSP benefit is determined with reference to the RERG BN N2ZREEKE
employee’s last full month's salary (capped at HK$22,500) —E A2 AF e (LR &22,500
and number of years of service. The LSP benefit is capped BT MRFEFEET - BEAE
at HK$390,000 for each eligible employee. The accrued BREENRKRBE2EN LR R
benefits derived from the Group’s mandatory 390,000 7T c A& ERIBERIE SR
contributions under the MPF Scheme in respect of that FHEIRE % IE B 1F 8958 B M
employee can be used to offset the LSP benefit. Under the FEENRE#EATAEREER
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Cap. 485, HRBeBEN REBEEBEMNE
the Group, as an employer, is required to make mandatory ASS E R H M RTE R ENEGI) -
MPF contribution at 5% of the employee’s monthly salary rEEEREEX EREBRAH
(capped at HK$1,500). The Group makes the contribution #95% (=BR A& 1,5007%8 JT) 1E Hi 58
to separate trustees. MPF Scheme has attributes of a FlaEeER -AEERMBE Y
defined contribution plan. BT AEL R - BE & 5T 8

BEAREHRKTEIEIE

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes R2022% 6 A Qo2 FEE MR
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) WEFEDED (R E L B (1B ET) 1§
Ordinance 2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was By (MERTRBI]) B B M - (8FT 1§
enacted. The Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of BIERE LA 8 2= 58 il 14 98 18 & 4 3K
the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory CEAERGHRERIRBe 2L
MPF contributions to offset LSP (“the Abolition”). HUBUBZHED - g B8
Subsequently, the Government of HKSAR announced that BERFEEMHM  BBLZHEHR
the Abolition will take effect on 1 May 2025 (“the 20255 A1 A (T8 A ]) A£%e

Transition Date”).

The following key changes will take effect since the ITNFEEFE a6 B RER :
Transition Date:

— Accrued benefits derived from employers’ — ExHIMaEeHAE
mandatory MPF contributions cannot be used to M REE= T AERE
offset the LSP in respect of the employment period REH BEZERRE XS
after the Transition Date. R o

—  The pre-transition LSP is calculated using the last — HEflp KRB EAEE
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition EH BRI &E-—EANHS
Date, instead of using the last month’s salary of FrE - MIIELAKLIERER

employment termination date. Mz HE—ARANHEHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B B SRR M A

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (contd)
(b) Provision for long service payment (Cont'd)

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding
(Cont’d)

The accounting for the Group’s LSP obligation, MPF
contribution and the MPF-LSP offsetting is detailed in
notes 2(a) and 4(h).

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED

SUBSIDIARIES

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

33. RIKEAIGETEl (=)
(b) R EBE ()
SRR B Rtk (42

AEENRBRESET  BHE
EEFLBEE — RARB K
R R B IR B E M AT 2(a)
4(h) °

34. k2 BB AAINFE

TRIVREAEEAGFERE SN AEE

of the Group that has material non-controlling interests: FEEMBRAAIMFERE
Place of
incorporation Total comprehensive
and principal ~ Proportion of ownership (expense)/income
place of interests and voting rights held allocated to Accumulated
business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ARRIEY  FERERSENERARR AEEFEREEN
RIZEXHY RRZRELA 2 (R%)/ hEEE ZRFERER
For the year ended
As at 31 December 31 December As at 31 December
R12A31H HENANBLEE RM12A31E
2023 202 2023 202 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000
Tz TEn TEn TEL
Profit Holder Limited BEERLA Hong Kong 32.1% 32.1% (2,389) 555 (2.430) 1)
("Profit Holder") ([B7]) Bk
Express Star Corporation Limited  Express Star Corporation Hong Kong 57% 57% (1,782) (3,867) (8.431) (6,648)
(" Express Star") Limited! ([ Express Star]) BE
Hidden Glory Limited Hidden Glory Limited BVI - 20% @ (24) - 1222
("Hidden Glory") ([Hidden Glory.) RBRUES

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 in respect of each of the Company’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED 34. 25 BA TS =)

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

iy

—— 208 —

Profit Holder B
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
For the year ended 31 December BZ12B31ALFE
Revenue A 39,042 39,698
Expenses 2 (46,473) (37,970)
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr(EE), & F (7.431) 1,728
Other comprehensive expense HEHtarmAx (11) -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FA2E (X)) WALRE
for the year (7,442) 1,728
Total comprehensive N EEEEFARE
(expense)/income for the year attributable to:  (FIsz), W A4 %8 -
— owners of the Company — NAREA A (5,053) 1,173
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BT IEERES (2,389) 555
(7,442) 1,728
For the year ended 31 December BZ12B31ALFE
Cash flows from operating activities KEZHFREReRE 3,522 6,978
Cash flows from investing activities KETEHMERERE 648 (3,313)
Cash flows from financing activities MEERHMERSAE (4,752) (3,605)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BeORd),/ mAFEE (582) 60
As at 31 December M12H831H
Current assets mENEE 24,443 22,488
Non-current assets EREEE 9,501 9,723
Current liabilities mENa & (35,568) (33,994)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (8,128) (527)
Net liabilities BEFHE (9,752) (2,310)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 BRI A A FE1G 2 (7,322) (2,269)
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder AR IEIE R E R (2,430) (41)
(9,752) (2,310)
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34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED 34. k25 BATNEEE =)

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Express Star

Express Star

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
For the year ended 31 December BZ12B31BLFE
Revenue WA 23,409 26,066
Expenses 53 (26,536) (32,851)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEERTEMA A%
for the year (3,127) (6,785)
Loss and total comprehensive expense T SIAEEFAEIER
for the year attributable to: THERAXLEE :
— owners of the Company — ARBREEA (1,345) (2,918)
— non-controlling interests of Express Star —Express Star B FE1Z % 1 2= (1,782) (3,867)
(3,127) (6,785)
For the year ended 31 December BZE12A31BLEE
Cash flows from operating activities KEFEBFEREME 898 2,512
Cash flows from investing activities REEBFERERE (63) 1,746
Cash flows from financing activities MEFBFEHRESRE (946) (4,488)
Net cash outflows REMEFRE (111) (230)
As at 31 December M12H31H
Current assets MEEE 7,266 6,411
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,089 8,060
Current liabilities mEaE (10,930) (9,247)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (13,216) (16,888)
Net liabilities BEFER (14,791) (11,664)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 BB A FE15 2 (6,360) (5,016)
Non-controlling interests of Express Star Express Star B FE1% {5 7 25 (8.431) (6,648)
(14,791) (11,664)
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A MR ERR I T

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

Hidden Glory Hidden Glory
2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
For the period up to the date of disposal/ #HZEHE&E B IEHRE,
For the year ended 31 December BZE12A31MBLEFE
Revenue PN - -
Expenses 53 (18) (121)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FHNBEREZEMAZEE
for the year (18) (121)
Loss and total comprehensive expense NTEEEEFANEER
for the year attributable to: MM ETE -
— owners of the Company — NAREA A (14) 97)
— non-controlling interests of Hidden Glory ~ —Hidden Glory 89 3F 2 J& i 25 (4) (24)
(18) (121)
For the period up to the date of disposal/ HZEHERBHIEHE,
For the year ended 31 December BZ12A31BLEE
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBMEReRE (267) (18)
Cash flows from investing activities wEEBFRERERE 807 (293)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHAEHRSNE (545) 294
Net cash outflows RE ML FE (5) (17)
As at 31 December M®12A31H
Current assets MEVE E - 6,465
Non-current assets FERENEE - 189
Current liabilities MENEE - (552)
Net assets BEFE — 6,102
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 A1 A A (G 2= - 4,880
Non-controlling interests of Hidden Glory Hidden Glory &) FE4% % 8 2 - 1,222
- 6,102

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed
its 80% equity interest in Hidden Glory to a third party through
disposal of subsidiary — Incredible Resources Group. Further
details of the disposal of subsidiaries are set out in note 14.
Following the completion of the disposal transaction, Hidden
Glory ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

B ZE2023F12A31BIEFE A& H
36 & I B 2 7] —Incredible Resources
Group * #% E A Hidden Glory #780% %
Ee2HEETE=F - HEMNBRAAN
E—FBEENMT 14 BEXFHTHK
1% » Hidden Glory ™8 &4 R A B A
.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
completed the deemed partial disposal of the equity interests in
Between Group and Profit Holder. Following the completion of
the deemed disposal transactions, the Group retained control
over the subsidiaries. The transactions have been accounted for
as equity transactions with the non-controlling interests as

34. 2 AN WA AR 0

bl

REFREEZFENHBQRE
EEDS2H

HE2022F12A31BILEE  AE&H
SEAK AR A S0 & H Between £ B M &
EHRE RALERITHE  K~&E
ERBHMBARNZEGIE - BEEKXS
EARIIEEIEITRIEZNER S -
TR

follows:

Increase in equity
attributable to
Consideration Net liabilities owners of the
received for attributable to  Company (included
the disposal of the disposal of in accumulated
ownership interest ~ ownership interest losses)
KAREEARE
HERERER  HERERER EHEm
BB E EEEEERE (FFARHER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR Tir

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEINENANBILEE
Between Group (note a) Between £ (M a) - (15) 15
Profit Holder (note b) B (Mi3Eb) -+ (93) 93
=* (108) 108

* represented balance less than HK$1,000

* FEEE T Z 1,000 7T
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REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control (Cont'd)

(@ InJanuary 2022, Between (HK), the then wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share swap
agreement with Hanneng Limited (“Hanneng”), which is
wholly owned by Mr. Alan Lo, the spouse of Ms. PY
Wong. Prior to the share swap agreement, Ever Creation
Asia Investment Limited (“Ever Creation”) was owned as
to 40% by Hanneng and 60% by JIA Group Hong Kong
Limited (formerly known as Big Team Ventures Limited), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
share swap agreement, the Company disposed its 40%
equity interest in Between (HK) in exchange for Hanneng's
40% equity interest in Ever Creation, which resulted in
the Company holding 100% interest of Ever Creation
through Between (HK). Upon the completion of this re-
organisation, the Group hold 60% equity interest in

Between Hong Kong Limited.

In August 2022, the Group further disposed 41% interest
in Between (HK) and Between (HK) ceased to be a

subsidiary of the Company since then (note 14).

(b) InJanuary 2022, the Group granted 3% of existing share
of Profit Holder to the employee as an award for past
year's performance and the non-controlling interest of
Profit Holder was changed from 30% to 32.1%. The fair
value of the share award at the date of grant is

HK$417,000.
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34. k2 BB ARINFE =

REFREEFENHB QR
AREEREE®)

(a)

7220224 1 A Between (HK) (KA
AERIE2EMBAR) &
Hanneng Limited ([Hannengl) (3 &
MAZ TR BEGREELZEH
BRI — R - RET L]
IR Rl - BB KIREBR AT
(Tra11g 1) » 5l B Hanneng & JIA
Group Hong Kong Limited (51 7 Big
Team Ventures Limited (AR & & &
Bt A &) ¥ B 40% % 60% K #E
oo IRIBRRIBE  AARHER
77 Between (HK) #) 40% A% # LA 2 Y
Hanneng 72 Al 18 89 40% B #E - {# X
‘A 78 i@ Between (HK) ¥ 5 &l18
100%# & - NN EHLR A&
[B 4% 75 Between Hong Kong Limited
) 60% AR HE

20228 R AEBE—FHE
Between (HK) 41% # z= ©
Between (HK) B tt T~ A4 A B K
BT (HFE14) -

M2022F 1A - AEBEMEB LK
HAEREERG3I%IEAHBE
—FRENER  BIENEER
B HA30% 2 E £32.1% - &H
BEHRAEHBENRFES
417,0008 7T ©
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt balance
and equity balance. Debt balance mainly consists of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities (details as set out in note 28 and
note 18). Equity balance consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
repayment of debts.

The net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of reporting period was

AEBNERNEE G ERRAEE AR
BEROAUHERLE RAHEBRE(LE
BREREGER  FER/MRERKEAK
B3R - AEBWERRMELZFHER -

AEBNERNREREFEF G NE
mER  EBERTIZR/BRITERR
HEEE (FBHNME28 RH &=
18) - EAERBEARBEA ARG
B (BREBTERALER) -

AEEEREERESTFRIBELNER
R BRI NEBESEERNORA K
R - REAEEEEEHEE

SEFEBIMBRE - HITHRRET
HENEEEBAFOEBRBEASE -

RS PR ERFEHEARL RN

as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total debt BB 40,045 44,433
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR NIREEEY (10,359) (9,341)
Net debt B 58 29,686 35,092
Total deficit [ErAt 4258 (10,827) (2,864)
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FRHCRABRE R X N/A N/A

T8 A i
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For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

36. Rl T H

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMITAEMNER
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FETT
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BATER AEEN
SREE 1,131 4,930
Financial assets measured at BEEKNATTENEREE
amortised cost 39,814 39,777
Financial liabilities measured at HEEKAGTENERERE
amortised cost 79,445 81,748
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) TRIAEMEEENRBEK

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from related
companies and associates, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to related companies, a director
and an associate, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.
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AWK

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont'd)

Management of the Group manages and monitors these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

0]

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings,
and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged
bank deposits and non-interest bearing amounts
due from/to related companies, a director and
associates.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management of the
Group closely monitors its exposure to future cash
flow risk as a result of change on market interest
rate and will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances
and floating-rate bank borrowings as the
management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank balances and bank
borrowings is minimal.

b) EREBREEBENREX

(%)

AEEEEERERBERNE R
REGEREEEE R EZEIERER -

0]

B AR
IEN

AEETEEHERTER
TERFANRSRENXR
% RAREEFRITER
REW NEBAR - — &
E=NBERRAEHNA
B A SFEF R B o

R E B B AT I A K SRR
ReRim - ARBEEES
BYERE ™S R EHm
HIRHRKBRRERR -
THERERERZBLE HH
LR REEE

REBOE T REN R R
TERPEAKERITER
EEMBBRITRERB K
@JO

AEEHSRAEFERR
WA 5 7 B 4 LB — 5
si o

BN E 2T

HRASEEEERRRT
REER S RTTHE SR A RO B
M RE - B EARITHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont'd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the maximum
exposure to credit risk of the Group which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades with a large number of individual
customers and trading terms are mainly on cash and
credit card settlement. In view of the Group’s
operation, the Group does not have significant
credit risk exposure to any single individual
customer. The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL, which is assessed on collective basis. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customers, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customers. At 31 December
2023 and 2022, the Group assessed the lifetime
ECL for the trade receivables and 12-month ECL for
the other receivables. HK$32,000 (2022: nil)
expected credit loss allowance on other receivables
was provided as at 31 December 2023.

b) EREREEBENREX

(%)

(ii)

EE R KRR ARG

720234 KX 20224412 A 31
H - RNEBERESF TR
TEASAEERZUBKE
EhEBRNSESEERR
BNERE M BRREKAY &
BERRCMEEREE -

B 5 RAMEWRTHA

REBEERNSM/ARTFHET
25 BHBRIFETERRS
MERAFRER -ERNAEHE
R NEBBEREMA
BE-EARFPEYEXNEE
Ek - AEBUBRIBELRE
N EREEFELE
HEEBENSEIT=ES
FEWRIER EBEE - AR
rEBNRELEEEELER
WIHERATRAREFPHEER
ABRAEZE WEE—F
EHAREETREPZEH
RS E BT 1B B o 7R 2023 FF
}2022% 128318 &%
B ETESHEBHIENS
HEREEBBRREMER
FEMNREABHEES
B M2023F12A8318
L H th & U SR IB R 42 32,000
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont'd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Amounts due from related parties

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk on amounts due from related companies, a
director and associates. The management of the
Group considers the counterparties have continuous
repayment history. Except for one debtor which the
Group considered as significant increase in credit
risk as at 31 December 2023 (2022: one debtor),
the Group measures loss allowances for amounts
due from related parties at an amount equal to
12-month ECL, which is assessed on an individual
debtor basis. As at 31 December 2023, the
management of the Group assessed that the
expected credit loss allowance for these receivables
is HK$561,000 (2022: HK$285,000) under
12-month ECL basis and HK$678,000 under lifetime
ECL (2022: HK$602,000).

Bank balances and pledge bank deposits

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with bank balances and pledged
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited
at medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. The Group has concentration risk on
its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are placed with three banks in Hong
Kong.

b) EREBREEBENREX

(%)

(i)

EER R RR ARG (F)
FEW EFRE 7 5B

NEBEE A @R A
Al —REERBE QAR
BEMEREEEFRER K
EEEREERAYFHAS
REEERRKR2023F12
A31BBEEE MY —MES
A (2022%F : =L BB AN)
N REBUAREMEAER
AERTENER12EATE
HEEBENSBETEREK
B A RIER EERE - R
2023F 12 A318H - A% E
EREFENREABHEER
BB A A T ZE R GRIER
TE Bl {5 B B 18 # 8 561,000
770 (2022 4F : 285,0007%
) MEMBEREEEER
75~ /678,000 7T (2022
F 1 602,000/ 7T) °
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont'd)

(iii) Liquidity risk

In view of the factors mentioned in Note 3(b), a
series of measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure
have been taken to improve its financial and liquidity
position of the Group as a whole.

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below, which presenting the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities, have
been drawn up based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group reported a net loss of HK$6,618,000. As of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$41,646,000 and net liabilities
of HK$10,827,000. In view of these factors, the
Group seeks for the financial support on its
immediate holding company, and takes certain
measure to mitigate the liquidity pressure by
improving its financial and liquidity position as a
whole.

b) EREREEBENREX

(%)

(iii)

REBE SR

B8 BT RE 3(b) AT At B [ 3%
REBE R — RIIEEE
BRBESEN  UKER
SEEENVBERDES
AR ©

REERBDESRRME
AEEERTERFRE MR
T EEWHIKF -

TRAXREERETESR
BESRTANIBMANH
FeTREEEREBNR
BERBEER) REAKEA
XfNe@MAEENRFAME
BERRRRERERE

TREENERFSBS R
£ - {47 BRI BRI
HE REBHESBHARE
S SIESCHID

REZE2023F12A318 1E
FE - AEEHRSEBTE
6,618,000 7T e W&z H * &
SEORBEBEBEHARE
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

36. £ T B (;

b) EREBREEBENREX

policies (Cont'd) (%)
(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (i) RBELER ()
Lessthan  Inmorethan  Inmore than
oneyearor  oneyearbut two years but Total Total
repayable  notmorethan notmorethan  undiscounted carrying
on demand two years five years cash flows amount
HSR-%F BB-F BBMEF RERRE
FREREE ATEBRE (EFRBLF RELE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR TR TER
As at 31 December 2023 ®2023512531H
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ 347 4£ £ BB E
Trade and other payables Lo REMERTE 33,068 - - 33,068 33,068
and accrued charges REHER
Amounts due to related companies FE{EE% A &3 2,221 - - 2,221 2,221
Amounts due to a director JEfs— %ﬁ?m 4,105 - - 4,105 4,105
Bank borrowings iﬁfﬂéﬁk 2,132 2,132 888 5,152 4,833
Lease liabilities HEEE 22,134 11,147 4,466 37,147 35,212
63,666 13,279 5,354 82,299 79,455
Less than In more than In more than
one year or one year but two years but Total Total
repayable  notmorethan  not more than undiscounted carrying
on demand two years five years cash flows amount
PR—F BE-F BEmE FERRS
GEEKEE  ETBRAME ETRALE mERE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL ThEL FiEn FiEn TEL
As at 31 December 2022 ®20225124318
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ 347 £ £ BB E
Trade and other payables B REAMENTER 33,883 - - 33,883 33,883
and accrued charges et ER
Amounts due to related companies [/ B3 A 5158 2,39 - - 2399 2,399
Amounts due to a director ER—2EETE 939 - - 939 939
Amount due to an associate R —FBEARNE 94 - - 94 94
Bank borrowings FITER 3427 2,056 2,911 8,394 8,191
Lease liabilties HEBE m 9,010 1,539 37,766 36,242
67,959 11,066 4,450 83,475 81,748

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
changes if variable interest rates differ from those
determined at the end of the reporting period.

i 15 B ¥ = £ B B Bl 1 $R
SHRMAEESE A EXE

ANFBNEETESHEARE
MR FRIRA] T &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(o)

(d)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at amortised cost

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of
the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using discounted cash flows analysis. The
directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Group's financial instruments are measured at fair
value. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial instruments are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

HEBRKEBERAR/—F

= EER

36. £R T H (&)

(c)

(d)

FEERBHERAITENE
MEENREHAGENATVE

AEEEEEBMNABARESRE
DI AR BHK AT ENE B
BEERSRABHNAFE - AR
AEFRAR GePBRRAR
BEKNAARNEREENRSR
BEMNEEEEEQFEMES -

ERMIENATFEFTE

AEBERMTARAFEE-
TREHEBEREAFEFEN
BAZRBN R BAREENAEE
ZETMIAZNTVEGERIZMR
ERMGERNEREARE) - &
RFEAEME D 2 R FERR
KFE(E—E=ZR)2EH -

e E-RAFEAEIEMAR
BERABNERMS 2R
B OCREHE)FH

s F_ARAVEENRE—
MEFAWBEIN BEEXK
BEAMER (AER) LHE
(BERITE) BEE AR
B/ R

s FZARFEFEINEBE
A FEA R B 2 T 5 2R
REMRMEELRB2BA
g (TABEEZBARE)
ZIEERMEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

31 December 2023

Unlisted shares Market-based method

Price-to-sales multiple: 1.29;

marketability discount:

15.70%
BZ203F12A31BLEE
LMk miE# THE 1129
%//mL‘ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ

[
15.70% 2
f&f

(d) Fair value measurements of financial (d SRMIENQFETEH)
instruments (Cont'd)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded RN ERMBEEMNEMIA
in an active market is determined by using valuation WATFEDEREEFEERE -
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use ZE[MERNRARE U AT
of observable market data where it is available and rely as 1FH A ER 22T 45 BRI AR A) B
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If one or RRKEEROARBME - M—I18
more of the significant inputs is not based on observable NEIHE NG ASIEIWIEERA
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. BRMSEE I TAEEMASE
Financial instruments included in level 3 comprise financial ZRINAB=ZANERMIAR
assets measured at FVTPL. ?‘E RAFEFABRFTENSR
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the EAZliif‘;&L&ig NE—&-
current and prior years. ZHRME=R A EER -
The valuation techniques and significant unobservable ETE=HReMmI AN TER
inputs used in determining the fair value measurement of ERMEANMGERMEERS
level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter- ARG AHBUREETER
relationship between key unobservable inputs and fair WMABBEERATECHENEER
value, are set out in the table below. FEENRTE -
Significant Inter-relationship between
Financial Valuation unobservable key unobservable inputs and
instrument techniques used inputs fair value
FEFRAREGABER
SRMIA RGBT EXTAREHARE ATEZENELIBERE
For the year ended

Value increase/(decrease) when

the price-to sales-ratio increase/
(decrease); Value increase/(decrease)
when the marketability discount
(decrease)/increase

HEEEM/CRD) - EBEEM/CR
) TIBREMEEIE O ),/
B/ (RD)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

(d) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Cont'd)

(d EMTIANAFETE R

Significant Inter-relationship between
Financial Valuation unobservable key unobservable inputs and
instrument techniques used inputs fair value
IEFAREBRABER

¢RMIA FABERN EATHEERAEE ALATEZBHAIBER
For the year ended

31 December 2022
Convertible notes and Binomial pricing Discount rate: Value increase/(decrease)

future equity investments method, discounted 26.25%-26.36%; when discount rate

cash flow method Volatility: increase/(decrease)

HBZ2002412A318ILEE
ARBREERARBERE

Fund investment and
unlisted shares

EeRERK ETkR

Unlisted preference
shares

AEmEER

and equity allocation
method

“EAEEE
MRREREE
REENEE

Underlying assets method

HRBEE

Equity allocation method

BN EA

Group's valuation processes

70%-135.64%

RS
26.25%-26.36% :
R
70%-135.64%
N/A

N
Volatility 70%

I8 70%

The Group's finance department performs the valuations

of financial assets required for financial reporting
purposes. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
has engaged independent professionally qualified valuers

to assist the Group in determining the fair value of

financial instruments in level 3 for financial reporting

purposes. The responsibility for determining the fair value

rests with the Group. At each financial reporting date, the

finance department reviews all significant unobservable

inputs and valuation adjustments used to measure the fair

values of financial instruments in level 3.

Value increase/(decrease) when
volatility increase/(decrease))

RREEN/(50) - BEEN/
()
WIEED/(6) - B/ (60)

N/A

TEH

Value increase/(decrease) when
volatility increase/(decrease)

RiEE/ O D) - BEEM/ (HD)

A B AR

REBEUBHZUBEREENE
KEeREEETHE HE
20234 2022 F 12 A31HIEF
B AEECZEBIZELE
BAEER B A& B R 5w S
BENETE AR ITAENAF
B-ETAFENEAERETSE
o oNEREMR B LeH
MARSTEE=ZHsmTAQF
EMATAEATIBRE AZIE
KA EFHE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Cont'd)

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

36. R T H s

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets measured at FVTPL on recurring basis:

(d) ERMTIANQFETE R

REEHEREEZRAFEFAE
SHEMEEZE =MAFER

Future Unlisted
Convertible equity Fund  preference Unlisted
notes investments investment shares shares Total
AR KET
TRREE RERE EERE BER ARETRH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR THER THER
At 1 January 2022 R2022%181A 390 1,365 399 - 1,013 3,167
Transfer from convertible notes ~ E & B AR R EE (390) - - 390 - -
Acquisition Bt 2,574 - 294 - - 2,868
Fair value changes (note 9) ATEZY(HE9) (791) (243) (105) (19) 53 (1,105)
At 31 December 2022 and R2025128318kK
1 January 2023 202351518 1,783 1,122 588 371 1,066 4,930
Transfer from investment in EREREERRL
associates (note 20) %8 (M320) - - - - 802 802
Acquisition U - - 414 - - 414
Fair value changes (note 9) AFEEF (Fi39) (1,783) - - - 329 (1,454)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (3T 14)
(note 14) - (1,122) (1,002) (371) (1,066) (3,561)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A318 - - - - 1,131 1,131
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. AT EER

—— 224 —

COMPANY
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current asset RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBRRMNIEE 11,845 15,270
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and others B RIBREM 166 17
Amount due from a related company JiE Y B BSE A B FRIE 150 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE /e 14 204
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS - 16
330 237
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued charges HAb A FRIA R ERTE A 879 2,553
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B 2 R 3 IA 17,668 15,682
Amount due to an associate FEATESE & A B FRIE - 72
Amounts due to related companies JE - BB A B RIE - 100
18,547 18,407
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (18,217) (18,170)
Net liabilities BEFH (6,372) (2,900)
Capital and reserves EXK#1E
Share capital (note 30) A&7 (B 5% 30) 11,598 11,598
Reserves ] (17,970) (14,498)
Total deficit S Al 48 %A (6,372) (2,900)

KONG LINGLEI WAN SUET YEE CHERRY
A<= BEE
Director Director
gF BF
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ £ 2023F 12 A31 B It FE

37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. AT BER »)

COMPANY (contd)
Capital Total
Share redemption Treasury  Shareoption  Accumulated equity/
premium reserve shares reserve losses (deficit)
s/ (F4)
RiVEE  EARERE EFRH BRERS Zith& a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TR TER
At 1 January 2022 RANETR1H 100922 50 (148) 229 (98,466) 2,581
Loss and total comprehensive ERBERZARSES
expense for the year - - - - (17,480) (17,480)
Cancellation of share repurchased (note 30) = BEBAR 1 (H3£30) (148) 14 148 - - 14
Equity settled share-based transactions WREEENRAAERNZ S - - - 381 - 381
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RANENAIBRABEIAIA 100,774 64 - 610 (115,946) (14,498)
Loss and total comprehensive EMEERZERLEE
expense for the year - - - - (3472) (3472)
Cancellation of share options HiERE - - - (130) 130 -
At 31 December 2023 R2023E128318 100,774 64 - 480 (119,288) (17,970)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 £ 2023 F 12 A31 H It FE

The table below details changes in the Group'’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

TERHIAEEREEDFELTREN
HHHBE BRERE MRS - @
BEMELRABERMELRESRED
FERBEREREARELEARES R
EXRTOERREETHMERESRES -

from financing activities.

Non-trade Non-trade
nature nature
Non-trade amounts amount
nature due due
amount due to related toan Lease Bank
to a director companies associate liabilities borrowings
ER-£8% REABHAR REAHBELR
NE(FER HEFEZ FREGEZS
#E) #E) #5) HEAE BITEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEn TER
(note 25) (note 25) (note 25) (note 18) (note 28)
(FtzE25) (GEYL) (Bt 25) (FitzE18) GEY:)
At 1 January 2022 R202251818 - 2,165 - 49,781 11,184
Financing cash flows RERERE 939 234 9% (21,060) (3,351)
Non-cash item: EREER -
Finance costs (note 11) BEMKA (HE11) - - - 2,044 358
Lease modification HEE - - - 6,018 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR - - - (541) -
At 31 December 2022 and M20225 128318 939 2,399 94 36,242 8,191
1 January 2023 20231818
Financing cash flows BERERE 3,166 (266) = (29,092) (3,765)
Non-cash item: FREER:
Reclassification BN E - 9% (94) = =
Finance costs (note 11) AE A (HEE11) = = = 1,822 407
Lease modification HEBT - - - 28,988 -
Termination of lease RILHEE - - = (2,748) =
At 31 December 2023 R2023512A31H 4,105 2,227 - 35,212 4,833




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. X EM B RFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group at the RBER AEBETEERB AT
end of the reporting period are set out below: oy
Proportion
Issued and of share capital

Place of Place of fully paid held by the Group

Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
BRITRAR AEER12A31A
Wi 2 A £ MR B BRE BRA FrEERA B TEXH
2023 2022

JIA Group Hong Kong Limited BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

(formerly known as Big Team
Ventures Limited)

JIA Group Hong Kong Limited RERLEE B 50,0003 7T 100% 100%  REZER
(A7 Big Team Ventures Limited)

Brightsome Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

SEREEBR AR RBRIES BB 157 100% 100% EBELE

Capital Creative Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding (2022:
Restaurant operation)

BRERAF BA BB 1003 7T 100% 100%  RAERK(Q2022F

Duddell's Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Club membership services
for one of the Group's
restaurants

Duddell's Hong Kong Limited B0 0 100 7T 100% 100% AREEEHR-FHEE
REELBERS

Gain Long Corporation Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding (2022:
Restaurant operation)

HHRBRRA BA BB 1,000%7T 100% 100%  RAERK(Q2022F
ZHEE)

Ideal Profit Corporation Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

BEERAR BA &% 50,0004 100% 100% EBELE

Kingswide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

BYBERNA BA BB 1007 7T 100% 100% EELE

Luck Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Dormant (2022:
Restaurant operation)

Luck Wealthy Limited B Bk 10078 7T 100% 100%  EEE% (20225 :
EREE)

Oman International Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3 100% 100%  Trademark holder

ZEERREER T BE BB 3BT 100% 100% AREEA
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REMBHmRNE

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

39. EEMBRARNFE @

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
EBRTRAR AEER12A318
WEAREH R B L 3 B EEBE &N PR AL Bl TEXH
2023 2022
Profit Holder Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 67.9% 67.9%  Restaurant operation
BEGRAF BA B 1,000%7T 67.9% 67.9% EBELE
Rising Mark Development Limited BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAT RBRRUEE EE  10000%7T 100% 100% REER
Springlike Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Springlike Limited HEELEE B (E 100% 100%  HEER
Top Glorification Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Top Glorification Limited RERLEE 0 ES 100% 100% BELE
Victory Rich Global Group Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRBEREEERAT RBRIES B#%  10000%T 100% 100% HERK
Dazzle Long Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Dazzle Long Limited RERELEHE B (E 100% 100%  BREER
Maxmount Global Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
services in connection
with the restaurant
operation
BEBERERAR RERIHES 5k 1% 100% 100% AEBELREM
B RS
Season Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Season Luck Limited RBRUEE BE 157 100% 100% REER
Pure Love Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Pure Love Limited ABRAEE BB 100%7T 100% 100% BBLE
Fine Wisdom Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Fine Wisdom Holdings Limited REELHE B (E 100% 100%  HEER
Vantage Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Vantage Luck Limited EEERHES BE 1% 100% 100% RERR
King Access Corporation Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
HRERAA BE BB 1ET 100% 100% EELE
Fit Asia Inc Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
REBRNF EE BB 1,007 100% 100% REER
Hidden Glory Limited (note (i) BVI Hong Kong Us$100 0% 80%  Investment holding
Hidden Glory Limited (Fff3E (i) KBRS 5% 100%7T 0% 80% AR

XinXiang Era Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

39. EEM B RNFE @

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
EBRTRAR AE@ER12A318
WEARER ML 5 B &N PR AL Bl TEXH
2023 2022
Jolly Master Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Jolly Master Enterprises Limited REELHE 9 151 100% 100% REZER
Champ Winner Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 80% 80%  Restaurant operation
Champ Winner Limited B8 B 100787C 80% 80% EBELE
Loyal Talent International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 80% 80%  Restaurant operation
HRERERAR BB BA 1007 7T 80% 80% EBELE
Sure Big Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
BABRAE BA 5 1ET 100% 100% EELE
Ever Brave Ventures Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Ever Brave Ventures Limited HEELHE 5 17T 100% 100%  REER
Star Glory Ventures Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Star Glory Ventures Limited REELHE B (E 100% 100%  REER
Incredible Resources Limited (note (i) BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 0% 100%  Investment holding
Incredible Resources Limited (Fi7E () RERZES £ 1,000%7T 0% 100%  REER
Express Star Corporation Limited (note (ii)) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 43% 43%  Restaurant operation
Express Star Corporation Limited (%&£ (i) &8 B 1,000 7T 3% 43% EELE
Absolute Abundant Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 72% 72%  Investment holding
Absolute Abundant Limited RERLEE B 1,000% 7T 72% %  RERK
JIA Restaurants Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
JIA Restaurants Limited RBRUES 2 ESE 100% 100% REEK
Profit Bright Corporation Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Profit Bright Corporation Limited &% Bk 18T 100% 100% BHEL
Notes: B 5
()  These companies are disposed of during the year ended 31 () ZEWBRARKRBEE2023412A31
December 2023. HIEFELE -
(i) Accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group because the directors iy TBARAMBRAAIAK RERES

are of the opinion that the Group has power over the investee

through control of the board of the subsidiaries, exposure to

variable returns from the investee and the ability to use its power

to affect those variable returns.

RAAEEBREGNBEARESS
HRREHRERR)  RAERKE
HEAEERzBABRAE LHEN
EREENTEZENEER -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

39.

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

The above table lists the entities now comprising the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

JIA Group Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as Big Team
Ventures Limited) is directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. All subsidiaries
now comprising the Group are limited liability companies and
have adopted 31 December as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of
the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the
resolutions in writing of all the shareholders passed on 23
January 2018. The terms of the share option scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The share option scheme became effective on 8
February 2018, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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EXRFIAEEBRFETER - AR
E=ZRA FHEBUAKENEREN
EEBRIZRE ARAEERR
RECE A KB A BMFIEHERA
BRIEBE -

JIA Group Hong Kong Limited (#1 % Big
Team Ventures Limited) fi KA &) B # #
Be-EEMHBARTYAARNRNREE
BB AEBERKETHANEBRQFY
RABRRA LRMI12ANBREY
HEFER -

RER - BENE QR BETERNBESE
# o

BB g fE 5T &l
RATF RS E R RETE

THAZEBREMN2018F1A23HE
BEERBRB RERANERER S
RAMEZERRBE - BRETZIM K
KA ZFFGEME A Em R B E
T =EMRARE - BRES SR
2018F 2 A8 A A MK IERITIUH
iEE] - BEREGEIAZARI0FA—
BB -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (Cont'd)

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide additional incentives to the
Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests
of option holders to shareholders. The Board of Directors of the
Company may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying
Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-
time or part-time employee) of any members of the Group or
any of its affiliates and any person who is an officer of any
members of the Group or any of its affiliates; (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any
of its affiliates; (3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser,
customer, contractor of the Group or any affiliates; (4) any
business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any
employee thereof (collectively the “Eligible Person”); or (ii) any
trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his immediate family
members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his
immediate family members.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme and any other schemes
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
No option may be granted under any schemes of the Company
if this will result in the limit being exercised. The maximum
number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the share option scheme and any
other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issued following the completion of the
capitalisation issue and the share offer.

RARUEREENBERES
(%)

BRAERTEIM B MERSI REEHAR
AEBERENNREAEBAL B
BERAERA EEL T RHHEINE
B EBKSERAESA AR EECR
REAMERTEARARM K LK
HIRKID) - RAREZE R MERGER
EERANBREHBRE -

[BERARAIBRE  ()(1) AT EEMA
R B R RS EREE A RN EES (B
WEEBEARBET) RAKREEEM
RERRSEMNBHBEARSRBEMNE
WAL QEBRATAEEEMKE LT
FAERE LB TENERAL Q)&
SE ST AEE AR NEAFERA K
BRKX Bl FPERER @E
MEBAERH BR HE &5
77 AN SR B SR B~ R SR A P
RGO EEAREEFAEE (BB
[AERALD HMHEEMALHE
EXBBIamEAERXaERA
THEERBRBIESNERNAF -

RIBRE R 8 REME MR E R
R RTTE 2 AT SMNE BB BT 2
B A T#IT 2R BRRE - TEHE
PREETRN Z30% KRB TFR
BEARBEMGG R LN S EHED
REE Z BAE - RIRBEAER & A
REMEAEAMF B TR ENAME B
REITEMABEEITHRMDER LRA
BRATGHRBEEECHET RN E
ERKRDEITRNA10% °
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Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (Cont’d)

No option may be granted to any participant of the share option
scheme such that the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital
from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share option scheme at any time during a period as determined
by the Board of Directors of the Company and not exceeding 10
years from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the share option scheme are required to pay the
Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from
the date of the offer (or such period as the Board of Directors of
the Company may specify in writing). The exercise price of the
options is determined by the Board of Directors of the Company
in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of: (a) the closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer date; (b)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of a share. The share option scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no
further options will be granted or offered.

On 19 January 2022, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
7,600,000 shares of the Company had been granted by the
Company to the existing directors and employees and
consultants of the Group under the share option scheme. The
option period of the options shall be ten years from the date of
acceptance and the options shall be lapsed at the expiry of the
option period. The exercise price is HK$0.1 per share.

No fulfillment or vesting period condition were associated to the
above options.

ARFUEREENBERES
(%)

WER BRI S2EERTEERE
RERHAHIEEMN12ZEARBEAD
BRIGERBERE MEFCRTR
B TRTORNDABBBARBTED
BITRANI% AT GERZSEHER
AL AT B A o

BREAAARESSETHWEM (R
TEBAEREN BB 10F)BEEIR
BRI SRR TIT{E - WERT
BRENRA FIIFEMNARBENREH
Mo BRETE2HEEANRELNHHR
P28 B (UARAEESAEMIERAM
HE) A piERREmE AR R XA
108 T - BRETEELRARRES
CREMNBET B AMEERTI =%
THESE  QREBEHNAHBIMEA
RERTHFMBRHDUTE: ORBEEE
MBI AEEEABIIEARESR
Frai i m FHRHE: ROBRHE
B BEBREAEH2018F2 A8H B
10FABEIRER  EETEBERE K
R EIRE -

7202291 B198 » AR RIREERE
ERAEREEES EEREBERE
i 7] SR B K A 7] & $£7,600,000 f% A% 15
BRERRAE - EIRE C B AR A H
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Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (Cont'd)

On 4 December 2023, a consultant and a director agreed to
surrender a total of 2,400,000 outstanding share options
(comprising of (i) 550,000 and 1,000,000 share options with an
exercise price of HK$0.1 held by a consultant and a director,
respectively; and (ii) 850,000 share options with an exercise
price of HK$0.13 held by a director) at nil consideration for
cancellation. The cancellation was completed on 13 December
2023. The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option
scheme decreased to 83,600,000 shares after the cancellation
based on Rule 23.03(14) of the GEM Listing Rules.

The followings are the change in share options subsequent to
the year ended 31 December 2023:

On 10 January 2024, 2,900,000 share options with HK$0.13
per share exercise price were lasped.

On 13 December 2023, Central Power Group Limited
("Offeror”) had become a controlling shareholder of the
Company with the completion of a share purchase agreement
(please refer to note 41(1) for details) and was required under
the Code on Takeovers and Mergers in Hong Kong to make
mandatory unconditional cash offers to cancel all outstanding
share options (the “Option Offer”). The Option Offer was closed
on 9 February 2024. The Offeror did not receive any
acceptances under the Option Offer. As such, 6,050,000 share
options which were outstanding at the time automatically
lapsed upon close of the Option Offer.

On 21 February 2024, the Company offered to grant share
options to 30 service providers of the Group, subject to their
acceptance, under the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 23 January 2018, to subscribe for a total of
80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Grants”). The Grants are not
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 #{ £ 2023F 12 A31HILFE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cont'd) 40. BERR T &l ()
Equity-settled share option scheme of the AR UEREENEREE
Company (Cont'd) (%)
The movements of the outstanding options granted under the RS AR R At 815 H e R 1T R B AR A R
share option scheme during the year are as follows: FRNEHHOT -
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F12A310LFEE
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled as at
Share 1 January during during during the 31 December
option type 2023 the year the year year 2023
R2023 F
R2023 F 12A318
BREER 1R1BRTE FRERE FREAR FREHEH RTFE
Directors - 2021 2,750,000 - - (850,000) 1,900,000
2022 3,200,000 - - (1,000,000) 2,200,000
Employees EE 2021 500,000 - - - 500,000
2022 3,300,000 - - - 3,300,000
Consultants g 2021 500,000 - - - 500,000

2022 1,100,000 = (550,000) 550,000

11,350,000 - - (2,400,000) 8,950,000

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A318LFE

Number of share options
EiEnA

QOutstanding Qutstanding
& at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Share 1 January during during during 31 December
option type 2022 the year the year the year 2022
RANE
R02E 124318
ERERN 1R1BROE FABER Rk ERERM KTl
Directors E% 201 2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000
2022 - 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000
Employees &8 2021 500,000 - - - 500,000
2022 - 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
Consultants ER 201 500,000 - - - 500,000
2022 - 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
3,750,000 7,600,000 - - 11,350,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Details of the share options are as follow: BRESBEOT
Share option type Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price
B8 IR R BEBH TEH TEE
2021 11 January 2021 11 January 2021 to 10 January 2024 HK$0.13
2021 20211 A 118 20211 B 11 BE2024F1810H 01387t
2022 19 January 2022 19 January 2022 to 18 January 2032 HK$0.1
2022 2022F 1 A4 19H 2022% 1 B 19BE 203241 A18H 0.1t
Fair value of share options and assumptions BEBRENAFEREBR
The total fair value of the 2022 share options at the grant date BN A (B12022F1 A198)
on 19 January 2022 was HK$381,000 while the total fair value B 48 A F 1B A381,0007%8 7T (2021 4F -
of the 2021 share options at the grant date on 11 January 2021 AN HE (12021561 11 8)
was HK$229,000. The following information is relevant in the AN {E A229,000/87T) » LA NER
determination of the fair value of options. HETHEREATERRE -
Share option type B I 2R R 2021 2022
Option pricing model used Fr AH AR TE (B AR A Trinomial option pricing  Binomial option pricing
ZIEAEETEE ZIANERETEE
Share price at grant date KA ERRE HK$0.122 HK$0.089
0.1227%7T 0.0897% 7T
Exercise price 11188 HK$0.13 HK$0.1
01387t 0.1t
Contractual life & #IEABR 3 years 10 years
3F 104F
Expected volatility TEHR R 18 90.78% 73.409%
Expected dividend rate TEHAR B 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate A [ i ) =R 0.11% 1.653%
The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of BB R R (ATEERER M FEEEE
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of E)RERYUBE=ZFBHRENS
daily share prices over the last three years. Changes in the ST TBMEMABRZELEH AT
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair BEFTEEERTE -

value estimate.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd) 40. BBz #ERTEl ()
Share options and weighted average exercise price are as W AEEARE R NETFHTEENT

follows for the reporting periods presented:

2023 2022

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

share options exercise price share options exercise price

BRESE METLHTEE BkEHE METHIEE

HK$ HK$

BT B

Outstanding at 1 January TA1BRE 11,350,000 0.11 3,750,000 0.13

Granted E&H - - 7,600,000 0.1
Cancelled B (2,400,000) 0.11 - -

Outstanding at 31 December 12 A31 B8R TE 8,950,000 0.11 11,350,000 0.11
Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31 F2023F 12 A31 B W ARITERNERE
December 2023, 8,950,000 share options (2022: 11,135,000) # 8,950,000 17 i AR 1 (2022 4F :
were exercisable and with a weighted average remaining 11,135,0001%) 7] F171F - p0#E F 5 &
contractual life of 5.5 years (2022: 6.4 years). TA#EPR A55F (20224 : 6.44F) »
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share option REE2023F12A3MBIEFE - #18&
expenses was recognised in the profit or loss (2022: BlRERIZNEZPER (2022%F :
HK$381,000 was recognised in expense in relation to share 381,000/ LR A B A D A & B %

options granted by the Company). BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

BUBHREREMBOMBEEN A&
B IR s R A A TN EIE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group also had the following events after the reporting period:

On 4 December 2023, Ms. PY Wong and certain
shareholders of the Company (collectively as “Vendors")
entered into a share purchase agreement (“Share
Purchase Agreement”) with Central Power Group Limited
("Offeror”). Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement,
the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell, and the Offeror
conditionally agreed to acquire 702,020,000 shares,
representing approximately 60.53% of the total issued
share capital of the Company at a consideration of
HK$54,476,752. Upon the completion of the share
purchase agreement on 13 December 2023, Central
Power Group Limited became the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company.

Following the completion of the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Offeror had become a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Under the Code on
Takeovers and Mergers in Hong Kong, the Offeror
required to make mandatory unconditional cash offers (i)
to acquire all the issued shares of the Company at
HK$0.0776 per offer share (the “Share Offer”); and (ii) to
cancel all outstanding share options (note 40) (the
“Option Offer”, and together with the Share Offer, the
“Offers”). The Offers were closed on 9 February 2024 and
the Offeror has received 8 valid acceptances in respect of
a total of 172,180,000 offer shares. Immediately after the
closed of the Offers, the Offeror is interested in an
aggregate of 874,200,000 shares, representing
approximately 75.38% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Details of the change of controlling shareholders and the
Offers are set out in the announcements dated 4
December 2023, 13 December 2023, 9 February 2024
and the composite document dated 19 January 2024
jointly issued by the Company and the Offeror.

MR2023F 1248 EME XL
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AN ER G ((ERiBE]D -
BEERBZE BEFBKERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO BTSRRI A

For year ended 31 December 2023 E = 202312 A31 HILEE

41. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (conte) 41. 3R &S HIRILEI1E ()

2. The followings are change of directors with effect from 9 2. NATRESEE B2024F2AH9

February 2024: AREAR

(i)  Mr. Kong Linglei has been appointed as an executive iy FeBEECEZEABIT
director; =5

(i)  Mr. Peng Ben has been appointed as a non- (iy ZHEECEZFTARIENT
executive director; 5%

(i) Mr. Liu Enyu has been appointed as a non-executive (iy BIRFHECDEZERIEH
director and the chairman of the Board; NEERESESER:

(iv) Ms. Deng Yongling has been appointed as an (iv) BXBZIBEZRTAEIL
independent non-executive director; FEMITES

(v Ms. Mao Xiaobi has been appointed as an vy, FEEERELZITEEZTAEBY
independent non-executive director; FEMITES

(vi)  Ms. Ma Lina has been appointed as an independent viy EBEBLZIEEZTAEBY
non-executive director; and FERITES &

(viiy Ms. PY Wong has resigned as chairlady of the Vi EfEZLTERETIESSE
Board. J& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M

For year ended 31 December 2023 = 2023 12 A31 HILFE

41. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

3. Implementing share consolidation

On 26 February 2024, the Board proposes to implement
the share consolidation pursuant to which every two (2)
issued and unissued existing shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company will be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.02 each. The share
consolidation was approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") held on 21 March
2024. In addition, the Board proposes to change the
board lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange from
10,000 existing shares to 20,000 consolidated shares
conditional upon the share consolidation becoming
effective. Dealing in the consolidated shares will
commence on 25 March 2024. The ordinary resolution
was passed by shareholders in the EGM on 21 March
2024. Upon the share consolidation becoming effective
on 25 March 2024, there were 579,890,000 consolidated
shares in issue.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
on 26 February 2024 and 21 March 2024.

42. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March
2024.

41. SREHIMAEE @)

i

Btk & o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFH B2

The following table summaries the consolidated financial statements ~ FERBIIRFIREFAREBN G A T HRE
of the Group in respective year as indicated:

For the year ended 31 December
HEN2ANBLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL TER TET

Revenue 'ON 217,738 173,303 221,344 217,005 278,542
Loss before taxation BRI AT (31,697) (19,737) (19,295) (22,409) (9,453)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiEs (), #E (260) 637 (1,967) (591) 2,835
Loss for the year FRER (31,957) (19,100) (21,262) (23,000) (6,618)
Loss for the year attribute to: NTSERGEEABE :
— Owners of the Company S YN Y=UN (31,957) (20,407) (19,476) (19,744) (1,801)
— Non-controlling interests — IR - 1,307 (1,786) (3,256) (4,817)
(31,957) (19,100) (21,262) (23,000) (6,618)

As at 31 December
M12A31R
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER THET TET TEL

Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEERE 120,140 138,056 136,026 98,557 87,658
Total liabilities BEAE (90,965) (114,518) (116,274) (101,421) (98,485)
Net assets/(liabilities) LE/(8B)FE 29,175 23,538 19,752 (2,864) (10,827)
Equity attributable to: NTEBEGES
— Owners of the Company YN Z=DN 29,175 25,038 21,953 2,698 775
- Non-controlling interests — R ES - (1,500) (2,201) (5,562) (11,602)
29,175 23,538 19,752 (2,864) (10,827)
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